
GŴYS A RHAGLEN SUMMONS AND AGENDA

ar gyfer for an

CYFARFOD ARBENNIG
O GYNGOR SIR

YNYS MÔN

EXTRAORDINARY MEETING
 OF THE ISLE OF ANGLESEY

COUNTY COUNCIL

a gynhelir yn to be held at the

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR
SWYDDFA’R SIR

LLANGEFNI

COUNCIL CHAMBER
COUNCIL OFFICES

LLANGEFNI

DYDD MAWRTH
18 HYDREF 2016

TUESDAY
 18 OCTOBER 2016

am 10.00 o’r gloch at 10.00 am

Public Document Pack



 A G E N D A

Presentations - Euro 2016 Competition

The Chair of the Council will present an award on behalf of the Council to acknowledge the 
success of the Wales Football Team in the 2016 Euro Competition.

1.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST  

To receive any declaration of interest from any Member or Officer in respect of any 
item of business.

2.   PARLIAMENTARY REVIEW  

To submit a report by the Head of Democratic Services.

3.   ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2015/16  

To submit a report by the Head of Corporate Transformation, as presented to the 
Executive on 19th September, 2016.

4.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To consider adoption of the following:-

“Under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, to exclude the press 
and public from meeting during discussion on the following item on the grounds 
that it may involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A 
of the said Act and in the attached Public Interest Test”. 

5.   THE COUNTY COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO HORIZON'S PRE-APPLICATION 
CONSULTATION - STAGE 2  

The Chief Executive to report on the above.



 

 

Isle of Anglesey County Council 

Committee: County Council 
 

Date: 18 October 2016 
 

Title of Report: 2018 Review of Parliamentary Constituencies – Initial 
Proposals by the Boundary Commission for Wales  
 

Report by: Head of Democratic Services  

Purpose of Report: Consultation. 

Action: To respond to the consultation. 

 
1. Introduction 
 
 On 24 March 2016, the Boundary Commission for Wales announced the start 

of the 2018 Review of Parliamentary Constituencies in Wales in accordance 
with the provisions of the Parliamentary Constituencies Act 1986 as amended 
by the Parliamentary Voting System and Constituencies Act 2011.  The 
Commission published its Initial Proposals Report on 13 September, 
requesting comments on the initial proposals by 5 December 2016. 

 
2. Summary of proposals - Wales  
 
 The new legislation has reduced the number of Parliamentary constituencies 

in Wales from 40 to 29. 
 
 No existing constituency would remain unchanged under the initial proposals. 

For many areas the proposed changes are considerable.  
 
 Ynys Môn would be one of 16 existing constituencies wholly contained within 

new constituencies.    
 
 Ynys Môn is one of seven principal councils in Wales which fall below the 

maximum of the statutory electorate range and which therefore could be 
included wholly within a new constituency. 

 
 Of the 881 electoral wards in Wales, 880 would be wholly contained within 

new constituencies. 
 
3. Summary of proposals - Anglesey  
 

It is proposed that a county constituency is created from:  
 

The whole of the existing Ynys Môn CC consisting of the County of The Isle 
of Anglesey electoral wards of Aethwy (4,906), Bro Aberffraw (2,882), Bro 
Rhosyr (3,626), Caergybi (6,146), Canolbarth Môn (4,874), Llifon (3,963), 
Lligwy (4,621), Seiriol (4,407), Talybolion (4,430), Twrcelyn (5,229) and Ynys 
Gybi (4,203); and,  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.



 

 

The electoral wards within the existing Arfon CC and County of Gwynedd of 
Arllechwedd (971), Bethel (1,020), Cadnant (1,438), Cwm-y-Glo (710), Deiniol 
(496), Deiniolen (1,263), Dewi (1,098), Garth (420), Gerlan (1,559), Glyder 
(1,139), Hendre (835), Hirael (881), Llanrug (1,289), Marchog (1,446), Menai 
(Bangor) (839), Menai (Caernarfon) (1,671), Ogwen (1,556), Peblig 
(Caernarfon) (1,344), Penisarwaun (1,293), Pentir (1,636), Seiont (2,079), 
Tregarth & Mynydd Llandygai (1,531) and Y Felinheli (1,624).  

 
This constituency would have 77,425 electors which is 3.6% above the UKEQ 
of 74,769 electors per constituency.  
 
The report notes that the Isle of Anglesey alone cannot meet the statutory 
requirements in respect of size of electorate.  

  
Several options were considered but it was felt that, due to the number of 
additional electors required and the requirement for the Commission to take 
into account local government boundaries, the constituency should 
encompass the wards surrounding Bangor and including the Town of 
Caernarfon and those wards immediately to the east of Caernarfon. In this 
way the constituency to the south of Anglesey falls entirely within the County 
of Gwynedd.  

 
An alternative would be to include electoral wards to the north of Bangor but, 
particularly given the geographic size of ‘Gogledd Clwyd a Gwynedd’ and the 
electorate of ‘Colwyn and Conwy’, it was considered that this would involve 
adverse effects on the surrounding constituencies which would be less 
desirable.  

 
4. Constituency Name 
 

The suggested name for the constituency is Ynys Môn ac Arfon and the 
suggested alternative name is Isle of Anglesey and Arfon.  
 
As the existing constituency of Ynys Môn is included wholly within the 
constituency, the Commission utilised that name first in the proposed 
constituency name. Several options for an additional name were considered 
and, due to the proportion of the existing Arfon constituency covered by the 
new constituency – approximately 75% of the electorate – Arfon was 
considered the most appropriate name. 
  
For information, at its meeting on 6 March 2012, the County Council 
considered other previous initial proposals for the review of parliamentary 
constituencies by the Boundary Commission for Wales.  The suggested name 
for the constituency was ‘Menai ac Ynys Môn’.  At that meeting, the Council 
resolved:  
 
“to suggest to the Boundary Commission for Wales that the name of the 
proposed Parliamentary Constituency be known as Môn and Menai”. 

 
  

Page 2



 

 

5. Issues to consider 
 

The Council is requested to bear in mind the following issues when 
considering its response to the consultation: 
 
 

 
-  The historic context of parliamentary representation and need to 

safeguard the unique identity of the island and its natural administrative  
boundaries  

 
- Extending the constituency boundaries will weaken local accountability 

and the status of the island. 
 

- Under initial proposals for England, two of the 501 constituencies 
allocated to England are reserved for the Isle of Wight - the 2011 Act 
states that the Isle of Wight must have two constituencies (currently 
one constituency).  Two island constituencies in Scotland are also 
protected under the Act - Orkney and Shetland and Na h-Eileanan.  

 
- The initial proposals were considered by the Group Leaders on 22 

September 2016 and the view was that they should not be supported.  
 
6. Recommendations 
 

The County Council is requested to: 
 

- comment on the proposal to create the new parliamentary constituency 
and its suggested name, ie Ynys Môn ac Arfon and Isle of Anglesey 
and Arfon  

 
- authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, to 

prepare a response on behalf of the Council to the Boundary 
Commission for Wales by 5 December 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
Link to the Initial Proposals Report: 
http://comffin-cymru.gov.uk/2018-review/initial_proposals?lang=en 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

http://comffin-cymru.gov.uk/2018-review/initial_proposals?lang=en


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

  

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
REPORT TO: 

 
COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 
DATE: 
 

 
18 October 2016 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

 
ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT  2015/16  

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S): 
 

COUNCILLOR ALWYN ROWLANDS 

 
HEAD OF SERVICE: 
 

SCOTT A ROWLEY 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
TEL: 
E-MAIL: 

GETHIN MORGAN 
01248 752111 
GethinMorgan@anglesey.gov.uk 

 
LOCAL MEMBERS:  
 

 
n/a 

 

A - Recommendation/s and reason/s 

 

1.1 The Council needs to publish a forward looking Annual Delivery Document as soon as 

practicable after 1 April each year, a document containing the key priorities and 

Improvement objectives of the Authority’s four year Corporate Plan for that particular  year 

1.2 In addition, the council is also required to prepare and publish its annual Performance 

Report by 31 October each year - a statutory document which analyses performance over 

the previous financial year against those improvements and priorities as outlined in the 

Annual Delivery Document 2015/16 and the Corporate Plan 2013/17 

1.3 This paper outlines the drafft of the Performance Report which looks back at the 

performance of the Council for 2015/16 . 

1.4 The Report looks at the council's progress against its Improvement Objectives for 2015/16 
as outlined through our  7 key areas in the 2014/15 Annual Delivery Document :- 

            1. That we Transform Older Adult Social Care 
2. Regenerate our Communities and Develop the Economy 
3. Improve Education, Skills and Modernise our Schools 
4. We increase Our Housing Options & Reduce Poverty 
5. Transform our Leisure & Library Provision 
6. Becoming Customer, Citizen & Community Focused 
7. Transform our Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) 

1.5 The draft looks at the outputs and outcomes against what we said we would deliver during 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.

mailto:GethinMorgan@anglesey.gov.uk


 

2 

 

2015/16 against the above 7 key themes 

1.6 A key part of the finalised Performance Report will be an assessment of the Council's 

performance against its key performance indicators that looks at performance year on year 

and benchmarked against other local authorities in Wales. The report will highlight our 

achievements and areas of weakness as identified by National Strategic Indicators (NSIs) 

and Public Accountability Measures (PAMs). An overall analysis will also look at key 

Performance indicators for services as measured through the Service improvement 

Datasets (SIDs).  

 
1.7 The Committee is therefore asked :  

 

 To agree that the final version of the Performance Report 2015/16  be published 
by the statutory October deadline is completed by Officers in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for publication to our website  

 
 

B - What other options did you consider and why did you reject them and/or opt for this 
option? 
 

n/a 
 

C - Why is this a decision for the Executive? 
 

This matter is delegated to the Executive 
 

CH - Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council? 
 

Yes 
 

D - Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council? 
 

Yes 
 

DD - Who did you consult?                          What did they say?                                         

   1       Chief Executive / Strategic Leadership Team 
(SLT) (mandatory) 

 

  2 Finance / Section 151 (mandatory)   

  3 Legal / Monitoring Officer (mandatory)   

     4 Human Resources (HR)   

     5 Property   

     6 Information Communication Technology (ICT)  

     7 Scrutiny  

     8 Local Members  

     9 Any external bodies / other/s  

E -    Risks and any mitigation (if relevant)   

     1 Economic  

     2 Anti-poverty  

     3 Crime and Disorder  

     4 Environmental  

Page 6



 

3 

 

     5 Equalities  

     6 Outcome Agreements  

     7 Other  

F -    Appendices: 
 

Appendix A – Annual Performance Report 2015-16 (Draft) 
 

FF -  Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further information): 

 

 Annual Delivery Document 2015/16 

 Corporate Business Plan 2013-2017 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

1 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2015/16 
Draft 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Isle of Anglesey County Council 
Llangefni 
Anglesey 
LL77 7TWTel: (01248) 752111 
 

Page 8



 

2 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Index 

 
 
 
 
Heading Page 

A Word from the Leader 3 

Annual Performance Report  2015-2016 - Introduction 4 

Transform Older Adult Social Care  5 

Regenerate Our Communities and Develop the Economy 10 

Improve Education, Skills and Modernise our Schools 16 

Increase Our Housing Options & Reduce Poverty 23 

Transform our Leisure & Library Provision 30 

Becoming Customer, Citizen & Community Focused 34 

Transform our Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) 37 

Corporate Performance 41 

Financial Performance 2015/16 54 

Further Information 55 

Appendix 1 – Performance indicators 2015/16 56 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

3 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

A Word from the Leader 

 
 
This Performance Report looks at how well we did during 2015/16 in delivering the 
objectives and priorities as outlined in our four year Corporate Plan. We indicated in last 
year’s Performance Report (2014/15) how the financial climate has changed dramatically 
over the last few years, and it is against this same backdrop of reducing budgets and the 
need to make efficiency savings that we again report this year. As such, we are pleased that 
over 52% of our Performance Indicators (PIs) improved during the year and that we are 
aware of and working to improve the 45% that have declined in performance.   
 
We are also pleased that we have continued to deliver many of our promises in the field of 
Adult Services, Education, Economic and Community Development and Housing – our main 
priority areas during 2015/16 – as outlined in the body of the report.  We are equally happy 
with our performance in the corporate and support type services – such as improving our 
customer care and ICT, functions that help support our service delivery and help us become 
a better and more responsive council.    
 
We acknowledge however that there are some areas where we still need to focus on and 
improve.  Although some of these areas are not priorities for us, we are aware that we need 
to provide the best services possible irrespective, and that we are measured and 
benchmarked against other councils in Wales against all our PIs. We have also given sickness 
absence a lot of attention during 2015/16 as we are aware that this is an area that we need 
to improve. We are hopeful that the mitigating actions, new processes and monitoring we 
have put in place will have a positive effect in the longer term. We will however continue to 
focus on performance improvement across all services and across all our PIs during 2016/17 
as we remain committed to ensuring that we become one of the best performing councils in 
Wales and continue to provide the best services possible for the people of Anglesey.   
 
These are difficult times for local authorities in Wales and in the UK as a whole as we 
continue the fine balance between the need to make efficiency savings and provide quality 
services. As Leader, I am aware that we sometimes have to make difficult decisions about 
potential savings, but we are also committed here on Anglesey to explore alternative service 
delivery models that seek to make savings as well as continuing to provide the best services 
possible to the people of Anglesey.  
 
Councillor Ieuan Williams 
Leader 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

4 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

.  ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014-2015 

 INTRODUCTION 

 

The aim for Anglesey Council as stated in our 2013-2017 Corporate Plan is that by 2017 –  

“We will be a professional and well-run council, innovative and outward looking in our approach, 

committed to developing our people and partnerships in order to deliver efficient and effective 

services of good quality, that are highly valued by our citizens” 

We outlined what we would do to deliver our Corporate Plan priorities in our Annual Delivery 

Document 2015-16. This document will outline how we delivered on our promises over the last 

twelve months (2015/16) and demonstrates our willingness and drive to discharge our duty of 

continuous improvement as expected of Local Authorities under the Welsh Government measure 

2009.  

The seven key areas for improvement during 2015-16, as outlined in both our 4 year Corporate Plan 

(2013-2017) and our Annual Delivery Document  (2015/16)  were:- 

1. Transform Older Adult Social Care 

2. Regenerate our Communities and Develop the Economy 

3. Improve Education, Skills and Modernise our Schools 

4. We increase Our Housing Options & Reduce Poverty 

5. Transform our Leisure & Library Provision 

6. Becoming Customer, Citizen & Community Focused 

7. Transform our Information and Communication Technologies (ICT) 

Within this report we will look back at our objectives under the seven key themed areas and 

measure how well we actually did, as well as analyse the performance data that demonstrates and 

supports the achievement of our outcomes both locally and nationally.  

 

 

Page 11



 

5 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Transform Older Adult Social Care 

 

People are living longer and as such, we expect to see an increase in the number of people over 85 

on Anglesey over the next 10 years. The Isle of Anglesey has one of the highest older people’s 

populations in Wales. The number of people with long-term complex conditions including dementia 

is also increasing. In order to provide the necessary level of support required to meet the growing 

complexities in demand (in terms of both finance and workforce) the Council has acknowledged  

that it  needs to change the way we deliver adult social care to ensure that services  are sustainable 

now and can remain so for future generations.   

How did we do this in 2015/16?  

Our Promise: We will develop and establish in collaboration with partners 2 extra care housing 

schemes in the North and centre of the Island with planning for a further extra care housing 

scheme in the South of the Island by : 

What we said we would do 

We will develop and establish, in collaboration with partners, two extra care housing schemes in 

the North and centre of the Island, with planning for a further extra care housing scheme in the 

South of the Island by: 

 Implementing a phased approach in Llangefni by securing build partners, approving final 
designs and starting work on site; as well as completing preparatory work in the North of the 
island 

 Progressing the agenda in the  South of the Island with a decision taken on final proposals 

regarding land sites , approval of a business case, identifying build partners, approval of final 

designs and start of building work 

What we did 

 Agreed on a partner to develop Extra Care in Llangefni. Pennaf will commence work on site 

in Quarter 1 2016/17 with an expected opening date of May 2018 

 Completed an assessment of possible land sites in the South of the Island. Final agreement 

of a land site will be agreed in 2016/17.  

 The council acknowledges that  progress has not been as envisaged in the north of Island but 

is addressing the issue 

 

 

Page 12



 

6 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 

 Our Promise: Improve the range and availability of community based services for older people 

which will reduce the reliance and need for residential care homes by: 

What we said we would do 

 Implementing  the  “A Place to Call Home” Action Plan, which will re-focus on the individual 
and provide Older people with  independent advocacy,  ensure better quality of care or 
support as a result of safeguarding issues when moving directly from hospital to a care home 
or from another care home. This is inclusive of staff training in dementia awareness and 
access to  Mon Enhanced Care 

 Developing, agreeing and beginning to implement the ‘Community Hub’ model , in which the 
broad range of support and services that are provided by local (and often informal) 
communities are enhanced and “joined up” so that improved support and care is provided 
by and through the community that is local to the older person in need 

 Further embed the Single Point of Access model which will support more effective access to 
information, advice and assistance and integrate individuals with other local resources. 

What we did 

 Progress achieved with training in principles of befriending for service providers. Extended 

access to independent advocacy has been in place for consultations. Significant staff training 

in Dementia Awareness has occurred across all sectors. 

 Older People’s Strategy agreed with the Community Hub model a central element. Action 

Plan to implement this is being progressed with plans for 2 further hubs in 2016/17 

 Single Point of Access (SPOA) remains an established model. GP access via on-line referral 

will be achieved early in 2016/17. DEWIS, the  online information system, being populated 

locally 

 

Our Promise: Re-develop our re-ablement service to support and help people to get better and 

regain independence using support plans which are outcome based by: 

What we said we would do 

 Strengthening the market and implementing a programme to externalise homecare further 
whilst developing a specialist model of internal provision 

  Establishing an agreed model of Local Authority homecare provision which will provide  re-

ablement and specialist dementia support 

Page 13



 

7 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

What we did 

 Consultation with providers regarding future model for domiciliary care has been 

completed. 

 Local Authority model of homecare continues to be strengthened with 24 hour care now 

available via the “Night Owls” service. 

 

Our Promise: In partnership with the Health Board, develop joint service delivery and 

management in particular in relation to dementia, older people services in general and support for 

carers by 

What we said we would do 

 Introducing a North Wales specification for the provision of enriched residential care for 

dementia sufferers 

 Embed multi-disciplinary working within our co-located teams in Llanfairpwll, Amlwch and 

Holyhead to ensure we respond to service users’ needs in the community in a timely and 

efficient way. 

 Develop a greater integration of Learning Disability services including consideration of joint 

commissioning and joint budgets 

What we did 

 No agreement achieved to introduce the enriched specification on a regional basis to date 

 Multidisciplinary teams in place, with models of joint working being strengthened. 

 No progress made with regards to LD joint commissioning and joint budgets to date 

 

Performance Information for Adult Services 

The results of relevant Performance Indicators (PI) for Adult Services are outlined in Table 1 (below) 

and analyses both the result for 2015/16 against the previous year and the quartile position of each 

PI. In addition this year, the figure in brackets denotes the position of each PI as compared with all 

21 other Welsh Authorities  

 

 

Page 14



 

8 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 1 

PI Description 

2014/

15 

2015/1

6 

Yr on Yr 

Trend 

Quartile 15/16 

(All Wales rank) 

SCA/001: The rate of delayed transfers of care 

for social care reasons per 1,000 population aged 

75 or over 
1.8 6.63 

 

(18) 

SCA/002a: The rate of older people (aged 65 or 

over) supported in the community per 1,000 

population aged 65 or over at 31 March 

49.5 43.5 
 

(18) 

SCA/002b: The rate of older people (aged 65 or 

over) whom the authority supports in care 

homes per 1,000 population aged 65 or over at 

31 March 

23.28 20.63  (18) 

SCA/007: The percentage of clients with a care 

plan at 31 March whose care plans should have 

been reviewed that were reviewed during the 

year 

92.2 93.6 

 

(2) 

SCA/018a: The percentage of carers of adults 

who were offered an assessment or review of 

their needs in their own right during the year 
92.9 95.3 

 
(9) 

SCA/019: The percentage of adult protection 

referrals completed where the risk has been 

managed 

91.92 93.18 
 

(19) 

SCA/020: The percentage of adult clients who are 

supported in the community during the year 
79.1   

No longer 

collected 

 

 

The Performance Indicators for Adult Services show a very slight change between 2014/15 and 

2015/16. The PI for the number of adults supported in the community is no longer collected 

nationally.  Of the remaining 6 PIs, one is in the top quartile and another one is in the upper middle 

quartile – the only change being a decline in SCA/001: The rate of delayed transfers of care for social 

care reasons per 1,000 population aged 75 or over, where we have moved from the upper middle 

quartile to the lower quartile (from 9th in Wales in 2014/15 to 18th position in 2015/16 , see Table 

2).  Of the 4 PIs that are in the lower quartile – in 18
th
, 18

th,
 18

th
 and 19

nd
 positions across Wales - two 

have however improved in performance (SCA/002b: The rate of older people (aged 65 or over) whom 

the authority supports in care homes per 1,000 population aged 65 or over at 31 March and SCA/019: 

The percentage of adult protection referrals completed where the risk has been managed). 

Page 15



 

9 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The PI in the upper quartile (SCA/007 :The percentage of clients with a care plan at 31 

March whose care plans should have been reviewed that were reviewed during the year) is 

2nd throughout Wales in terms of performance, having also increased from 91.92 to 93.6 

between 2014/15 and 2015/16.. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 

10 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 

Regenerate Our Communities and Develop the 

Economy 

 

The Council is working to bring local communities, social enterprises, businesses and the public 

sector together to agree and progress regeneration priorities, and work in partnership to utilise the 

proposed economic investment to improve quality of life. In order to do this, we need to think 

creatively, pool resources and work collaboratively to improve the lives and opportunities of local 

people. 

The economy is a significant issue for many with new job creation seen as critical by our citizens to 

provide a sound base for improving quality of life. Whilst it is acknowledged that the private sector is 

the main economic driver and wealth creator on the Island, the Council has a role in establishing an 

environment for growth where local businesses can grow and new businesses can be established 

and flourish.  

The Energy Island Programme and more recently designated Enterprise Zone status provides a once 

in a generation opportunity to create substantial new jobs as a result of the planned investment and 

growth potential of the low carbon energy sector We said that we would look at developing schemes 

which increase employment opportunities for young people, improve infrastructure and support the 

supply chain. In addition we stated we would continue to support and develop other key sectors, 

such as tourism, which drive the Island’s economy.  

How did we do this in 2015/16? 

Our Promise: Work with the Welsh Government and other partners to strengthen the 

competitiveness of the island’s economy by improving infrastructure, skills availability and 

supporting local companies by 

What we said we would do 

 Developing 10 projects to capitalise upon local and regional regeneration opportunities  

 Creating 5 new jobs, safeguarding 10 jobs & supporting 10 businesses in Holyhead (new or 

existing) through the Holyhead Investment Fund  

 Collaborating with the public, private and third sectors to improve opportunities for jobs, 

growth and increased prosperity 

 Maximising European and domestic funding opportunities by submitting external funding 

Page 17



 

11 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

applications (including 2014-2020 EU Structural Funds and the Rural Development Plan). 

 Providing support, guidance and advice to 50 island businesses 

What we did 

 Developed 15 business cases / feasibility studies to capitalise upon local and regional 

opportunities 

 Created 6 new jobs, safeguarded 46 jobs and supported 12 businesses  

 Collaborative work ongoing with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB), 

disseminating relevant information to North Wales Stakeholders. Utilising a new Client 

Management System to ensure Anglesey businesses are aware of opportunities, also 

disseminating information through the Economic Development database. 

 5 projects effectively closed during the 2015/2016 financial year (RDP, Sites & Premises, 

Anglesey Coastal Environment, Local Investment Fund, SETS), and  7 funding applications 

submitted to deliver priority service projects / interventions. Ongoing support to the 

development of projects such as the Menai Science Park. NDA Socio-Economic project 

effectively managed and implemented. 

 186 Island businesses received support, guidance or advice during the 2015/2016 financial 

year 

 

Our Promise: Have through its destination management plan support for the visitor economy by 

working with partners to promote Anglesey’s image and distinctive strengths by: 

What we said we would do 

 Increasing tourism visits by 2% (approx. 30,000) through a targeted marketing and 

advertising campaign  

 Establishing 6 new tourist information points in key  settlements on the Island  

 Hosting the Aviva Tour of Britain Grant Depart on the 6th of September 

 Developing the island’s Cruise economy by welcoming  Cruise ships to the Port of Holyhead 

 Working with partners to develop and promote Anglesey’s image and distinctive strengths 

 Supporting and assisting five local tourism events 

 Effectively managing the Council’s Maritime function activities 

 

Page 18



 

12 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

What we did 

 Whilst the target of 2% was not achieved (actual 0.7%) it should be noted that the numbers 

still increased from 1,568M in 2013 to 1,579M in 2014. In addition 88 more jobs have been 

created in the tourism sector between 2013 and 2014. Global marketing for North Wales 

was vastly reduced as all the regional brands ceased (walking, cycling, golf etc.). 

 6 new Tourist Information Points (TIPs) established 

 Aviva Tour of Britain Grand Depart from Beaumaris successfully hosted on the 6th of 

September 2015 

 24 cruise ships docked at the Port of Holyhead during 2015-16, carrying a total of 11,912 

passengers 

 Worked collaboratively through the Destination Management Plan with organisations such 

as the Anglesey Tourism Association and Destination Anglesey Partnership to promote 

Anglesey’s image and distinctive strengths. 

 Supported / assisted local tourism events such as Copperfest, Menai Bridge Seafood Festival 

and Beaumaris Food Festival 

 Ensured that we conformed to the requirements of the Port Marine Safety Code. 

 

Our Promise: Work with partners to overcome infrastructure constraints (for example broadband 

width and mobile technologies) to enable development, investment and job creation  

What we said we would do 

 Assisting Superfast Cymru as and when required with the marketing and promotion of the 

Broadband Scheme on Anglesey 

 Constructing 3 new business units in Llangefni 

 Clearing 0.54 hectares of land in Llangefni for redevelopment  

 Collaborating with Scottish Power Energy Network to improve Anglesey’s electrical 

infrastructure 

 Working with Welsh Water to identify potential improvements to water and sewerage 

infrastructure on Anglesey  

 Collaborating with private sector developers to ensure the island’s residents can capitalise 

upon local and regional opportunities for jobs, growth and prosperity 

 Managing a supply chain programme on behalf of the North Wales Economic Ambition 

Page 19



 

13 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Board (NWEAB)  to ensure the region can capitalise upon opportunities arising from the low 

carbon energy sector 

What we did 

 Co-operated with the Superfast Cymru marketing team to promote the benefits of Superfast 

Broadband to Anglesey residents and businesses. Activities included disseminating 

information and sharing information about relevant events. 

 Three new business units constructed on the Pen-yr.-Orsedd site on Llangefni Industrial 

Estate. 

 0.54 hectares of land in Llangefni cleared for redevelopment (old Môn Training site on the 

Bryn Cefni Business Park) 

 Regular meetings with major utility suppliers to identify / mitigate / prevent potential future 

constraints / barriers for investment 

 Work continues on previous engagement with key private sector developers including 

Hitachi/Horizon to ensure that local labour is utilised wherever possible for the benefit of 

Anglesey residents. 

 Appointed a Regional Programme Manager to the NWEAB  role. Activities in relation to the 7 

Transformational Regional Projects commenced including infrastructure, business support 

and databases 

 

Our Promise: Effectively undertake our planning responsibilities in relation to all major projects on 

Anglesey, ensuring that potential negative impacts are lessened and positive community benefits 

maximised by 

What we said we would do 

 Securing adequate and timely funding through Planning Performance Agreements to enable 

developer contributions to assist statutory planning consenting processes undertaken by 

the Council 

 Maximising the socio-economic benefits of major developments through the statutory 

planning process 

 Co-ordinating and progressing the Energy Island Programme to help secure major energy 

developments and de-risk the projects  

 Identifying, defining and developing  Isle of Anglesey County Council’s  major energy projects 

vision and legacy aspirations  

Page 20



 

14 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 Maintaining collaboration with the Department for Energy and Climate Change and Welsh 

Government 

What we did 

 Secured over £1.4M through Planning Performance Agreements during 2015/2016 to enable 
developer contributions to assist statutory planning consenting processes to be  undertaken 

 Adequate and timely funding secured through Planning Performance Agreements. Capacity 
and resources secured for the Project Management Office. Comprehensive baseline data 
collected to underpin assessments of impacts relating to Horizon Nuclear New Build and 
progress made with regards to the structure of the Local Impact Report. Construction 
Worker Accommodation Position statement being reviewed. Engaged in pre-application 
discussions with developers on all socio-economic matters relating to major developments. 

 Engaged with developers and key stakeholders to provide independent advice and support 
through the Energy Island Programme Strategic Forum and Advisory Board. Internal STEM 
Task and Finish Group established to progress STEM agenda on Anglesey. Supported the 
effective mainstreaming of the EIP Community Health, Cohesion and Safety Work stream 
activities.  

 Renewable energy project at Amlwch Leisure Centre progressed 

 Ongoing engagement with major developers on Voluntary Community Benefit Contributions 
and maintained collaboration with the Department for Energy and Climate Change and the 
Welsh Government. 

 

Our Promise: Drive community regeneration and develop holistic town and community plans for 

the island’s main settlements, prioritising Holyhead, Llangefni and Amlwch by 

What we said we would do 

 Maximising local benefits from proposed major projects through non statutory processes 

and mechanisms (including voluntary community benefit contributions) 

 Ensuring that Holyhead fully benefits from all major Economic regeneration 

opportunities (in line with Welsh Government priorities) by managing and co-ordinating  

the Vibrant & Viable Places (VVP) Programme 

 Levering in £150,000 of private sector investment into Holyhead 

 Successfully supporting the Llangefni Town Centre / Regeneration initiative to improve 

the socio-economic vitality and vibrancy of the town; examples of initiatives include: 

 Developing a Green Transport Plan for Llangefni (including walking and cycling); 

 Progressing the Llangefni Link Road project – decision on planning application 

Page 21



 

15 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

anticipated Spring/Summer 2015 

What we did 

 Ongoing engagement with major developers on Voluntary Community Benefit 
Contributions with  Draft Common Approach Document being prepared with Horizon 
Nuclear Power 

 Holyhead Vibrant and Viable Places (VVP) Programmes co-ordinated, quarterly reports 
and claims produced. Oversaw progress in the People, Places and Homes themes. 

 £169,421 private sector investment levered into Holyhead through the Holyhead 
Investment Fund (HIF) 

 Llangefni Town Centre Regeneration project continuing to be progressed with a number 

of activities held in the Town Centre. Green Transport plan aimed at improving the 

walking and cycling accessibility of the Town being completed with a view to securing 

funding. Link Road planning approved, funding secured and contractors on-site. 

 

There are no National Performance Indicators for Economic & Community Regeneration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

16 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Improve Education, Skills and Modernise our Schools 
 

The Council wants every child, every young person, every learner, wherever they are, irrespective of 

background and circumstance to achieve their full potential and be prepared to play an active role as 

future responsible citizens and community champions. In order to realise this, and to contribute to 

the Welsh Governments ambitious vision for education in Wales, we must raise the standard of 

education on Anglesey. In this respect an accepted priority for the Council was to challenge current 

thinking, encourage innovation and develop a school infrastructure that will drive up standards of 

teaching and attainment, reduce surplus places, improve educational outcomes for children and 

young people and be responsive to our socio-economic and community improvement programme. 

In doing this we have continued to consult and engage widely with parents and the wider 

community. 

How did we do this in 2015/16? 

Our Promise: Continue to raise the standards in educational attainment rates and attendance by 

What we said we would do 

 Making appropriate use of available data to agree challenging targets for all primary and 
secondary schools in relation to achievement at Foundation Stage, expected level and 
expected level+1 at FP, KS2, 3 and KS4; 

 Using core data sets  and national categorisation model  to challenge individual school 
performance; 

 Implementing the revised Partnership Agreement to target schools requiring focused 
support and monitoring as well as schools requiring substantial support. Continuing to 
develop the role of Elected Members in reviewing progress;  

 Utilising a robust escalation process to challenge schools not making sufficient progress, and 
using excellent practitioners (both local and regional) to secure improvement through the 
self-improving (school to school) initiative, and focused Challenge Advisor support and 
challenge for school staff and Governors; 

 Embedding Local Authority expectations that schools implement targeted interventions to 

support all pupils to fulfil their potential, and ensure robust arrangements for standardising 

and moderating assessments at Foundation Phase, KS2 and KS3. 

What we did 

 Worked in partnership with GwE to challenge all schools in ensuring robust target setting 
procedures in order to decrease the gap between targets and performance. 
 

 Improved the effectiveness of the collaboration between the LA and GwE in targeting 
schools that were a cause for concern. 

Page 23



 

17 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 

 Focused Challenge Advisor support, improved communication and collaboration between 
local authority and GwE led to an effective process to scrutinise schools on all levels and to 
hold them to account.  
 

 Shared expectation from LA on schools to improve all pupil performance has led to schools 
becoming more robust in identifying and providing targeted provision for individualised 
attainment.   

 

Our Promise: Develop and agree a school modernisation strategy to guide long term decisions 

which will include  opening our special needs school – Canolfan y Bont and the provision of 2 new 

area primary schools by 

What we said we would do 

  Beginning construction of a new school in the Llannau area and one in Holyhead - pending 
appropriate permissions and  approvals 

 Agreeing approvals and permissions for the Rhosyr (Brynsiencyn / Parc y Bont / Dwyran / 
Newborough / Llangaffo / Bodorgan) area modernisation programme by April 2016. 

         Beginning the consultation process for the Seiriol area (Beaumaris and Llangoed schools, 

including Llanfaes and Llanddona villages). 

What we did 

 Construction started in Holyhead in January 2016 and the school is scheduled to open in 

September 2017. 

 Archaeological finds delayed the start of the construction in Llannau School to May 2016 but 

the school should still open in September 2017. 

 Approval by the Executive Committee obtained on October 19, 2015 to build one new school 

and refurbish 2 others. 

 Executive Committee decided in June 2016 to delay this consultation process until after April 

2019 for Seiriol area, and a consultation process will be started in the Llangefni area instead. 

 

Our Promise: Adopt and deliver a regional skills strategy which enables Anglesey and North Wales 

to up-skill its workforce and align itself with future opportunities by 

What we said we would do 

 Developing further collaboration between Anglesey schools and the Energy Island 

Programme to ensure the best possible environment for high standard teaching and learning 

Page 24



 

18 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

for STEM  (Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths), and other related skills for 

employment in the context of future Energy Island and the Regional Skills Ambition Board 

developments. 

       Further developing the Gwynedd and Môn Post-16 Learning Consortium. 

        Developing  the use of effective post 16 tracking and performance data to identify best 

practice and improve performance at A and AS level. 

        Developing more effective use of e-learning at A and AS level, within the Learning 

Partnership. 

        Continuing to collaborate with Cwmni Prentis Menai to ensure that Anglesey’s young people 

have opportunities to access excellent work-related training and apprenticeships. 

        Undertaking a review of the Youth Service to deliver the demands of the Youth Engagement 

and Progression framework, and ensure a sustainable and efficient youth service for 

Anglesey. 

What we did 

 Strategic group meetings held to identify Terms of Reference and areas to develop and a 
Sub-group met to identify key roles for secondary and primary sector post to promote STEM 
and Energy Island priorities. 

 Ynys Mon and Gwynedd post 16 consortium continues to develop collaborative study areas. 

 Performance data is being developed in line with national changes to performance 
indicators at GCSE and refinement of A and AS level indicators. 

 Only very limited further development of e-learning work has been possible during 2015-
2016 (one course). 

 Collaboration with CLLM, and Cwmni Prentis Menai continues to facilitate opportunities for 
uptake by Ynys Mon pupils 

 The options for the Youth service review is on track and will be presented to the Executive 
for their decision on the preferred option in November 2016 and  be operational by April 
2017. 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

19 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Performance Information for Education 

The results of relevant Performance Indicators (PI) for Education are outlined in Table 3 (below) and 

analyses both the result for 2015/16 (Academic Year 2014/15) against the previous year and the 

quartile position of each PI.  

 

Table 3 

PI Description 
2014/15  2015/16 

Yr on Yr 

Trend 

Quartile 15/16 

(All wales rank) 

EDU/002i: The percentage of all pupils (including 

those in LA care) in any local authority 

maintained school, aged 15 as at the preceding 

31 August who leave education, training or work 

based learning without an approved external 

qualification 

0.3  0.0 

 

(1) 

EDU/002ii: The percentage of pupils in local 

authority care in any local authority maintained 

school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August 

who leave compulsory education, training or 

work based learning without an approved 

external qualification 

 14.3  0.0 

 

(1) 

EDU/003: The percentage of pupils assessed at 

the end of Key Stage 2, in schools maintained by 

the local authority, achieving the Core Subject 

Indicator, as determined by Teacher Assessment 

87.8  91.8  (3) 

EDU/004: The percentage of pupils assessed at 

the end of Key Stage 3, in schools maintained by 

the local authority, achieving the Core Subject 

Indicator, as determined by Teacher Assessment 

83.6  84.5  (9) 

EDU/006ii: The percentage of pupils assessed, in 

schools maintained by the local authority, 

receiving a Teacher Assessment in Welsh (first 

language) at the end of Key Stage 3 

67.2  64.8  (3) 

EDU/011: The average point score for pupils 

aged 15 at the preceding 31 August, in schools 

maintained by the local authority 

598.3  571.7 
 

(6) 

Page 26



 

20 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

EDU/015a: The percentage of final statements of 

special education need issued within 26 weeks 

including exceptions 

38.5  32.5 
 

(21) 

EDU/015b: The percentage of final statements of 

special education need issued within 26 weeks 

excluding exceptions 

84.6  75.0 
 

(21) 

EDU/016a: Percentage of pupil attendance in 

primary schools 
94.6  94.7 

 
(17) 

EDU/016b: Percentage of pupil attendance in 

secondary schools 
93.4  93.5 

 
(16) 

EDU/017: The percentage of pupils ages 15 at the 

preceding 31st August, in schools maintained by 

the local authority who achieved the level 2 

threshold including a GCSE grade A*-C in English 

or Welsh first language and mathematics 

53.8  56.9 
 

(12) 

 

In terms of Education PIs, the overall picture is very positive and shows an overall 

improvement in 7 out of the 11 relevant PIs between 2013/14 and 2014/15. In addition, 5 of 

the PIs are now in the upper quartile, which is a significant improvement between 2014/15 

and 2015/16. For example, EDU/002i:: The percentage of all pupils (including those in LA 

care) in any local authority maintained school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August who 

leave education, training or work based learning without an approved external qualification 

has moved from the bottom quartile to the top quartile to be the best in Wales in 2015/16 

(Table 4). We are also pleased that  EDU/011: The average point score for pupils aged 15 at 

the preceding 31 August, in schools maintained by the local authority sees us retain our 

position within the top six authorities in Wales (Table 5) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

21 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 4 

 

Table 5 

 

 

 As a small Local Authority in terms of overall population (as compared to most other local 

authority areas in Wales) we are aware that small baseline and core figures for some of our 

PIs can usually lead to quite volatile fluctuations.  

Page 28



 

22 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

There has been a further decline in the PI which shows the percentage of final statements of 

special education need issued within 26 weeks excluding exceptions (Table 6), from 84.6% 

in 2014/15 to 75% in 2015/16.  

Table 6 

 

Another example where small fluctuations can lead to quite dramatic quartile changes can 

be seen in Pupil attendance in primary Schools   – where moving from 94.6% in 2014/15 to 

94.7% in 2015/16 means moving from the lower middle  quartile to the bottom quartile 

despite a slight increase in performance in the PI itself (EDU/016a and EDU/16b). 

 

 

Page 29



 

23 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Increase Our Housing Options & Reduce Poverty 

 

Quality and affordable accommodation is important to ensure that all our citizens live in a safe and 

appropriate home that allows them to find jobs, access leisure amenities, education and to gain 

associated social and economic benefits that they both desire and deserve. With major global energy 

companies working towards a significant investment in Anglesey we will continue to work with 

landlords in the social and private sector to maximise the number and quality of homes for 

contractors. We said we would continue our efforts to develop the housing market for local people 

with particular emphasis being placed on working with partners to plan, develop and establish a 

greater number of affordable housing options for our citizens.   

How did we do this during 2014/15?   

Our Promise: Work with partners to modernise and co-ordinate the benefits advice service so as to 

improve independence and work towards our anti-poverty strategy and mitigate the effects of 

welfare reform by: 

What we said we would do 

 Establishing stronger links between anti-poverty funded programmes e.g.  Môn Communities 

First, Families First, and Flying Start through a Common Outcomes Framework pilot;  and 

maximise community benefits opportunities between Môn Communities First, LIF and Viable 

and Vibrant Places programme [VVP] 

 Providing advice and support services to help households protect and maximise their income 

 Awarding discretionary housing payments to households impacted by Welfare Reform 

 Leading and supporting the implementation of the Corporate Welfare Reform Action Plan to 

reduce the likelihood of residents experiencing poverty and homelessness 

 Supporting the implementation of Universal Credit, through offering support to new claimants 

 Finding ways to overcome landlord concerns about Welfare Reform issues especially payment 

of Housing Benefit. 

 Placing a greater emphasis on preventing homelessness. 

What we did 

 Continued to support the work of preventative intervention programmes such as Families First 
and Flying Start and promoted the closer alignment with other tackling poverty programmes, 
Communities First and Supporting People. We took part, as the only Local Authority in North 
Wales in a Common Outcomes Framework pilot directed by Welsh Government with lessons 
learnt from this will help drive the workplan for 2016-2017 for closer working, tackling poverty 

Page 30



 

24 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

and promoting better targeting of resources in preventative intervention programmes with 
children and families.  

 

 Seen great success through getting people into work, training and volunteering placements, 
through a combination of LIFT, Communities 4 Work, Trac and core work of Communities First. 
 

 Welfare Reform changes require those on low incomes and / or benefits to better manage 
their own finances to ensure they are able to meet their bills and commitments and Officers 
have been trained to provide initial advice to assist those struggling to maintain their tenancies 
and pay priority bills and referring on to more specialist agencies if necessary.  We went out to 
tender to find a partner agency to provide specialist debt caseworker support in the Council 
and the project officer started in April 2016.  
 

 Supported food-bank initiatives, including hosting collection bins at the main Council building 
to encourage staff and visitors to make donations.  We have worked with the Credit Union 
encouraging take-up, for people who are unable to open bank accounts and also the Wales 
Illegal Money Lending Unit encouraging the reporting of loan sharks.   
 

 We have co-ordinated a free school meals take-up campaign by working with schools and 
parents, to highlight the benefits not only financial for families and the schools but also the 
nutritional value.   
 

 Continued to deal with a significant number of applications for Discretionary Housing Payments 
[DHP] from Tenants who are facing a reduction in their Housing Benefit, particularly due to the 
‘Bedroom Tax’.  With a reduction in the DHP budget, there will be less access to emergency 
funds, therefore better signposting and money management is crucial in financial 
sustainability.  Our in-house welfare benefits unit this year reported a record financial 
attainment figure for clients helped during the year – the majority of which will be spent in the 
local economy. 
 

 Launched a new website on benefits, and purchased 8 information kiosks which have been 
located across the Island. 
 

 A new Tackling poverty policy and action plan will be developed during 2016-2017. 
 

 We have raised awareness of Welfare Reform, particularly the roll-out of Universal Credit 
affecting Housing Benefit claimants and engaged with partners to ensure that both claimants 
and landlords are supported through the application process.  Universal Credit became live in 
Anglesey in September 2015 and currently we have 17 claimants. Demand for support and 
guidance will increase over the next period when Universal Credit is rolled-out to all in receipt 
of 6 key benefits.  
 

 We have trained staff to help citizens looking for Job search support, making on-line benefit 
claims, personal budgeting support, and digital inclusion surgeries as part of an agreement 
funded by the Department of Works and Pension.  We have also worked with partners such as 
CAB and Nest / Nyth with regards to a range of tackling fuel poverty initiatives in rural 
communities. 
 

 Working with Private Rented Sector Landlords and Tenants, we entered into a partnership with 

Page 31



 

25 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Wales Co-operative, as part of Your Money, Your home project, to support both, and raise 
awareness of various incentives available (e.g., direct payments of Housing Benefit to Landlords 
of vulnerable tenants) A presentation was also given by the Financial Inclusion Officer to the 
Anglesey Landlord Forum, which was attended by in excess of 150 landlords.  This resulted in a 
number of additional referrals. 

 

Our Promise: Increase the affordable housing options island wide and bring empty homes back into 

use by 

What we said we would do 

 Completing  24 one and two bed housing units funded through Small Homes grant 

 Completing 34 Housing Units through Social Housing Grant Scheme and Housing Finance Grant 

 Acquiring an additional 10 Council housing units  

 Bringing 60 long term empty properties back into use 
 

What we did 

 With our partners, delivered  an additional 40 affordable homes, and achieved this through a 

combination of Welsh Government grants [Social Housing Grant, Small Homes Grant, Housing 

Finance Grant I and Viable and Vibrant Programme funding], and finance arranged by 

Registered Social Landlords.   

 For the first time in over 30 years the Council acquired 9 ex-Right to Buy Council Houses, which 

had been empty long-term.   

 Through a combination of advice, financial incentives and assistance, and enforcement work, 

the Council brought an additional 86 properties back into use as much needed family homes. 

 

Our Promise: Explore options to support young people to enter the housing market by 

What we said we would do 

 Assisting 8 households through Anglesey Home Buy scheme  

What we did 

 Assisted 6 households to buy their first homes through our Anglesey Homebuy scheme, which 

is administered by Grŵp Cynefin.  We also saw a boost in the figures of applications onto the 

Tai Teg affordable housing register. 

 

 

Page 32



 

26 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Our Promise: Work with partners to support apprenticeship opportunities for young people by  

What we said we would do 

 Creating 10 job opportunities / apprenticeships through the construction of affordable housing 

schemes 

 Creating job opportunities / apprenticeships through our Council housing capital plan, 

investing over £9.8 million during 2015-2016 on planned maintenance, fire risk management, 

central heating works, environmental works and remodelling of existing properties 

What we did 

 Continued to improve and modernise Council Tenants’ homes by investing over £6.7m 

£262,797.11) in capital works.  By doing this, evidence shows that such investment improves 

the health, economic, educational attainment, job prospects, social and environmental 

prospects for both households and their communities.  This would not have been achieved 

without the close working relationship we have with Tenants, Môn Tenants and Officer Voice, 

perspective Tenants from the Council’s common housing register for social housing, local 

Elected Members, partners and other services across the Council. 

 Through the construction of affordable housing schemes, 3 trainee positions and 4 jobs were 

created.  Through the Council housing capital plan works, 6 apprenticeships and 8 jobs were 

created 

 

Our Promise: Support those at risk of becoming homeless and homeless individuals to find 

permanent homes by: 

What we said we would do 

 Sourcing 10  additional properties from Private landlords per quarter through use of Anglesey 
Landlord Incentive Package and establishing a comprehensive database of landlords operating 
on the island 

 Increasing the numbers of landlords on Anglesey Housing Services’ database by a minimum of 
20 per quarter 

 Granting Planning Permission for 20 new affordable homes 

What we did 

 Preventing homelessness continues to be a priority for the Council and we have seen the 

establishment of a new Housing Options Team which provides a more efficient service and has 

already demonstrated a high success rate for prevention of homelessness.  The Team has been 

actively developing more incentives for local people to access affordable housing for rent in 

the private rented sector – a possibility for potentially homeless households to prevent 

becoming homeless, following the Housing (Wales) Act 2014. A number of Landlord incentives 

Page 33



 

27 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

have been developed including rent in advance and cashless bonds and the introduction of low 

level housing support for vulnerable tenants. 

 By the end of quarter 2, 2015-2016 a total of 45 additional landlords were recruited onto the 

database and we will continue to work with Private Rented Sector Landlords through the 

Private Sector Landlord Forum, through the statutory requirement to register with Rent Smart 

Wales. 

 

Performance Information for Housing 

The results of relevant Performance Indicators (PI) for Housing are outlined in Table 7 

(below) and analyses both the result for 2015/16 against the previous year and the quartile 

position of each PI. 

Table 7 

PI Description 
2014/15  

Yr on Yr 

Trend 

Quartile 15/16 

(All Wales rank) 

PSR/002: The average number of calendar 

days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities 

Grant 

229 239 
 

(12) 

PSR/004: The percentage of private sector 

dwellings that had been vacant for more 

than 6 months at 1 April that were 

returned to occupation during the year 

through direct action by the local 

authority 

13.15 10.98 

 

(2) 

PLA/006b: The number of additional 

affordable housing units provided during 

the year as a percentage of all additional 

housing units provided during the year 

39   
No Longer 

collected by WG 

 

There are now only two directly comparable PIs for Housing, and both are related to Private 

Sector Renewal. We are within the upper middle quartile and around the Wales average for 

one of these PIs (PSR/004) and have slipped from the upper middle quartile to the lower 

middle quartile for the other (PSR/002), and  both have declined slightly in their performance 

from 2014/15 (Table 8 & 9) 

 

 

Page 34



 

28 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 8 

 

 

Table 9 

 

Whilst not a Housing but a Planning PI (Table 10)  this still relates to the corporate plan 

objective of supplying affordable housing and shows that we are in the top quartile, having 

moved from  11th position to 6TH between 2014/15 and 2015/16.  

 

Page 35



 

29 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

30 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Transform our Leisure & Library Provision 

 

We have acknowledged that Sport and leisure facilities play a significant part in the health of the 

community and in increasing the self-confidence of people. We are working towards adopting a 

more integrated approach to wellbeing in the future which would enable the role of sport and 

leisure to be reviewed and re-defined. As the role of community and other groups increase in its 

provision, we aspire to ensure that our leisure offer is fit-for-purpose and delivering the best value 

for money possible as we seek to improve the health and wellbeing of our citizens. 

We also indicated our wish to have a presence at the heart of communities with our library provision 

which meant more partnership working and shared premises, to give local people improved, 

simplified and seamless access to the information and services they need.  

 
How did we do this in 2015/16? 
 

Our Promise: Develop and implement a medium term leisure strategy to guide decision making 
which will decrease the need for council investment over the life of this plan by 

What we said we would do 

 Implementing  key projects outlined in the 2014 - 2017 Leisure Plan  

 Increasing participation numbers at our Leisure Centres  

 Investing in more flexible, fit for the future facilities in response to changing customer needs 

 Transferring the outdoor facilities in Holyhead to alternative management organisations  

 Developing and implementing a Leisure Customer Care Improvement Programme 

 Delivering a mix of outreach activities to increase attendances and improve participation 

What we did 

 Established a Commercial Leisure Manager who has been in post since 1st July 2015. 

 New Chip & Pin Capability & Statistical Analysis Software installed in 2015-16.  New 
Homeportal (Parent Portal) in place since January 2016 where parents can now track their 
children’s swimming lesson progress online. 

 Capital investment used to refurbish, update facilities (sports hall, pool changing rooms and 
fitness room)  to address negative perceptions and meet customer expectations and 
demands 

 Customer Care Improvement Programme in place which links in to the new Marketing plan. 

Page 37



 

31 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 Further review of Sports Development took place following confirmation of Sport Wales’s 
funding priorities for 2016-17.   

 Work progressed on the outsourcing of five outdoor facilities in the Holyhead area and 
Llangefni Golf Course and Driving Range was  transferred to third sector in 2015 

 Achieved 457,835 participants at Anglesey Leisure Centres during 2015/2016.  

 Capital improvements at Holyhead, Llangefni and Amlwch Leisure Centres undertaken. 
Which included an extension to the Plas Arthur fitness room, development of café at 
Amlwch Leisure Centre, development of multi-purpose room into weights room at Amlwch, 
improvement of wet changing facilities at Holyhead Leisure Centre and the main hall surface. 

 Progressed work on the outsourcing of five outdoor facilities in the Holyhead area.  

 New Leisure Customer Care Improvement Programme adopted and implemented which 
Increased focus on customer satisfaction and quality of experience when visiting / 
participating in Anglesey Leisure Centres. Leisure staff has also been trained on Customer 
Care matters and the social media aspect have been developed further to increase 
engagement with customers. 

 132,000 young people participated in sports development / outreach activity programmes 
during 2015/2016. Excellent work is continuing in schools and the Young Ambassadors 
scheme is flourishing. School Sports survey released in summer 2015 showed that 
participation figures for youngsters have increased from 38% in 2013 to 50% in 2015. 

 
 
 

Our Promise: Interlink our indoor sports hall type facilities with our secondary school provision 
and explore with external community providers to run the facilities in the evening, weekends and 
school holidays by 

What we said we would do 

 Adopting a more commercial approach to the management of facilities and provision of 

activities at Amlwch, Holyhead, Llangefni and Menai Bridge Leisure Centres 

What we did 

 Made new and additional Direct Debit options available to customers. Improved facilities at 

the Leisure Centre offering value for money direct debit packages. Change in opening times 

and increase of options of fitness classes now sees Leisure Centres responding to 

requirements of members with substantial increase between April 2015 and March 2016 in 

Direct Debit income.  

 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

32 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Our Promise: Encourage to develop and support the provision of sport and leisure activities within 
communities, by communities by 

What we said we would do 

 Successfully transfer the management of Llangefni Golf Course and Driving Range to 

alternative management organisation (until April 2017) 

What we did 

 Llangefni Golf Course and Driving Range transferred to third sector in 2015 

 
 
 

Our Promise: Explore options and implement a revised Library provision model by 

What we said we would do 

 Gaining approval for the initial Library transformation models, undertaking public 

consultation and agreeing the preferred model for delivery from April 2016. April 2017 

What we did 

 One round of public consultation has been completed this year, in addition to consulting 

with community and town councils and other community groups and third parties. 

 Approval for the preferred costed models by the Executive early in 2017, if negotiations with 

interested parties for partnership working have been completed. 

 

Our Promise: Explore options surrounding the delivery of our cultural heritage sites and 
implement (if applicable) new management arrangements by 

What we said we would do 

 Gaining approval for the initial Heritage transformation models, undertaking public 

consultation and agreeing the preferred model for delivery from April 2016    April 2017 

What we did 

 Offered opportunities for expressing interest and submitting business proposals to 

community and town councils and other third parties. Further discussions are taking place 

with community groups to encourage partnership working to ensure sustainability of these 

sites to the future. Any viable options will be tested and presented to the Executive early in 

2017, if negotiations with interested parties for partnership working have been completed. 

 

 

Page 39



 

33 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Performance Information for Leisure and Libraries 

The only PI for Leisure, and Libraries appear in Table 12 (below) and shows us at 16th 

poisition in Wales – from 12th position last year with a slight reduction in performance from 

8,434 in 20914/15 to 7,457 in 2015/16. 

Table 11 

PI Description 
2014/15  

Yr on Yr 

Trend 

Quartile 14/15 

(All Wales rank) 

LCS/002(b): The number of visits to local 

authority sport and leisure centres during the 

year where the visitor will be participating in 

physical activity, per 1,000 population 

8434 7,457  (16) 

LCL/001b: The number of visits to Public Libraries 

during the year, per 1,000 population 

 

4166 4,053  (19) 

 

Table 12 

The single PI for Libraries shows that we have increased the number of visits to public libraries from  4,024 t 

The single PI for Libraries shows a decrease in the number of visits to public libraries from  

4,166 to 4,053 per 1,000 population, and sees us stay at 19th position on an all Wales basis. 

,166 per 1,000 population, and from 22nd to 19th position in 2014/15 respectivley  

Table 15 

Page 40



 

34 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 Becoming Customer, Citizen & Community Focused 

 

We stated that we still have a long way to go on standardising and simplifying processes and through 

our work with other Councils we envisaged securing further efficiencies in our supporting functions 

and better resilience for specialist services and scarce skills.  We stated that an essential part of 

transforming our Council will be listening to what our citizens, service users and businesses think – 

and acting on it. Over the past two years we have demonstrated a real commitment in improved 

service provision which will only get better. We also said that we would maximise our bilingual 

communication techniques through the use of social media such as Facebook and Twitter as well as 

traditional face to face focus groups, citizen panels and public roadshows. 

How did we do this in 2015/16? 

Our Promise: Develop, agree and sign up to a robust and valid customer charter which in particular 

sets out our expectation of staff in dealing with customers  

What we said we would do 

 Delivering   project to contribute to the corporate aim of establishing an excellent customer, 
citizen and community focus. Building on the adoption of the customer service charter for 
the Council. We will be ensuring that all services will be meeting the service charter 
standards and that monitoring arrangements will be in place to ensure continuity of good 
practise. The standards will be - 

o Welcome you when you enter the Council 
o Aim see those of you with appointments within 10 minutes 
o Aiming to provide the best possible service within available resources 
o Solving problems with a 'can do' of attitude 
o Answer telephone calls within 5 rings when our facilities are open 
o Respond to the call bilingually and then in your preferred language 
o Aim to answer your letters, faxes or e-mails within 15 working days 
o Encourage communication via email 

 Developing a tool to attract and retain a flexible workforce to meet our expectation and 
values for our organisation going forward. Recruiting the right people and modifying the 
attitudes of existing staff through value alignment questions for new and existing staff  

 Developing  and strengthening  our engagement with and involvement of Anglesey citizens 
in the Council’s decision making and accountability processes by Supporting the 4 year 
“Gwrandewch/Listen” Community Voices Project partnership so as  to increase engagement 
of individuals and communities of interest in the design and delivery of public services on 
Anglesey 

What we did 

 The Council conducted a customer services themed mystery shopper exercise during quarter 

Page 41



 

35 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

3 of 2015/16.  The findings of this exercise were mainly positive and an action plan was 

created to address certain shortfalls.  The intention is to repeat the exercise during 2016/17. 

 During the year work was undertaken in collaboration with a group of managers to prepare 

and refine a suite of rotational questions which will form the basis of the value alignment 

tool ‘Putting People First’.  A pilot of the tool will be conducted during  2016/17 

 

Our Promise: Explore the quality of the buildings in which customers receive their service, aiming 

to achieve a consistent standard across the Council that presents the right image for the services 

available  

What we said we would do 

 The smarter working programme consolidating our main and some outlying receptions to 
provide a one stop shop approach to serve customer needs at the point of contact.  

 

What we did 

 The Smarter Working Programme is currently re-modelling the Councils main reception to 
establish the One Stop Shop, entitled “Cyswllt/Contact Môn”  

 All internal receptions will be closed and “Cyswllt Môn” will be first point of contact for the 
Authority  

 Generic Advisors have been employed to support, advise and signpost within Cyswllt Môn, 
which is due to open  Autumn 2016 

 Relocated the Learning Service (Education) into the Main Council building making it more 
accessible to our customers in a modern office environment. 

 

Our Promise: Ensure the promotion of the Welsh language and Welsh culture through the 

implementation of a developed Welsh Language strategy  

What we said we would do 

 Identifying the main priorities for the Welsh Language Strategy through regular meetings of 

the Welsh Language Forum  

What we did 

 The Welsh Language Measure (Wales) 2011 enables Welsh Ministers to set standards of 

conduct relating to the Welsh Language.  In the Compliance Notice on the Final Standards, 

Standards 145 and 146 relating to the creation of a Welsh Language Strategy were set.  In 

Page 42



 

36 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

order to ensure compliance, the County Council is required to adopt a Welsh Language 

Strategy and publish it on its website by 30 September, 2016. 

 This Strategy will outline the proposed approach towards promoting the Welsh Language 

and facilitating its wider use within the area.  It will include a target for increasing or 

maintain the number of Welsh speakers by the end of the five year period concerned.   

 The Anglesey Strategic Language Forum has been working intentionally over the past few 

months to create a partnership Welsh Language Strategy (draft) which sets out the vision 

and an action plan for the first year.  The intention is to create an action plan for the second 

year before the end of the Strategy’s first year.  It will be necessary, five years after the 

publication of the Strategy, to publish a revised version and an assessment of its attainment. 

It will be the responsibility of the Strategic Language Forum to monitor progress against set 

targets 

 

There are no National Performance Indicators for this section

Page 43



 

37 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Transform our Information and Communication 

Technologies (ICT) 

 

We stated that in transforming our services, the Council’s resources will be used more efficiently and 

effectively to achieve targets identified and plan accordingly. We proposed to  become a 24/7 

organisation by using channels such as websites and social media, methods already being used by 

our customers to access many of their other personal or business needs such as banking or 

shopping. This way, our customers could access what they need to, when they need to, wherever 

they are and in the language they prefer.  

All interaction, internal and external, will be enabled electronically. Face to face and other routes 

will exist, for those who need it. By changing the systems it will free staff up to get on and ‘do their 

job’ within clear boundaries and using processes which are robust yet agile. Our systems will support 

our priorities and rigorous rationalisation will ensure that those that do not are no longer used. 

How did we do this in 2015/16? 

Our Promise: Enable staff to access the computer systems they need securely from any location  

What we said we would do 

 Implementation of the Smarter Working Programme that will include the development of 
robust and sustainable solutions to enable remote access which will mean that staff will be 
able to work more flexibly to meet the needs and demands of our customers.   

 

What we did 

 A range of new technologies have been successfully implemented to deliver the aspirations 

of the council in relation to Smarter Working.  The emphasis has been to ensure that the 

technology is responsive to changing demands from services and customers and that the 

technology can be accessed or deployed from any location. 

Some of the technologies delivered over the past 12 months: 

  Wi-fi flooded across council buildings 
  Easy Public and visitor access through NetMON 
  Secure Follow Me Printing 
  Microsoft Lync (Skype) 
  Citrix and Secure Remote Access 
  Etarmis for remote clocking on/off 
  Mobile working and Bring Your Own Device (BYOD) 
  Mobile Iron/EE contract 
  Electronic Document Management 

Page 44



 

38 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

  Strategy in place 

 

Our Promise: Enable customers and citizens to communicate with the Council electronically over 

the web at a time and place convenient to them by 

What we said we would do 

 Developing and enhancing the single financial assessment service. 

 Establishing e-forms system for Social Care & Corporate use. 

 Establishing  e-form systems for Revenue & Benefits  and  review for corporate use.  

 Developing further the use of  e-forms for members to register interests, e forms for 
electoral registration and administration of elections. 

 

We expect that this will empower our customers to access our services when they need them most 

in the way that they want to receive it. 

What we did 

 APPMôn has been implemented to provide citizens with a comprehensive, bilingual self-

service mobile application, which can be used to contact the council, report issues, access 

information and news updates and submit applications.  

 Bilingual Eform technology has been implemented successfully to deliver the council’s 

aspirations in relation to Channel Shift and Customer Excellence and Bilingual Social Care 

forms for both public and professional use in cooperation with Health and Medrwn Môn 

 Project started to implement online booking and payment for Leisure Services 

 Project started to implement online payments for school meals 

 

Our Promise: Ensure services use technology more widely to provide more efficient and effective 

service delivery by 

What we said we would do 

 Driving the following initiatives forward : –  
o Financial Management system 
o Dynamic Web enabled Human Resource system 
o Performance & Project Management system  
o Records Management system 
o Systems that facilitate  Remote Access  
o Recruitment and retention tool  (RRT) 

What we did 

Page 45



 

39 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 The IT Division supported the re-launch of the Financial Management System 

 Following the review of the HR/Payroll system ICT coordinated the moving forward of this 

project with the supplier and internal stakeholders to ensure we had a specification of 

requirements that was accepted by the supplier and met the needs of the organisation.  A 

new contract is in place and the formal implementation of the project will begin during 

2016/17. 

 A Electronic Document and Records Management Strategy is in place in order to take 

forward EDRMS within the organisation and has a pragmatic approach to ensure it meets 

the business needs whist being cost effective.   

 A sophisticated, secure remote access solution has been implemented and will be rolled out 

during 2016/17 

 Work started to make Geographical Information system (GIS) corporately available using 

open source best of breed application technology.  This is part of a wider strategy to make 

GIS information more widely available throughout the organisation. 

 Work underway to integrate the Local Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG) with back office 

business systems  which is part of a wider strategy towards the LLPG being a corporate asset 

with the aim of achieving a single, consistent, authority wide address database 

 

Our Promise: Seek out and embrace emerging ICT technologies to meet current and future needs 

of the Council and the Island’s citizens by 

What we said we would do 

 Reviewing, re-drafting  and adopting  a comprehensive  ICT Strategy document that will 
outline the authority’s approach to and use of technology to ensure service delivery and 
secure business improvements 

 Developing and delivering  a robust backup solution to support the business critical IT 
systems which will under-pin the Authority’s transformation  

 

What we did 

 IT are developing and delivering a robust Disaster Recovery solution to support the business 
critical IT systems which will under-pin the Authority’s transformation. We are also replacing 
the corporate backup solution with a more comprehensive solution. 

 

 The authority has procured a replacement mobile telephony provider which provides far 
better data coverage across the island and reduced data and telephony costs.   
 

 Housing services are currently using mobile technology which was successfully deployed 

Page 46



 

40 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

during this period which enables staff to go directly to jobs or clients without the need to 
continuously visit Council locations to collect new information / job cards. 

 

 The organisation’s aging core infrastructure has been replaced with state of the art 
advanced technologies, procured efficiently with significant cost benefits that will provide 
the bedrock of infrastructure to support a forward programme of digital services planned by 
the Council. 

 

There are no National Performance Indicators for this section 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

41 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Corporate Performance 

 

This is the third year since the Council adopted the Corporate Scorecard – a method which looks 

at how we are delivering on both our corporate priorities and monitors the corporate health type 

indicators that underpin all the council’s work. The final scorecard for 2015/16 looks at the year-

end data for the 2015/16 financial year, and portrays the position of the Council against its 

operational objectives for the year. 

It seeks to demonstrate that the continuous improvement agenda which the current 

Administration has established is being realised: 

 Staff sickness rates have increased slightly - end of year data shows 12 days per full 

Time Equivalent (FTE) which is slightly up from the same period last year (11.51 per 

FTE).   We acknowledge therefore that we still have a lot to do to compare favourably 

with most other LAs in Wales. (we are currently 19th out of the  22 Welsh Local Authorities 

in terms of sickness ) 

 

 Our short term sickness for the end of the 2015/16 (Quarter 4) of  3383 days shows 

improvement  from the same period last year (3887 days). The recommendations agreed 

and enacted upon to tackle short term sickness continue to show improvement as can be 

seen from the table below (Table 13) 

 

Table 13 

 

 Analysis of the associated data shows that one of the main reasons for not achieving our 

corporate target was due to Long Term Sickness rates which are increasing..   

Page 48



 

42 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 Associated with sickness rates is the ‘management’ of sickness. An integral part of the 

management process within the Council is staff’s compliance with corporate sickness 

policies which includes the undertaking of return to work interviews (RTWs) and 

Attendance Review Meetings (ARMs) which continue to have a positive effect  

 

 Regarding Customer Complaints Management, by the end of 2015-16 59 Complaints 

were received and 5 Stage 2 Complaints in Social Services. All of the complaints have 

received a response and of these complaints 14 were upheld in full, 7 were partially 

upheld whilst the remaining 38 were not upheld. 

 

 

OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Non-Corporate Plan PIs) 

Looking at other PIs not directly linked to our Corporate Plan priorities we are aware that 

performance has slightly improved from 2014/15 in one area where we were once the best in 

Wales for a number of years (waste management). The PI for waste sent to landfill (WMT/004b) 

moved from the lower quartile to the lower middle quartile between 2014/15 and 2015/16 from 

20th position to 13th position (out of 22 Local Authorities). Municipal waste collected and reused or 

recycled remains in the lower middle quartile during 2015/16 but remains fairly steady, moving 

from 12th to 13th  position . See Tales 14 and 15. 

 

HIGHWAYS & WASTE MANAGEMENT 

Table 14 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

43 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 15 

 

 

  

           In terms of Highways PIs there has been an improvement in THS/012: The percentage of 

principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) roads and non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor 

condition from 10.9 in 2014/15 to 8.9 in 2015/16 – with Anglesey’s position moving from 18th to 

14th position and moving from the lower to the lower middle quartile. Similarly, the PI for the 

principal (A) roads in overall poor condition (THS/012a) has also improved from 3.7 to 2.7, and 

has moved from the lower middle quartile to the upper middle quartile (and from 13th to 7th 

position) between 2014/15 and 2015/16. Similarly, the PIs for non-principal B and C roads in 

overall poor condition (THS/012b and THS/012c) have also improved (B roads moving to the top 

quartile and 6th position across Wales), which means that all Highways PIs have shown 

significant improvement over the last 12 months.    

In terms of Street scene (cleanliness of roads etc.) the two relevant PIs have shown an 

improvement with one remaining in 12th position (STS/005b: The percentage of highways 

inspected of a high or acceptable standard of cleanliness) and the PI for fly tipping (STS/006: 

The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 working days) moving from  the 

lower middle quartile to the top quartile (and 2nd position throughout Wales)  between and 

2014/15 and 2015/16 (Table 16). 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

44 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 16 

. 

 

PUBLIC PROTECTION 

We can see that we are performing well in relation to issues of public protection, being the  best 

in Wales for food establishments….“broadly compliant with food hygiene standards” (PPN/009) 

with 98.67 of our food establishments achieving this standard   

 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

In Children’s Services 3 out of the 11 PIs are in the top quartile, with three in the bottom quartile 

with a further 2 in the upper middle quartile and 3 in the lower middle quartiles. This is an overall 

decline in performance based on 2014/15 with only 3 of the 11 PIs showing an improvement in 

2015/16, as compared to 9 in 2014/15. Caution needs to be taken however and as indicated in 

previous years some of the PIs are of a low baseline figure which can mean small fluctuations 

that result in quite dramatic changes in quartile positions either way. For example we are the 

sixth in Wales for being in contact with young people who were formerly looked after and who are 

engaged in education, training or employment (Table 17). However, the percentage of young 

people formerly looked after with whom the authority is in contact at the age of 19 (SCC/33e) has 

changed from 100% in 2013/14 to 50% in 2014/15 and has risen again to again to 57.1% in 

2015/16 emphasising the fluctuations in very small baseline numbers (Table 18).  

 

 

 

Page 51



 

45 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 17 

 

Table 18 

 

We are pleased that we remain 2nd throughout Wales for SCC/011b: The percentage of initial 

assessments that were completed during the year where there is evidence that the child has 

been seen alone by the Social Worker, with performance improving from 83.6 to 84.5 between 

2014/15 and 2015/16 (Table 19) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 

46 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 19 

 

However, we are concerned that both SCC/045: (The percentage of reviews of looked after 

children, children on the Child Protection Register and children in need carried out in line with the 

statutory timetable) and SCC/025: The percentage of statutory visits to looked after children due 

in the year that took place in accordance with regulations have both declined in performance over 

the last 12 months. With SCC/045 moving from the upper middle quartile to the lower middle 

quartile and SCC/025 moving from the top quartile to the lower middle quartile within that time 

period.  

OVERALL SUMMARY & MITIGATING ACTIONS 

In terms of a general analysis of all our performance Indicators (PIs), inclusive of those not part 

of our Corporate Plan priorities), the main messages for 2015/16 is as indicated in Table 20..This 

shows that almost 52.5% of our PIs improved during 2015/16 whilst 45% declined and a further 

2.5% have not changed between 2014/15 and 2015/16. Table 21 further shows that we rank 14 

across Wales in terms of those PIs that improved during this particular year as compared to the 

previous year  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



 

47 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table  20 

 

 

Table 21 

 

However, and if we analyse Table 22  and Table 23 (below) we can see that there has been a 

slight decline in the number of Performance Indicators in the top quartile over the last three years 

– from 16 in 2013/14 to 12 in 2015/16. There has been very little change in the number of PIs in 

the bottom quartile  – from 12 in 2013/14 to 13 in 2015/16. There has been hardly any change  in 

the number of PIs in the upper middle quartile over the last three years, with the number  

remaining constantly between 6/7. There has however been an increase of 5 in the numbers of 

PIs in the lower middle quartile since 2013/14. Overall therefore, we believe that our performance 

indicators has declined slightly when compared with the position three years ago, but that 

2015/16 shows a slight improvement in quartile positions if compared to 2014/15.    

 

Page 54



 

48 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

 

Table  22 

 

 

Table 23  

 

Table 24 below represent a picture of the Council’s performance across all services and Year on 

Year in relation to the 4 quartile positions of all our comparable PIs (NSIs and PAMs) by  

comparing  2015/16 with the previous year. Table 25 compares our quartile positioning across all 

4 quartiles over the last 4 years 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

49 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 24 
Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Performance

NSI + PAM Only

Isle of Anglesey 

County Council 

Performance

Adult Services 6

Childrens Services 10

Housing 2

Economic & Community 

Regeneration 1

Learning 12

Highways, Waste & 

Property 7

Human Resources 1

Planning & Public 

Protection 2

Isle of Anglesey 

County Council Total 41 12 29% 6 15% 10 24% 13 32% 21 51% 1 2% 18 44% 1 2%

0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0

PI Change since 2012/132013/14 Quartile Position

2015/16 Quartile Position PI Change since 2014/15

Number of Pis

Top 

Quartile

Upper 

Median

Lower 

Median

Lower 

Quartile Improved Unchanged Declined

New 

Indicator

0 2 0

3 2 2 3 3 1 6 0

1 1 0 4 4

0 2 0

0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0

0 1 1 0 0

0 0 01 1 0 0 2

0 5 0

2 0 4 1 5 0 1 1

5 1 2 4 7

 

Table 25 

 

In terms of those Performance Indicators that are either in the lower or middle lower quartiles in 

2015/16, the reason and mitigating action to address any performance issues are noted in the 

Table below (Table 26). A full list of our National Performance Indicator results for 2014/15 can 

be found at Appendix 1.  

 

 

Page 56



 

50 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Table 26 

 

ADULTS Description Qt Reason & Mitigating action 

SCA/001: The rate of delayed 

transfers of care for 

social care reasons per 

1,000 population aged 

75 or over 

   Performance is greatly affected by the 

availability of domiciliary care which has 

been insufficient in 2015/16. The department 

is currently preparing a procurement process 

to strengthen capacity in 2017/18. In the 

short term the department is strengthening in 

house reablement capacity to strengthen 

performance in this area in the current year. 

SCA/002a: The rate of older people 

(aged 65 or over) 

supported in the 

community per 1,000 

population aged 65 or 

over at 31 March 

  

  

  

4 

 The department’s model is based on 

supporting individuals to be independent of 

services with strong preventative and low 

level support available in communities. This 

indicator goes contrary to this aim, an aim 

which is entirely consistent with the 

requirements of the SS & Wellbeing Act. 

SCA/002b: The rate of older people 

(aged 65 or over) whom 

the authority supports in 

care homes per 1,000 

population aged 65 or 

over at 31 March 

  

  

  

4 

 The department recognises the need to 

increase the number of alternative options to 

residential care. An Extra Care Programme 

is underway and we continue to work with 

providers to strengthen the domiciliary care 

market as an alternative to residential care. 

SCA/019: The percentage of adult 

protection referrals 

completed where the risk 

has been managed 

  

  

4 

The number of POVA cases is low in 

comparison with other authorities which have 

larger populations; therefore a small number 

of cases can lead to a ‘Red’ outcome. These 

cases are all as a result of individuals 

choosing not to make a complaint to the 

Police or to take other formal steps regarding 

the potential abuse they have endured. 

These individuals are assessed as having 

mental capacity. In such circumstances 

individuals are offered support (advocacy, 

victim support, counselling, IDVA etc.) but it 

is ultimately a personal decision not to make 

a complaint or to remain in an abusive 

situation.  

  

Page 57



 

51 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

CHILDREN Description Qt Reason & Mitigating action 

SCC/002: Percentage of children 

looked after at 31 March 

who have experienced 

one or more changes of 

school, during a period 

or periods of being 

looked after, which were 

not due to transitional 

arrangements, in the 12 

months to 31 March 

 
 
 
 
 
4 

15/16 Performance was improved on the 

previous year’s performance: and that was in 

the context of an increase in the number of 

looked after children. 12 children out of a 

cohort of 69 (17.39%) children moved school 

during the year.   

75% of these were due to long term planning 

for each individual child, whilst the remainder 

were due to unreasonable distance to travel 

for the child each morning and evening: 

which was impacting on other areas of their 

wellbeing.  

SCC/033d: The percentage of young 

people formerly looked 

after with whom the 

authority is in contact at 

the age of 19 

 
4 

15/16 Performance was improved on the 

previous year’s performance: The very low 

base number is a factor. Out of the three 

young people we were not in touch with two 

had returned to the care of their birth families 

and one person left the area and did not 

continue contact with us.  

SCC:041a: The percentage of 

eligible, relevant and 

former relevant children 

that have pathway plans 

as required 

 
 
4 

The Local Authority recognises that this is an 

area where improvement is required.  The 

performance is related to 7 young people: of 

which 1 young person refused the offer of a 

pathway plan, 5 plans required review and 

only 1 young person did not have pathway 

plan 

 

SCC/045: The percentage of 

reviews of looked after 

children, children on the 

Child Protection Register 

and children in need 

carried out in line with 

the statutory timetable 

 The increase in the numbers of children 

looked after and the numbers of children 

subject to a child protection plan placed 

significant demand.  This is reflected in the 

timeliness of holding Child Protection 

Conferences and the reviews of Looked after 

children.   Over the last few years we have 

continually improved our performance in 

holding Initial Child Protection Conferences 

within timescale. We were unable to 

maintain and consolidate this improvement 

in 2015/16.  The Local Authority has 

increased the capacity of the unit, and is 

confident that this will ensure capacity to 

Page 58



 

52 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

hold these meetings in a timely manner and 

to ensure robust plans are in  place for 

Children who are looked after and/or subject 

to Child Protection Plans.   

SCC/025: The percentage of 

statutory visits to looked 

after children due in the 

year that took place in 

accordance with 

regulations 

 The increase also placed a demand on the 

case holders in terms of their compliance 

with visiting children on a regular basis.  The 

percentage of visits to Children who were 

looked after completed within timescale fell 

this year to 82.79% from 93.53% in 2014/15.  

The Local authority has increased its social 

work capacity, and is  confident that this will 

ensure that we will regain ground in these 

areas.  

 

HIGHWAYS 
& WASTE 

Description Qt Reason & Mitigating action 

WMT/004(b): The percentage of 

municipal waste 

collected by local 

authorities sent to landfill 

 In 14/15 all residual waste was sent to 

Llanddulas landfill, but from May 2015 most 

residual waste has been sent to energy to 

waste plants in either Runcorn or St Helens. 

A minimum contractual tonnage will still have 

to be sent to Llanddulas until February 2017. 

Hence there will be a continued 

improvement for 16/17 probably reducing to 

a very small % by 17/18. 

WMT/009(b): The percentage of 

municipal waste 

collected by local 

authorities and prepared 

for reuse and/or 

recycled, including 

source segregated 

biowastes that are 

composted or treated 

biologically in another 

way 

 A recycling rate of 59.5% was achieved 

above the 58% target. Greater 

improvements will be achieved during 16/17 

with more residual waste going to energy to 

waste plants and 3 weekly recycling 

commencing in October 2016. The full year 

effect will be apparent during 2017/18, where 

it is expected that the recycling rate will 

approach the 70% target for 2024/25. 

STS/005b : The percentage of 

highways inspected of a 

high or acceptable 

standard of cleanliness 

  Improvement from 13/14 maintained, but 

doubts about the integrity of some of the 

data received for this KPI because it is not 

independently verified.  

Page 59



 

53 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

THS/007: The percentage of adults 

aged 60+ who hold a 

concessionary bus pass 

 This KPI is merely a measure of Rurality, 

where Powys will always be lowest and we 

will always be in the bottom quartile. 

Without investing to provide additional bus 

services this KPI will not change. There has 

not been a political will to protect bus 

services within the authority over the past 

few years and this is unlikely to change.  

THS/012: The percentage of 

principal (A) roads, non-

principal (B) roads and 

non-principal (C) roads 

that are in overall poor 

condition 

 This KPI reflects the cuts made to the 

Highway maintenance budget. However an 

improvement from 18th to 14th following 

County Capital investment. Further 

improvement expected for 16/17. 

THS/012c: Percentage of non-

principal (C) roads that 

are in overall poor 

condition 

 This KPI reflects the cuts made to the 

Highway maintenance budget. However an 

improvement from 18th to 16th following 

County Capital investment. Further 

improvement expected for 16/17. 

 

CORPORATE Description Qt Reason & Mitigating action 

CHR/002: The number of working 

days/shifts per full-time 

equivalent (FTE) local 

authority employee lost 

due to sickness 

absence 

 
 
4 

We are aware of the need to improve our 
sickness absence and have already put in 
place new guidance and processes for doing 
this  (for example we are identifying 
individual recurring cases and have also 
introduced a revised  Attendance Review 
Meeting (ARM) process and set up 
Attendance Panels 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



 

54 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Financial Performance 

 

Revenue Budget 

The Council’s revenue budget for 2015/16 was set at £124m (£126m in 2014/15). The budget was set 

against a challenging financial settlement of grant support from the Welsh Government and a challenging 

savings and efficiencies target of £4.3m was implemented in order to set the budget within the available 

resources.  

 The budget was closely monitored and controlled throughout the year and reported to the Executive in 

accordance with approved Council procedures. Overspend was reported early in the financial year (Qtr2) 

and projected to be £980k.The budgets for 2015/16 included required savings of £4.3m which have in 

general been achieved. An additional £500k was released from general balances during the year to meet 

financial pressures within Children’s Services and this along with further savings within corporate 

budgets, low demand for contingency budgets and one off accounting adjustments resulting in an outturn 

underspend of £1.8m. 

Capital Expenditure  

Capital expenditure relates to the cost of providing or enhancing assets or other spending where the 

benefits last beyond the financial year in question. In February 2015, the Council approved a capital 

programme of £23.7m for 2015/16. There was also a brought forward commitment of £4.0m from 

2014/15 and additional schemes, including the buyout from the HRA subsidy regime, added during 

2015/16 of £30.5m, bringing the total Capital budget for 2015/16 of £58.2m.  The major projects or 

schemes to commence during the year were the Llangefni Link Road and the Acquisition of Existing 

Properties for the HRA. The only major project to be completed during the year was Sites and Premises 

(Phase 1. 

  

The Executive considered a capital out-turn report at its meeting of 31 May 2016, which showed that the 

Council actually spent £44.0m on capital projects in 2015/16 with the majority of the slippage rolled 

forward to 2016/17. 

Page 61



 

55 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Further Information 

 
To find out more about anything in this document or to make any comments please contact: 
 
Chief Executive’s Office 
Isle of Anglesey County Council 
Council Offices 
Llangefni 
Anglesey 
LL77 7TW 
tel - 01248 752111                 
 
 email – ScottRowley@anglesey.gov.uk or GethinMorgan@anglesey.gov.uk 
 
 
 This document is available on tape, in braille and on the Council’s website:  
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/corporateplan 
 
Further information may also be obtained as follows: 
Policies, plans and strategies published by the Council can be accessed at: www.anglesey.gov.uk 
 
 The Annual Improvement Report (AIR) is available on the Council’s website by clicking on this link: 
www.anglesey.gov.uk/airwao 
 
 Audit and Inspection Reports produced by the Council’s Regulators are available from their 
respective websites, as follows: 
 
•Wales Audit Office:  
www.wao.gov.uk 
•Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales: 
 www.cssiw.org.uk 
•Estyn:  
www.estyn.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you do not have access to the internet, or would like to obtain a document that is not listed 
above, please contact the Council via the contact details outlined at the top of this page. 
 

Page 62

mailto:ScottRowley@anglesey.gov.uk
mailto:GethinMorgan@anglesey.gov.uk
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/corporateplan
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/airwao
http://www.wao.gov.uk/
http://www.cssiw.org.uk/
http://www.estyn.gov.uk/


 

56 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

Appendix 1: Note: Rank denotes PI position against 22 Welsh Local Authorities 
 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

PAM CAM/037: The percentage change in the average 
Display Energy Certificate (DEC) score within local 
authority public buildings over 1,000 square metres 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

< - 2 7.8 ↑ (3) 

PAM CHR/002: The number of working days/shifts per full-
time equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost 
due to sickness absence 

Human Resources < 12.48 11.5 12 ↓  
(19) 

NSI/PAM EDU/002i: The percentage of all pupils (including 
those in LA care) in any local authority maintained 
school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August who 
leave education, training or work based learning 
without an approved external qualification 

Education < 0.00 0.3 0.0 ↑  
 

(1) 

NSI EDU/002ii: The percentage of pupils in local authority 
care in any local authority maintained school, aged 15 
as at the preceding 31 August who leave compulsory 
education, training or work based learning without an 
approved external qualification 

Education < 0.00 14.3 0.0 ↑  
 

(1) 

P
age 63



 

57 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

NSI/PAM EDU/003: The percentage of pupils assessed at the 
end of Key Stage 2, in schools maintained by the local 
authority, achieving the Core Subject Indicator, as 
determined by Teacher Assessment 

Education > 87.98 87.8 91.8 ↑  
 

(1) 

PAM EDU/004: The percentage of pupils assessed at the 
end of Key Stage 3, in schools maintained by the local 
authority, achieving the Core Subject Indicator, as 
determined by Teacher Assessment 

Education > 81.46 83.6 84.5 ↑  
(9) 

NSI EDU/006ii: The percentage of pupils assessed, in 
schools maintained by the local authority, receiving a 
Teacher Assessment in Welsh (first language) at the 
end of Key Stage 3 

Education > 61.75 67.2 64.8 ↓  
(3) 

NSI/PAM EDU/011: The average point score for pupils aged 15 
at the preceding 31 August, in schools maintained by 
the local authority 

Education > 593.55 598.3 571.7 ↓  
(6) 

NSI EDU/015a: The percentage of final statements of 
special education need issued within 26 weeks 
including exceptions 

Education > 59.09 38.5 32.5 ↓  
(21) 

P
age 64



 

58 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

NSI EDU/015b: The percentage of final statements of 
special education need issued within 26 weeks 
excluding exceptions 

Education > 100.00 84.6 75.0 ↓  
 (21) 

PAM EDU/016a: Percentage of pupil attendance in primary 
schools 

Education > 94.41 94.6 94.7 ↑  
(17) 

PAM EDU/016b: Percentage of pupil attendance in 
secondary schools 

Education > 93.24 93.4 93.5 ↑  
(16) 

NSI EDU/017: The percentage of pupils ages 15 at the 
preceding 31st August, in schools maintained by the 
local authority who achieved the level 2 threshold 
including a GCSE grade A*-C in English or Welsh first 
language and mathematics 

Education > 54.20 53.8 56.9 ↑  
(12) 

NSI LCL/001b: The number of visits to Public Libraries 
during the year, per 1,000 population 

Libraries > 4024.47 4,166.4 4,053 ↓  
(19) 

NSI LCS/002(b): The number of visits to local authority 
sport and leisure centres during the year where the 
visitor will be participating in physical activity, per 
1,000 population 

Economic & 
Community Regen 

> 8767.29 8,434.0 7457.0 ↓  
(16) 

P
age 65



 

59 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

NSI/PAM PLA/006b: The number of additional affordable 
housing units provided during the year as a 
percentage of all additional housing units provided 
during the year 

Planning & Public 
Protection 

> 83.97 39.2 46 ↑  
(8) 

PAM PPN/009: The percentage of food establishments 
which are ‘broadly compliant‘ with food hygiene 
standards 

Planning & Public 
Protection 

> 93.38 97.0 98.67 ↑  
(1) 

NSI/PAM PSR/002: The average number of calendar days taken 
to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant 

Housing < 213.11 229.5 239.00 ↓  
(12) 

NSI PSR/004: The percentage of private sector dwellings 
that had been vacant for more than 6 months at 1 
April that were returned to occupation during the 
year through direct action by the local authority 

Housing > 11.98 13.1 10.98 ↓  
(8) 

NSI SCA/001: The rate of delayed transfers of care for 
social care reasons per 1,000 population aged 75 or 
over 

Adult Services < 0.55 1.8 6.63 ↓  
(18) 

NSI SCA/002a: The rate of older people (aged 65 or over) 
supported in the community per 1,000 population 
aged 65 or over at 31 March 

Adult Services > 54.41 49.5 43.51 ↓  
(N/A) 

NSI SCA/002b: The rate of older people (aged 65 or over) 
whom the authority supports in care homes per 
1,000 population aged 65 or over at 31 March 

Adult Services < 25.30 23.3 20.63 ↑  
(18) 

P
age 66



 

60 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

PAM SCA/007: The percentage of clients with a care plan 
at 31 March whose care plans should have been 
reviewed that were reviewed during the year 

Adult Services > 87.86 92.2 93.6 ↑  
(2) 

PAM SCA/018a: The percentage of carers of adults who 
were offered an assessment or review of their needs 
in their own right during the year 

Adult Services > 91.28 92.9 95.3 ↑  
(9) 

NSI/PAM SCA/019: The percentage of adult protection referrals 
completed where the risk has been managed 

Adult Services > 88.89 91.9 93.18 ↑  
(19) 

NSI SCC/002: % of children looked after at 31 March who 
have experienced one or more changes of school, 
during a period or periods of being looked after, 
which were not due to transitional arrangements, in 
the 12 months to 31 March 

Childrens Services < 20.00 18.5 17.40 ↑  
 

(18) 

NSI/PAM SCC/004: The percentage of children looked after on 
31 March who have had three or more placements 
during the year 

Childrens Services < 7.79 3.4 9.3 ↓  
(10) 

NSI SCC/011b: The percentage of initial assessments that 
were completed during the year where there is 
evidence that the child has been seen alone by the 
Social Worker 

Childrens Services > 55.06 63.9 74.1 ↑  
(2) 

PAM SCC/025: The percentage of statutory visits to looked 
after children due in the year that took place in 
accordance with regulations 

Childrens Services > 90.54 93.5 82.8 ↓  
(16) 

P
age 67



 

61 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

NSI SCC/033d: The percentage of young people formerly 
looked after with whom the authority is in contact at 
the age of 19 

Childrens Services > 100.00 50.0 57.10 ↑  
(22) 

NSI SCC/033e: The percentage of young people formerly 
looked after with whom the authority is in contact, 
who are known to be in suitable, non-emergency 
accommodation at the age of 19 

Childrens Services > 85.71 100.0 100.00 ↔  
(1) 

NSI SCC/033f: The percentage of young people formerly 
looked after with whom the authority is in contact, 
who are known to be engaged in education, training 
or employment at the age of 19 

Childrens Services > 42.86 100.0 75.00 ↓  
(6) 

NSI SCC/037: The average external qualifications point 
score for 16 year old looked after children, in any 
local authority maintained learning setting 

Childrens Services > 135.80 288.6 269.00 ↓  
(9) 

NSI SCC/041a: The percentage of eligible, relevant and 
former relevant children that have pathway plans as 
required 

Childrens Services > 77.78 78.3 68.2 ↓  
(22) 

PAM SCC/045: The percentage of reviews of looked after 
children, children on the Child Protection Register 
and children in need carried out in line with the 
statutory timetable 

Childrens Services > 95.68 94.5 91.6 ↓  
(13) 

PAM STS/005b: The percentage of highways inspected of a 
high or acceptable standard of cleanliness 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

> 96.34 96.3 95.1 ↓ (12) 

P
age 68



 

62 

Performance Report 2015/16  

 

PI Type Description Service Direction 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 15/16 Trend 15/16 
Quartile  
& Rank 

NSI STS/006: The percentage of reported fly tipping 
incidents cleared within 5 working days 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

> 95.55 95.9 98.49 ↑  
(2) 

NSI THS/007: The percentage of adults aged 60+ who 
hold a concessionary bus pass 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

> 70.73 72.5 73.20 ↑  
(21) 

PAM THS/012: The percentage of principal (A) roads, non-
principal (B) roads and non-principal (C) roads that 
are in overall poor condition 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

< 11.71 10.9 8.9 ↑  
(14) 

NSI/PAM WMT/004b: The percentage of municipal wastes sent 
to landfill 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

< 44.11 43.2 16.87 ↑  
(13) 

NSI/PAM WMT/009b: The percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities and prepared for reuse 
and/or recycled, including source segregated 
biowastes that are composted or treated biologically 
in another way 

Highways, Waste & 
Property 

> 54.37 55.2 59.50 ↑  
(13) 

 
 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 11  

DDIM I’W GYHOEDDI 
NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

 

 
 

Ymateb CSYM i Ymgynghoriad Horizon Nuclear Power cyn Cyflwyno Cais Cynllunio 
(PAC 2) 

IACC’s Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s  
Pre-Application Consultation (PAC 2) 

 

 
PRAWF BUDD Y CYHOEDD 
PUBLIC INTEREST TEST 

 
 
Paragraff(au) 14 Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 
Paragraph(s) 14 Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
Y PRAWF – THE TEST 

Mae  yna  fudd  i’r  cyhoedd  wrth  ddatgan 

oherwydd  /  There  is  a  public  interest  in 
disclosure as:- 

 
Tryloywder o ran prosesau gwneud 
penderfyniad y Cyngor. 

 
Transparency in the Council’s decision making 
processes. 

Y budd i’r cyhoedd with beidio datgelu yw / 
The public interest in not disclosing is:- 

 

 
Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnwys ymateb 
arfaethedig y Cyngor i’r ymgynghoriad ar y 
cais datblygu mwyaf sylweddol ar Ynys Môn 
am genhedlaeth. 

 
Nid yw’r Aelodau wedi cael cyfle hyd yn hyn i 
ystyried yr ymateb drafft, a byddai ei ddatgelu 
yn awr yn: 

 
- Rhagfarnu  ein  gallu  i  gynnal  materion 

cyhoeddus mewn ffordd effeithiol; 
- Yn datgelu cyfathrebiadau mewnol rhwng 

swyddogion ac aelodau; 
- Yn datgelu dogfennau drafft  sydd  i’w 

datgelu yn fuan yn eu ffurf derfynol. 
 
Mae budd i’r cyhoedd o ganiatáu i’r Cyngor yr 
amser i feddwl ac ymarfer ei brosesau 
democrataidd cyn datgelu fersiwn derfynol yr 
adroddiad. 

 
Pe câi adroddiad drafft ei ddatgelu fe all 
ragfarnu’r broses o gyfnewid safbwyntiau’n 
rhydd a didwyll rhwng aelodau ac / neu 
swyddogion ar y cynigion datblygu. 

 
Mae ffurfio ymateb yn broses sy’n parhau ac 
nad ydyw hyd yn hyn wedi’i chwblhau. 

 

 
The report contains the Council's proposed 
consultation response on the most significant 

Page 71

Agenda Item 4.



Page 12  

 

 development proposal on Anglesey for a 

generation. 

 
Members have not yet had a chance to 
consider the draft response, and to disclose it 
now would be to: 

 
- prejudice the effective conduct of public 

affairs; 
- disclose internal communications between 

officers and members; 
- disclose draft documents which are to be 

disclosed in final form imminently. 
 
There is public interest in allowing the Council 
the thinking time to exercise its democratic 
processes prior to disclosing the final version 
of the report. 

 
If the draft report is disclosed, it may inhibit 
the free and frank exchange of views between 
members and / or officers on the development 
proposal. 

 
The formulation of the response is an ongoing 
process which is not yet complete. 

 

 
Argymhelliad: Mae’r budd cyhoeddus o gadw’r eithriad yn gorbwyso’r budd cyhoeddus o 
ddatgelu’r wybodaeth. 

 
Recommendation: The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 

 

Page 72



OFFICIAL  

1 

 

 

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

 

MEETING: 

 

THE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

DATE: 

 

18th October, 2016 

 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

 

Isle of Anglesey’s County Council 

Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s 

Second Stage Pre-Application 

Consultation (PAC 2) 

 

REPORT BY: 

 

Dr. Gwynne Jones, Chief Executive 

 

Author: 

Energy Island Programme Office 

ladpl@anglesey.gov.uk 

01248 752 435 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

To obtain the approval of Full Council 

upon the Authority’s Response to 

Horizon Nuclear Power’s Second Stage 

Pre-Application Consultation (PAC 2) 

upon the Wylfa Newydd Project. 

 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The proposed New Nuclear Build at Wylfa Newydd is a Nationally Significant 

Infrastructure Project as defined in the Planning Act 2008. This requires a 

development consent order (DCO) application to be submitted in respect of the 

main power station and offsite integral developments.  Horizon Nuclear Power 

(HNP) anticipates submitting the DCO application to the Planning Inspectorate 

in May 2017. Following an examination into that application a recommendation 

will be made by the Planning Inspectorate to the Secretary of State for 

Business Energy and Industrial Strategy who will determine the application and 

the final conditions (called requirements) which will apply to any consent if 

granted. 

 

1.2 Under the statutory regime in Wales all enabling works such as highways 

improvements and site preparation, and associated developments e.g. Workers 

Accommodation, Park and Ride and the Logistics Centre cannot be include in 

the DCO application and will be the subject of 10 separate Town and Country 

Planning Act (TCPA) applications. These applications are to be submitted to 

the IACC as planning authority for determination over the coming months. 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5.

mailto:ladpl@anglesey.gov.uk


OFFICIAL  

2 

 

1.3 This second stage pre application consultation (PAC2) follows PAC1 carried 

out in September 2014 and an interim consultation in January 2016. PAC2 is 

the final formal consultation prior to submission of the DCO and covers all of 

the main nuclear site, the integral offsite developments and the associated 

development.  

 

1.4 PAC2 has an 8 week consultation period which began on 31 August and closes 

25 Oct 2016. It seeks responses on HNP’s preferred proposals and requests 

answers to a series of specific questions. 

 

2. Horizon’s PAC2 Consultation Documents 

2.1 The suite of documents submitted as part of Horizon’s PAC2 submission 

consists of the following material:  

 

Technical Documents 

 Main Consultation Document 

 Preliminary Environmental Information Report (and Appendices) 

 Language Impact Assessment Interim Report 

 Health Impact Assessment Interim Report 

 Habitats Regulations Assessment Draft Evidence Plan Interim Report 

 Equality Impact Assessment Interim Report 

 Sustainability Assessment Interim Report 

 Draft Master Plans (Main Site) 

 Draft Master Plan Report (Off-Site Power Station Facilities) 

 Draft Master Plan Report (Temporary Workers Accommodation) 

 Draft Master Plan Report (Park and Ride and Logistics) 

 Strategic Questions 

 

 Non-Technical Documents 

 Consultation Overview Document 

 Community Benefits Scheme 

 Local Noise Mitigation Plan 

 

 Topic Papers 

 Associated Development Site Selection Report 

 Off-Site Power Station Facilities Site Selection Report 

 Construction Worker Accommodation Report (Strategy) 

 Traffic and Transport Technical Note 

 Planning Statement Framework (and Appendices) 

 

3. Approach to the IACC response 

3.1 For consistency the structure follows previous responses; 

Page 74



OFFICIAL  

3 

 

 Covering letter from IACC Chief Executive  

 Appendix A High level Strategic Report 

 Appendix B Response to the Strategic Questions 

 Appendix C Comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information 

Report 

 

3.2  In preparing this detailed response comments have been sought from Officers 

in services areas across the IACC, feedback from Elected Member briefing 

sessions and specialist input from professional and legal consultants (funded 

by HNP via the Planning Performance Agreement agreed with IACC). They 

have been collated in a way so as to be strategic, constructive and evidence 

based. The response seeks to follow the vision and objectives for Wylfa 

Newydd as set out in the Supplementary Planning Guidance which was 

approved by the IACC (2014). 

 

3.3  PAC2 seeks to provide much more of the detail of the proposals which was 

requested by IACC in the response to PAC1 but as the project design is not yet 

finalised HNP cannot yet provide all of the information which will be required to 

accompany the applications. A number of the IACC responses accordingly 

seek to highlight areas where further information is required before a final view 

can be taken.  This response has also sought to identify alternatives or 

amendments to HNP’s preferred proposals and sets out proposals for the 

realisation of benefits arising from the project and mitigation measures to deal 

with the inevitable adverse impacts of a project of this scale and complexity. 

 

4. Overview of IACC response 

4.1  The covering letter from the IACC Chief Executive confirms that the IACC 

remain supportive in principle to the Wylfa Newydd project. Whilst there has 

been significant progress since PAC1 and the Project Update there are a 

number of key issues highlighted. These relate to: 

 Level of PAC2 Information 

 Education, Skills and Jobs 

 Supply Chain 

 Worker Accommodation/Housing 

 Welsh Language & Culture 

 Tourism 

 Health & Wellbeing 

 Site Selection Methodology 

 

4.2 In the high level Strategic Report (Appendix A) the main themes identified in 

previous two responses are maintained and built upon, these include: 

 Local Employment Opportunities 

Page 75



OFFICIAL  

4 

 

 Education, Skills and Training 

 Supply Chain 

 Displacement 

 Welsh Language and Culture 

 Highways and Transport 

 Tourism 

 Construction Worker Accommodation Strategy 

 Legacy 

 Cumulative Impacts 

 Nuclear Waste 

 Wellbeing, Cohesion and Equality 

 Site Selection 

 

4.3 Detailed comments to the Strategic Questions and Preliminary Environmental 

Information Report can be found in appendix B & C respectively. 

 

4.4 In preparing this comprehensive response Officers of the IACC have engaged 

with other stakeholders including Natural Resources Wales, North Wales 

Police, Fire and Rescue Service, Welsh Ambulance Service Trust and Betsi 

Cadwaladr University Health Board. Each of these organisations will be 

submitting their own responses to this consultation. 

 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 Members will be familiar with the key issues and main themes arising from this 

and previous consultations. Whilst this is the last formal stage of the 

consultation process opportunities will still arise for officers to inform the 

content of the eventual DCO submission. Also, the comments in this response 

which relate to those elements of the project requiring a TCPA will inform the 

respective pre-application discussions. Officers will endeavour to work with 

HNP to establish an agreed Statement of Common Ground; however where 

there are differences of opinion these will form the basis for the IACC’s Local 

Impact Report. Members will be updated on a regular basis. 

 

5.2 Members are respectfully requested to approve the attached suite of 

documents which combine to form the IACC formal response to PAC2. Subject 

to Elected Member endorsement it is also requested that delegated authority is 

given to the Chief Executive to carry out any minor amendments, variations or 

corrections which are identified and reasonably necessary prior to the formal 

issue of the response. 

 

Page 76



OFFICIAL  

5 

 

5.3 Delegation is also sought for the Chief Executive to conduct negotiations on the 

overall obligations package which will be comprised of the respective planning 

obligation (S106) and related agreements for the DCO and TCPA applications. 
 

END OF REPORT  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 77



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

 

Dr. Gwynne Jones  
Prif Weithredwr  
Chief Executive  
 

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MÔN 
ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL 
Swyddfa’r Sir  
LLANGEFNI 
Ynys Môn - Anglesey 
LL77 7TW 
 

Gofynnwch am - Please ask for: Vicky Jones 
 

 (01248) 752102 (01248)750839 
 

E-Bost-E-mail: gwynnejones@ynysmon.gov.uk 
 

Ein Cyf - Our Ref.  WGJ/VLJ 
                  Eich Cyf  -  Your Ref.  

 

 

OFFICIAL  

 

Dear Mr Hawthorne, 

 

RESPONSE TO THE HORIZON NUCLEAR POWER WYLFA NEWYDD PROJECT 

PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION – STAGE TWO 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

I am writing to you on behalf of the Isle of Anglesey County Council setting out its 

formal response to the PAC2 consultation.  In doing so I am following a similar 

approach and structure to that adopted in my letters to Mr Alan Raymant in response 

to the two previous consultations. This is with the aim of demonstrating consistency 

and transparency through a coherent narrative of the IACC’s position as HNP’s 

proposals for the Wylfa Newydd Project have evolved over time. 

 

The IACC appreciates the clearly substantial amount of work which has gone into 

the preparation of PAC2 and considers that many of the issues raised in this and 

previous responses are now appropriately included in headline terms within the 

documentation. While further detail is sought on many issues it is noted and 

positively received that the main issues have been considered and this will provide a 

good basis for discussions on detail to be taken forward. The IACC remains 

supportive of the Wylfa Newydd Project in principle and wishes to work with HNP to 

help the Project to succeed and deliver positive outcomes for the Island. 

 

This letter follows and builds on previous correspondence in highlighting key issues 

and is not an exhaustive assessment of the proposals. The IACC has presented high 

level views on various points including potential mitigation measures; however, these 

are offered as guidance and basis for further discussion as without a full and detailed 

picture of the proposals and baseline conditions it is difficult to gauge and measure 

 

   

       

      

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

the impacts and effects to assess the level of mitigation required. This letter is 

supported by the following Appendices which provide more detail in areas of both 

established and emerging common ground and disagreement, and combine with this 

letter to form the Council’s formal, detailed response: 

 

Appendix A: High Level Strategic Report 

Appendix B: Responses to the Strategic Questions asked in PAC2  

Appendix C: Comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information 

 

Wherever possible the IACC has sought to ensure consistency in the wording of 

these documents and avoid duplication. However, given the tight timescale for 

responding to PAC2 and collation of the inputs required from Services across the 

organisation there may be some mismatches in the text.  

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The IACC Vision for the New Nuclear Build at Wylfa, as set out in the Supplementary 

Planning Guidance, is that it is “a positive driver for the transformation of the 

economy and communities on Anglesey, providing sustainable employment 

opportunities, improving the quality of life for existing and future generations and 

enhancing local identity and distinctiveness”. This Vision translates into a set of 

expectations that the construction and operation of Wylfa Newydd will: 

 

1. Contribute to the UK’s needs for secure and affordable low carbon energy; 
2. Comply with all safety and security requirements to ensure a secure and safe 

Project with robust emergency planning provisions;  
3. Contribute significantly to long term sustainable economic growth and local 

prosperity through the provision of quality employment, training and workforce 
development opportunities; 

4. Support the prosperity of local businesses by providing appropriate inward 
investment and supply chain opportunities; 

5. Support the sustainability, vibrancy and quality of life of Anglesey and its 
communities (including support for the Welsh language and culture) and 
promote low carbon living and behaviours; 

6. Take into account environmental, social, economic and health impacts and 
provide mitigation and ‘or compensation for any adverse impacts whilst 
maximising positive social, economic and environmental benefits; 

7. Contribute to an enhancement of local community infrastructure, facilities and 
services; 

8. Promote sustainable modes of transport and undertake infrastructure 
improvements to minimise the impact of the developments on local capacity 
and resilience, and enhance connectivity; 

9. Contribute to the biodiversity of the island and the quality of its natural 
environment; and 

10. Recognise the support of local communities in hosting the Project (during its 
construction and operation up to the point of decommissioning) by 

Page 79



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

compensating for impacts that cannot be mitigated and otherwise securing the 
goodwill and understanding of the population of the Island as a whole. 

 

The continued support of the IACC for the Project is based on the expectation that 

this Vision and Outcomes will be achieved by the following seven Objectives being 

met through ensuring that Wylfa Newydd: 

 

1. Contributes to the delivery of the Anglesey Energy Island Programme and the 
Anglesey Enterprise Zone, placing the island at the forefront of energy 
research and development, production and servicing; 

2. Drives the transformation of the Anglesey and North Wales economies and 
maximises opportunities for the employment and upskilling of local people; 

3. Delivers significant and enduring infrastructure benefits to the Island’s 
communities; 

4. Supports improvements to the quality of life (including health, wellbeing and 
amenity) of the Island’s residents, visitors and workers during its construction 
and operation; 

5. Recognises and strengthens the unique identity of the Island and its 
communities; 

6. Promotes the sustainable movement of people and materials and provides 
resilient transportation infrastructure capable of attracting and sustaining 
economic growth and creating sustainable communities; and 

7. Conserves and enhances the Island’s distinctive environment and resources, 
taking into account climate change. 

 

The Vision, the expected Outcomes of the Project and the Objectives for their 

achievement continue to underpin the overall approach of the authority to the Project 

in seeking to ensure that the right developments are located in the right places and 

realising the benefits and mitigating the impacts throughout its lifecycle. They have 

also combined to form the basis for this response and in so doing have re-affirmed 

the main themes arising which were highlighted in the IACC’s responses to the two 

previous consultations. As evidenced by the respective Consultation Feedback 

Reports these themes also broadly reflect the feedback from the general public. 

 

KEY ISSUES 

 

The key issues outlined below are in headline terms so as to avoid repetition. They 

therefore need to be read in conjunction with the more detailed comments in the 

Appendices.  

 

Level of PAC2 Information 

 

The IACC acknowledges that much more detail has been provided in the PAC2 

proposals.  It is, inevitably, the case that substantial further detail is under 

preparation for the application submissions.  The IACC has endeavoured to be 

Page 80



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

constructive in striking the balance between noting where detailed work is in hand 

and providing meaningful feedback wherever possible. 

 

The IACC wishes to underline the importance of engagement with HNP between 

now and submission to take forward the various issues raised in this response, to 

ensure a suite of applications which is fit for purpose and which can deliver the 

combined objectives of the parties.   The IACC particularly highlights that 

considerable further work is needed to develop the proposals for mitigation of 

impacts, the provision of positive legacy from the project and how HNP intends to 

address unforeseen or unquantified issues as and when they arise throughout the 

project lifecycle  and not just in the construction phase.  

 

Education and Skills, Jobs 

 

The IACC has been and remains supportive of the project on the basis of the jobs 

which it will deliver locally both during its construction and operational phases. To 

maximise local take up of these opportunities there is a need for HNP to make an 

early commitment to promoting STEM subjects in the Island’s primary and secondary 

schools. This is necessary in order to stimulate interest amongst pupils and to inform 

subject choices so that they gain the relevant examination results to take up 

apprenticeships or go on to pursue further and higher education qualifications to 

equip them for jobs on offer with Wylfa Newydd. Such a commitment of the 

necessary scale and timing is not apparent in the PAC2 documentation. 

 

A similar view is taken by the IACC on the HNP proposals for skills training for young 

people not in education, employment or training (NEETs) and the long term 

unemployed. With early specialist support these people can secure the skills sets 

required for the large number and variety of support jobs which will be created by the 

project. 

 

The IACC acknowledges the support from HNP for the establishment of an 

Employment and Skill Brokerage and looks for its support in its piloting with the 

contracts for the Site Preparation and Clearance works. 

 

The IACC remains concerned that due regard to and assessment of potential 

displacement of jobs in the supply chain.  social care, domiciliary support and 

tourism and hospitality sectors through people currently in work moving to better paid 

jobs in connection with Wylfa Newydd has not been demonstrated.  Far more 

information is required on the roles to be created to allow proper assessment of the 

consequences of displacement and the methods by which this can be mitigated.  

 

 

 

 

Page 81



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

Supply Chain 

 

The IACC welcomes the Horizon Supply Chain Charter and continues to advise that 

this should be in place for the early works and associated developments in order to 

allow local businesses to capture the maximum opportunities and gain experience in 

the tendering system ahead of the main construction tendering commencing. 

 

The IACC welcomes the promotion of supply chain engagement through the 

Business Readiness Programme Menter Newydd, the development of the Wylfa 

Newydd Employment and Skills Service concept. The comments on the support 

required from HNP to help local people, and young people in particular, to be 

competitive in the jobs market for Wylfa Newydd are seen as being equally 

applicable to the support needed for local businesses to compete for supply chain 

and service contract opportunities.  

 

Worker Accommodation/Housing 

 

The bulk of the IACC’s response to the Project Update consultation focussed on this 

topic. This was expanded upon in a series of 26 questions forwarded to HNP, but to 

which there has been no direct reply. The principle of first considering the potential of 

existing housing and tourist stock for temporary use as worker accommodation has 

always been supported by the IACC. The IACC also agrees to latent and empty 

accommodation being taken up along with new developments, such as Land & 

Lakes, being brought forward through initial use as worker accommodation with long 

term legacy uses following construction.  

 

The IACC is of the firm belief that there is scope to increase the availability of worker 

accommodation for the construction period through the bringing forward of other 

residential development sites. These include single plots and small estates as well 

as larger sites which HNP referred to in the Project Update, referencing ‘sites in 

Holyhead’, but not pursued; with the IACC proposing further potential sites, for 

example in Amlwch (in addition to Madyn Farm).   

 

The IACC has made continual reference to the potential impacts on the Private 

Rented Sector and the need to help offset this through a Social Housing Fund for the 

provision of additional homes to let. 

 

The IACC has always accepted that there may be a need for temporary worker 

accommodation in temporary buildings which would be removed following the 

construction period. However, such accommodation should only be considered once 

all of the other sources, including those described above, have been exhausted and 

then located on sites which comply with Planning Policy (including the spatial 

strategy), do not give rise to highways issues and are accessible for servicing. 

 

Page 82



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

Welsh Language & Culture 

 

From the outset the IACC has stressed the importance of Welsh language and 

culture as a golden thread running through the whole Wylfa Newydd project. The 

authority has been consulted upon HNP’s proposed Welsh Language and Culture 

Strategy and welcomes this acknowledgement of the importance of these elements 

to the Island’s communities. These elements all go some way to addressing the 

concerns previously raised by the IACC and the authority would be pleased to 

engage with HNP in developing them further.  

 

The IACC is pleased to see that HNP are acknowledging the importance of the 

Welsh language and aligning their impact assessment with its Welsh Language 

Strategy in the PAC2 documentation and in their recently announced “Pledge”. The 

IACC welcome HNP’s Welsh language pledge however there is a lack of clarity on 

any accountability arrangements, the scale and extent of the mitigation measures 

are still awaited, as is evidence of the HNP commitment to Welsh Language proofing 

of all aspects of its proposals and their impacts. 

 

The Welsh Language Impact Assessment does not yet fully recognise the enormous 

scale of the project and the direct and indirect impact of transient construction 

workers and their dependants will have on the Welsh Language and culture.  This 

results in the report lacking sufficient commitment to undertaking mitigation steps 

immediately. The impact of this project will be significant and far reaching in terms of 

the Welsh Language and culture; it is therefore essential that HNP demonstrates a 

firm commitment, including through appropriate mitigation, towards maintaining and 

strengthening the Welsh Language and culture. The authority continues to 

recommend that Welsh language is not looked at in isolation and is addressed 

across the topic areas and, in particular, is included as a receptor in the 

environmental impact assessments. 

 

Tourism 

 

The authority continues to highlight its concern that tourism as a key economic 

sector on the island has not been given enough consideration or weight. Tourism will 

be directly impacted  through possible diminishment of visitor numbers due to 

building works) and indirectly affected by the use tourist accommodation to house 

workers decreasing supply, displacement of staff and increased demand on facilities 

by a number of features of the projects and merits consideration as a key theme.  

 

Health & Wellbeing 

 

The IACC has pressed Horizon on a consistent basis to take a wider view than that 

adopted in its Health Impact Assessment work to date. This is based on the National 

Assembly for Wales’s legislation which requires the IACC and other public bodies to 

Page 83



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

take the wellbeing goals and principles of sustainable development into account in its 

decision making. The Wellbeing legislation must be taken into account and this wider 

scope must be reflected in any application coming forward.  

 

Site Selection Methodology 

 

The IACC made representations on the Horizon methodology for site selection in its 

previous response which were followed up in detailed correspondence. The IACC in 

its capacity as the Local Authority has provided comments on these sites in 

response to the details given in PAC2 without prejudice to any future decision of any 

part or function of the IACC and for the purposes of this consultation only. 

 

The IACC remains of the view that the site selection reports are inconsistent, do not 

properly justify the criteria used and are heavily influenced by HNP’s existing land 

options and acquisitions. The previous consultation responses have generally not 

properly been taken into account in the site selection, other than to be mentioned 

very briefly and then discounted with little evidence. Operational prerequisites have 

been applied as a filter with little justification and the IACC does not accept that a 

suitable case has been made that all the applicable sites have been properly 

considered. The locational restrictions on the off-site facilities are not set out in any 

detail.   In particular the non-inclusion of Llangefni in the 4 stage assessment 

process skews the process by excluding a number of large sites. The separate 

consideration of sites in Llangefni is inadequate and does not accord with the SPG 

guidance. The Llangefni sites identified as potentially suitable are dismissed on the 

basis of travel time, the assessment of these sites is cursory and appears to have 

been included only to address the IACC’s previous request for their consideration 

and allow them to be dismissed. 

 

Site specific comments are given in response to question 8 of Appendix B. 

 

CONCLUSIONS 

 

The IACC’s conclusions are based on the statements HNP have made in the 

Foreword to the PAC2 Consultation Overview Document. 

 

HNP’s statement that “Wylfa Newydd has the potential to change lives for the better 

across Anglesey and bring major investment and opportunities for communities and 

individuals across North Wales and beyond” is fully endorsed by the IACC. This high 

level objective now requires to be translated into tangible commitments and actions 

which meet the expectations of people, businesses and communities in the area, 

and for which they are equipped to capitalise upon. 

 

The concept of a ‘social licence’ to operate is also endorsed. The documentation 

sets out what HNP have been told on a consistent basis, and how it has responded 

Page 84



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

to the calls for investment in education and skills programmes, creation of thousands 

of local jobs during construction and high quality careers for generations during the 

life of the power station, and respect for and championing of the local heritage, 

culture and language. These calls have been echoed in this response.  

  

In approaching this issue the IACC has introduced the concept of a Community 

Resilience Fund. Given the complexity of the Project, and as you state, “a busy 

period for consultation on big projects” there is a need to deliver a mitigation 

response that has sufficient flexibility to respond to what is going to be a very 

dynamic and complicated construction process.  As a means of helping answer that 

challenge, a Community Resilience Fund would: 

  

a) address the consequences of development; 

b) specifically target and empower local people in responding to the impacts of 

development; and 

c) be intentionally flexible in order to be able to address impacts as they occur 

and tackle the problem of unusable funds arising from overly restrictive 

distribution criteria. 

 

The IACC considers the principle of this fund to be essential in “building the genuine 

partnerships with the communities which Horizon plan to be part of” over the next 60 

years and more. This would be separate to Voluntary Community Benefits which is 

currently out to consultation, and on which the IACC is responding separately. 

 

I look forward to continued constructive engagement with HNP.  

 

 

 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

Gwynne Jones 

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 86



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

1 

HIGH LEVEL STRATEGIC REPORT ON THE WYLFA NEWYDD PROJECT PRE-

APPLICATION CONSULTATION STAGE 2 (OCTOBER 2016)  

 

1 INTRODUCTION  

1.1 The Isle of Anglesey County Council (IACC) welcomes the opportunity to 

comment on Horizon Nuclear Power’s (HNP) Wylfa Newydd Pre-Application 

Consultation Stage Two (known as PAC2). The IACC takes this opportunity to 

provide strategic and constructive comments to help shape the proposal and 

where possible to provide suggestions and/or solutions as mitigation to 

overcome challenges as to make the development a success for the Isle of 

Anglesey’s residents, its economy and its environment. 

 

1.2 The IACC appreciates the large amount of work which has clearly gone into the 

preparation of PAC2 and the attempts Horizon Nuclear Power (HNP) have 

made to strike an appropriate balance between providing the detail sought by 

the IACC and others and presenting a meaningful consultation where not every 

element is finalised and can be amended in response to the feedback sought.  

The IACC considers that many of the issues raised in this and previous 

responses are included in headline terms within the documentation and while 

further detail is sought on many issues it is noted and positively received that 

the main issues have been considered and are set out allowing a base for 

discussions on detail to be taken forward. 

  

1.3 The IACC remains supportive of the Wylfa Newydd Project in principle and 

wishes to engage and work with HNP to help the Project to succeed and deliver 

positive outcomes for the Island. However, as host authority to this Nationally 

Significant Infrastructure Project the IACC will not support development at all 

costs and an appropriate level of firm commitment on many of the themes set 

out in this response is now required to secure the confidence of the local 

community ahead of the submission of planning applications and the DCO. The 

commitments of HNP should enable impacts mitigated, the host community to 

be adequately compensated when this is not achievable and the project 

benefits (including legacy benefits) to be fully realised. 

 

1.4 This response comprises high level comments and is not an exhaustive, 

detailed assessment of each Main Theme or Issue. The IACC has presented 

high level views on potential mitigation measures; however, these are offered 

as guidance and basis for further discussion as without a full and detailed 

picture of the proposals and baseline conditions it is difficult to gauge and 

measure the impacts and effects to assess the level of mitigation required. 

Detailed information will need to be discussed as the project enters pre-

application discussion on the Town & Country Planning Applications (TCPA) 

and prior to submission of the Development Consent Order.  

Page 87



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

2 

1.5 These comments are provided to ensure that impacts are fully mitigated, 

benefits (including legacy benefits) are realised to their full potential and the 

Island’s communities are supported and strengthened in return for hosting this 

major development. As the detailed information within the documentation was 

in some cases limited these comments are caveated on the basis that further, 

more detailed discussion is required as the various aspects of the project are 

developed. The IACC fully commits to engaging in these discussions prior to 

the submission of an application for a DCO. 

 

1.6 For consistency and transparency, the comments presented below are 

structured around themes which are very similar or identical to the Main 

Themes raised during the IACC’s response to Pre-Application Consultation 

(Stage 1) and Informal Consultation as outlined in the covering letter. The IACC 

has also included within the Appendices a response to HNP’s Preliminary 

Environmental Impact Report (PEIR). The IACC’s review of the PEIR 

documents suggests that the scope of the assessment and identification of 

receptors is appropriate.  However there is considerably less certainty on the 

conclusions reached in relation to significance of effects as there is insufficient 

baseline information and assessment contained within the report and its 

appendices. Upon responding to the Pre-Application Consultation Stage 2 

(PAC2) it was apparent to the IACC that these strategic themes remained as 

high priority issues that need to be considered further and discussed with the 

IACC as the project continues to be developed. 

 

1.7 HNP are fully aware of the public and community expectation that the 

employment and supply chain opportunities created by the development (direct 

and indirect) on Anglesey and across North Wales will be fully realised. Greater 

clarity is required on how this will be achieved, and the impacts on the 

environment, language, well-being and quality of life managed and mitigated – 

particularly in the adjacent communities (Tregele, Llanfechell and Cemaes).  

 

1.8 The PAC2 documentation is, understandably, voluminous however IACC 

consider that in places information was duplicated and contained too much 

sign-posting to other documents instead of having all of the information on a 

specific topic presented in one place. It is considered that a more topic based 

approach would have made it more manageable for the public and other 

interested parties to digest the information and provide meaningful responses 

by the end of the consultation period. HNP is asked to consider reordering how 

some of the information is presented in future public engagement including the 

statutory consultations required for the applications. 

      

 

 

 

Page 88



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

3 

2 WYLFA NEWYDD SPG 

2.1 The adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) outlines the IACC’s 

vision and objectives for the New Nuclear Build (NNB) and crucially, outlines 

the IACC’s Guiding Principles on each of the Main Themes with supporting 

Topic Papers.  

 

2.2 The Wylfa NNB SPG provides a framework and material consideration for 

future decisions by the IACC on planning applications, but it is also designed to 

influence, inform and help shape the promoter’s proposals and decision making 

by providing clarity in relation to the IACC’s aspirations and expectations of the 

proposed NNB.  

 

2.3 The IACC reiterates its position that Horizon Nuclear Power should have full 

regard to the SPG for each of the Main Themes and for any site selection 

assessment. A review of the SPG is currently being undertaken in conjunction 

with the process of formulating and adopting a new Joint Local Development 

Plan (JLDP). The scoping of that review and updated evidence base prepared 

conclude that substantive change is only required to the Temporary Workers 

Accommodation section to reflect the increase in worker numbers advised by 

HNP which requires amendment to the basic “thirds” approach previously 

adopted. Other than updates to reflect minor legislative, policy and factual 

changes substantive changes are not expected to the other topics.  At present 

time, the SPG remains a relevant material planning consideration and should 

be at the forefront of HNP’s proposals.  

 

3 LOCAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES 

3.1 The IACC recognises that the job creation opportunities associated with Wylfa 

Newydd have the potential to transform the economy long term. The 

commitment to using existing local labour and businesses to construct and 

operate Wylfa Newydd is a key factor in the ability of the project to contribute to 

economic growth in Anglesey and North Wales. As such, the labour 

participation rate is an important consideration in both mitigating negative 

impacts and maximising the benefits of the project over the short to long term.  

 

3.2 The consultation presents new figures around the peak demand from the Wylfa 

Newydd development which have changed significantly from those previously 

advised and are still subject to further change. This brings uncertainty as to the 

level of impact and subsequent benefits and mitigation required. Further work is 

required to clarify “maximum/peak scenario” and main risks/changes that would 

impact the figures and the distribution of job numbers and roles across the 

project programme.  

 

3.3 The development of the Wylfa Newydd Employment and Skills Service concept 

is ongoing - a commitment by HNP to enhance local job opportunities by 

Page 89



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

4 

formally collaborating through the proposed Service is essential. The IACC 

requests that HNP set out an early commitment to engage in practical 

collaboration through this proposed Service so that it can be progressed ahead 

of the start of the associated development allow opportunities created by earlier 

works to be captured. 

 

3.4 The North Wales Economic Ambition Board’s recently adopted Regional Skills 

and Employment Plan recommends as a key priority that “local authorities 

across North Wales work with employers, developers and providers supporting 

key transformational projects within the energy sector to deliver the necessary 

facilities and expertise to equip local people with the knowledge and skills so 

that they can gain employment in the upcoming developments”. This approach 

would support and promote local careers, economic and community growth 

(short and long term). HNP’s commitment to work with the North Wales 

Economic Ambition Board to ensure that the Regional Skills and Employment 

Plan becomes a reality for people across the region is requested.  Formal 

commitment, engagement and collaboration through the Wylfa Newydd 

Employment and Skills Service is required at an early stage and before the 

submission of applications.  

 

3.5 IACC have significant concerns over  the level of ambition in the use of local 

labour especially in the setting of a target of 45% during the operational phase 

as stated in paragraph 20.22 of HNP’s Main Consultation Document. The IACC 

believes that this target for operational jobs is too low and does not 

demonstrate the level of long term commitment to the local area which was 

expected given HNPs previous assurances. This target does not reflect the 

considerable nuclear related capability and experience which exists on 

Anglesey and in North West Wales. There are clear opportunities to 

significantly increase this percentage by capturing: 

 Returning workers from the UK and elsewhere in the world; 

 Long term unemployed and NEETS; 

 Existing nuclear capabilities and experience; 

 College and University graduates with the relevant qualifications for the        

apprenticeships (non-age specific) and jobs on offer; 

 An increased flow of school pupils who wish to be part of the low 

carbon energy sector; 

 Opportunities to move the underemployed into better jobs.  

 

3.6 The IACC request that HNP enter into further discussions on this matter to 

identify how to collaboratively put mechanisms and conditions in place to 

increase the target figure and to ensure that local businesses do not suffer from 

the displacement effect that is likely to occur during the construction phase of 

the project. 

Page 90



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

5 

3.7 Preparatory work by HNP suggests that in many previous developments the 

majority of the construction workforce has been sourced from the “local” area in 

question. Taken together with  reviews of previous evidence from other major 

infrastructure projects (including Hinkley Point C) as to the proportions of local 

labour employed in different project phases, and allowing for differences in 

labour market dynamics,  this would suggest that a more ambitious target than 

currently set should be used. 

 

3.8 The local labour figures also determine the extent and scale of a range of other 

impacts of the project. The larger the proportion of the project labour 

requirement that is drawn from the workforce already resident in the relevant 

catchment or commuting zone, the lower the overall impact made by workers 

moving or commuting to the project from outside the area. 

 

3.9 There is also a need to understand the effects on sectors other than 

construction, such as opportunities from higher level managerial and 

professional through to supporting functions such as food, catering, security, 

administration etc.  No detail is provided and this omission impacts the IACC’s 

ability to identify the potential opportunities to maximise local labour. This is of 

critical importance to realising a potential beneficial impact of the project. This 

data is required to inform the nature of training resources to mitigate impacts 

around employment, skills provision and labour displacement. It is essential 

that HNP fully resource an effective process to ensure that local people and 

businesses are given support, understand and can access the opportunities to 

participate in the supply chain during construction, operation and eventual 

decommissioning of the station. 

 

3.10 IACC, in partnership with other North Wales Local Authorities and the North 

Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB) are developing a database which 

will highlight the capacity and capability of all North Wales Businesses 

(including those with nuclear related experience). This database has already 

been successfully utilised to address a number of intelligence requests from 

HNP (and its partners). The IACC believes that the objectives set out by IACC 

in the SPG and by IACC in the Local Purpose will be furthered if HNP and all its 

contractors should commit to utilising this approach/ data base going forward. 

Commitment to adopting a procurement strategy which enables local and 

regional companies to take full advantage of opportunities is essential. Support 

to enable the development of small business consortia is required to ensure 

that local SMEs can realistically tender for work packages and the IACC would 

welcome discussions on this point to establish how it can support the delivery 

of this objective.  

 

3.11 The IACC welcomes the Business Readiness Programme (a result of 

successful collaboration between the IACC, HNP, WG, NWEAB and NAMRC) 

Page 91



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

6 

which helps local companies develop the skillsets needed to take part in the 

nuclear industry’s supply chain.  This needs to continue and grow/ expand and 

we look forward to continuing to engage with HNP on this. 

 

4 EDUCATION, SKILLS AND TRAINING 

4.1 Setting realistic targets for local employment and achieving or exceeding them 

requires a clear understanding of the demand for and supply of labour. Allied to 

this is the effective communication and promotion of the opportunities available 

on both supply and demand sides. There will need to be much greater clarity as 

to the specific mechanisms, targets, timing and duration of demand and 

associated measure to maximise the supply of local labour and provide the 

means for effective education and training investment to ensure a supply of 

labour for the project over the short to long term. There are a number of 

specific issues in relation to education: 

 

 Emphasis of Education engagement strategy 

4.2 In maximising the opportunities created by the Project it is essential to support 

primary and secondary schools to ensure young people obtain the capabilities, 

education and skills required and are inspired to participate in the construction 

and operational workforce. This requires investment in high quality resources 

and equipment for Technology and Science and upskilling in STEM subject 

teaching for local primary phase teachers and specialist technology and 

science teachers at secondary school phase. HNP is requested to consider and 

present firm proposals in relation to this. 

 

4.3 Recognising that an influx of residents to the Island is likely to include the 

families of some workers and increase the demand on the educational 

provision available and the demand on the education authority’s resources 

HNP is asked to consider and present firm proposals on how they can mitigate 

this and support the objectives of fostering interest in relevant subjects amongst 

people already resident to help supply the trained workforce HNP will require. 

Ensuring that persons already resident are supported to access job 

opportunities will also reduce the impacts of having to encourage appropriately 

skilled persons to move to the Island and align with HNPs stated objective of 

being a good neighbour, creating a positive legacy and enhancing 

communities. This would also respond (in part) to the Welsh language and 

culture challenges. 

 

4.4 There is an emphasis on the 16+ year’s education sector but little beyond 

awareness raising of STEM subjects at pre 16 level. The IACC raises this as a 

risk to the local labour employment objective and the longer term legacy in 

general as recruiting young people into jobs created by the project in due 

course will be necessary to achieve these objectives. This early engagement 

approach is required to underpin a long term employment strategy which 

Page 92



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

7 

necessitates the encouragement of appropriately skilled local young people to 

fill future vacancies in line with the 100 year commitment to the Island. In the 

same way that local businesses will need support, it is vital that HNP and their 

contractors fully engage with training providers and colleges so that there is a 

clear understanding of the requirements for workers and training standards.  

 

4.5 There is currently a lack of clarity as to how the local employment figures (25% 

of total construction workforce/ 45% of operational) translate to actual numbers 

to be trained to achieve the targets and what resource this will require. The 

IACC as local authority and education authority is eager to collaborate to 

formulate an integrated, realistic and deliverable plan to ensure that suitably 

educated people are available to  meet achieve these targets. 

 

 Primary/Secondary school capacity 

4.6 There is some inaccuracy at times within the documents as to schools capacity 

and the subsequent impact on them of an increase in demand for places. As a 

result the related mitigation is not accurate or adequate. In some instances 

older data has been used to make assumptions about local school capacity, the 

assessment of the influx of school age children is deemed too small in number, 

and the evidence base for the assumed numbers is unclear and unquantified. 

HNP is therefore required to present updated information of the demand likely 

to come forward related to persons moving to the Island for the project using a 

clear and up-to-date evidence base. IACC strongly suggest that written 

agreement is reached on an appropriate evidence base to allow the required 

reassessment to be undertaken.  

 

4.7 Primary schools across the Island are oversubscribed and pupil number 

prediction data points to increased demand and further pressure on school 

places until 2025 due to increase in births and housing developments. This 

does not include HNP-related employment led increases which will further 

increase demand on the oversubscribed schools. Mitigation of the impact of the 

increased numbers of required school places needed related to the HNP 

project will be required and HNP is requested to engage with the authority to 

develop proposals for this ahead of the submission of applications.  

 

 Skills and Training 

4.8 There is a lack of detail on skills and training elements with regards to 

qualifications, apprenticeships, work placements and competencies required 

across the project phases (construction/operation/decommissioning) and what 

quantity and scope of training will be provided to up-skill the local labour force 

to ensure that they have the necessary skills to obtain employment at Wylfa 

Newydd. Upfront investment in training provision and facilities will be required 

to facilitate alignment between labour/skills supply and demand. The early 

provision of training and skills support is required to allow local people to take 

Page 93



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

8 

up jobs in both the construction and operation phases. This will also assist in 

reducing some of the potential negative impacts of the project attributable to an 

influx of new residents. Allowing people currently in the community to access 

these roles will strengthen community cohesion and help to integrate the 

project with the community as a key employer. 

 

4.9 As already noted the North Wales Economic Ambition Board Regional Skills 

and Employment Plan recommends as a key priority that local authorities 

across North Wales work with employers, developers and providers supporting 

key transformational projects within the energy sector to deliver the necessary 

facilities and expertise to equip local people with the knowledge and skills so 

that they can gain employment in the upcoming developments. This approach 

will support and promote local careers, economic and community growth for the 

current and future generations. The IACC would encourage the delivery of 

HNP’s commitment to work with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

progress to delivery and implementation of additional provision to ensure the 

Regional Skills and Employment Plan.  

 

4.10 Clarity is required on the measures proposed for investment in education, 

training and skills development, focusing on existing regional training providers 

and new provision linked to Coleg Menai as a complement to HNP’s bespoke 

training programmes (MCD chapter 8).  

 

4.11 The technical apprenticeship programme is welcomed. The IACC is keen to 

ensure that the placements lead to permanent jobs wherever possible and 

would invite HNP to collaborate in establishing a programme to assist with this 

objective. The IACC would expect to see provision of graduate and post-

graduate placements within the construction and operational workforces and a 

suitable programme for this strand should also be developed as part of the 

overall strategy. Clear targets need to be set in relation to the number of 

apprentices, not limited to age 24 and under and work placements in different 

trades and occupations across the different phases of development 

(construction/ operation/ decommissioning) from Anglesey and North Wales. 

Outside of the potential workforce that already has many of the health, safety 

and quality assurance requirements to operate in the nuclear environment and 

workplace there is a need to provide resource to address the differing 

requirements of the local labour force that do not currently meet the standards 

needed across different occupational profiles, job types and workplace 

locations. There is accordingly a need to understand the effects on sectors 

other than construction, e.g. opportunities from higher level managerial and 

professional through to supporting functions food, catering, security, 

administration etc. There is no detail within the documents as to these impacts 

and this affects any ability to identify the potential to maximise local labour. This 

is of critical importance to capturing the potential beneficial impact of the 

Page 94



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

9 

project. This requires to be understood in order to inform the nature of training 

and related financial resources to be provided to mitigate impacts around 

employment, skills provision and labour displacement. 

 

4.12 The retention and use of skills and knowledge contained within the existing 

Wylfa workforce is a key objective in the legacy to be delivered by the project. 

This ensures that positive benefits from the Wylfa Newydd project can be 

enhanced. 

 

 Mitigation Proposals 

4.13 As the list of proposals is not exhaustive the IACC suggests that HNP consider 

the following key themes to help address the above issues: 

 

4.13.1 More information on worker numbers, job types and roles is required. This 

needs to go beyond the construction and operation staff and include the 

ancillary roles which will also be created.  

 

4.13.2 More information on the skills available within the local community and how 

this aligns to the needs of the project is required to allow the appropriate 

targeting of training and educational opportunities ahead of the roles 

becoming available so that local people are enabled to take up jobs when 

they do arise.  

 

4.13.3 Emphasis and validity of Education engagement – more consideration is 

needed of the pre-16 years education sector to deliver the workforce required 

for Wylfa Newydd over the longer term. This requires investment in high 

quality resources and equipment for Technology and Science teaching in 

secondary schools, in addition to the provision of curriculum resources. 

 

4.13.4 Primary/Secondary school capacity – The evidence base and assessment of 

impacts on school place demand requires to be updated. Contributions to 

funding school places to meet the demand created by the project and to allow 

for effective integration on non-Welsh/ English speaking children will be 

required.  

 

4.13.5 An overarching programme of awareness raising and promotion of 

opportunities for the existing and future workforce utilising existing 

stakeholders, training and education providers and wider press and 

promotional channels should be delivered, including careers advice. The 

IACC would recommend that this programme should start ahead of the 

submission of the DCO to allow the necessary lead-in time for training and 

skills programmes to address the anticipated demand.  

Page 95



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

10 

4.14 Further specific suggestions on how the uptake of labour opportunities by local 

people can be maximised have been given in response to question 2 of the 

PAC2 consultation and are set out in Appendix B of this response.  

 

5 SUPPLY CHAIN  

5.1 The IACC recognises the progress made within this Theme over recent months 

through activities undertaken by HNP and their respective consultants. We 

acknowledge and appreciate HNP’s commitment to the formation of Menter 

Newydd and the creation of the Supply Chain Charter and are committed  to 

continuing to work with HNP to build, promote and maximise supply chain 

opportunities for local businesses across Anglesey and North Wales. 

 

5.2 Currently the level of detailed information surrounding the Supply Chain charter 

is very limited. More constructive and detailed comments can be given as 

further details emerge. In principle, the IACC is supportive for a continuation of 

the suppliers register, series of supply chain events, initiatives and programmes 

(from Tier 1 to Tier 5), including the planned recruitment of a supply chain 

development team based on Anglesey to continue to drive engagement with 

local and regional businesses.  

 

5.3 The supply chain charter proposals and their effectiveness depend to a large 

degree on the intent of the supply chain to adopt supportive procurement 

policies and the ability of local businesses to compete effectively for the 

contracts available. Appropriate monitoring arrangements will be critical from 

the onset. 

 

5.4 The IACC suggests that HNP consider the following in order to ensure that 

supply chain opportunities are maximised:  

 

5.4.1 HNP, Menter Newydd and partners should ensure that the supply chain charter 

is effective in engaging and encouraging existing businesses to compete and 

win contracts in the Wylfa Newydd supply chain. This would be supported by 

the setting of agreed targets by value and number. Such an approach will 

support the growth of the existing business base and retention of staff and 

thereby reduce the potential for negative impacts of the project due to 

displacement of jobs. The IACC would  encourage the use of consortia’s as 

otherwise many local / regional firms will not be able to compete for the tender 

opportunities and would welcome the opportunity to work with HNP to facilitate 

that.  

 

5.4.2 HNP and Menter Newydd are required to work with partners including the 

IACC, North Wales Economic Ambition Board (NWEAB), North Wales Business 

Council, Business Wales and Welsh Government to identify and maintain 

information on Welsh businesses that can be matched to appropriate work 

Page 96



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

11 

packages in the Wylfa Newydd supply chain. This will require resources to be 

made available throughout the construction, operational and decommissioning 

phase of the project to maintain Welsh SME involvement in the project supply 

chain.   

 

5.4.3 Funding of an extension to the Anglesey Business Centre or a dedicated 

Energy Island Enterprise Centre and members of staff to provide direct support 

to local businesses and start-ups providing dedicated services to the Wylfa 

Newydd project during construction and operation. 

 

5.4.4 HNP and Menter Newydd to provide a means of monitoring and reporting 

expenditure with local firms through the use of existing procurement systems to 

determine progress towards targets or statements made in the existing 

assessment. The same system could also be used to understand expenditure 

during the main construction phase. 

 

5.4.5 The IACC would wish to discuss an HNP/ Menter Newydd commitment to a 

level of value of contracts (for example under £250,000) that will be offered to 

companies locally before attempting to procure more nationally. The database 

of North Wales companies would inform and facilitate this process. 

 

5.4.6 There will be a need for transparency and early detail surrounding what the 

work packages will look like and when they will be available so that companies 

– local and regional – can begin to prepare for them through training and 

upskilling. This will also provide confidence to businesses that opportunities will 

be real. 

 

5.4.7 HNP and Menter Newydd should make full use of existing procurement portals 

such as Sell2Wales for tender opportunities as these are embedded into 

current best practice with companies and will ensure consistency in their tender 

approaches. 

 

5.4.8 The IACC expect any procurement exercise to include the requirement to 

recruit/ employ locally where possible – this would ensure that local benefits are 

maximised. 

 

5.5 There will be a need for continuous review of the Supply Chain Charter and 

supply chain related activities to ensure it remains fit for purpose for all 

stakeholders.  

 

6 DISPLACEMENT  

6.1 Although the potential jobs and skills opportunities which will be created by the 

project are welcomed it is considered that labour displacement remains an 

issue which requires to be addressed more fully than it has been to date.  As 

Page 97



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

12 

was highlighted in the IACC’s response to PAC1 and 2016 Project update 

consultation, there is little detailed recognition of potential displacement effects. 

Further work is required to develop a suitable mitigation plan to manage the 

effects of labour displacement. The IACC expected this to have been given 

greater thought and prominence in the current consultation and reiterates the 

need to progress this as part of the evidence base, effects assessment and 

mitigation strategy development which will be required prior to the submission 

of the application. The IACC strongly urges HNP to investigate displacement 

effects on Anglesey (and beyond) as this could have a considerable adverse 

impact on the labour market, existing businesses and tourism providers. The 

IACC would wish to be involved in detailed discussion on these points and 

invites HNP to share information to allow the development of this element of its 

proposal in partnership with the IACC. The current baseline position, analysis 

on wage levels and associated impacts all require to be progressed in the short 

term to allow proper consideration of this aspect to be carried out.   

 

6.2 Labour displacement impacts from the project could be significant.  For 

example, skilled labour may move to take advantage of opportunities for higher 

wages.  This could then have an adverse impact on the firm or contract they 

leave so that any economic effect e.g. Gross Value Added may be reduced or 

delayed.  In relation to labour the Wylfa Newydd construction period is 

projected to start in 2018 with completion of the second unit in 2027. Beyond 

that the operational phase of the station will cover another 60 years. The 

numbers of construction workers at the peak of the construction period could 

exceed 10,000 people across a range of occupations and skill levels. In 

addition to this many further ancillary roles will be created to service the 

construction workforce against a working age population of only 31,972 on 

Anglesey (approximately 33% increase).  Given the scale of demand relative to 

the available supply of labour there is likely to be a significant pull factor 

created on labour in existing firms from the Wylfa Newydd project. This will 

create vacancies in those existing firms which in turn could potentially weaken 

individual company ability to compete for contracts and work packages within 

the supply chain.  

 

6.3 Additional demand will have knock on effect on other construction projects e.g. 

housebuilding, schools improvement programme and a range of other projects 

scheduled for construction in the same period as Wylfa Newydd. On this point 

the issue of labour displacement from the cumulative effects of different 

projects will likely exacerbate displacement effects. 

 

6.4 Displacement of skills/jobs will not be confined to the construction sector.  

People employed in low paid and seasonal jobs will be attracted to higher 

wages on offer with Wylfa Newydd – in particular the health and social care 

sector which are critical to the economy of the Island.  The health and social 

Page 98



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

13 

care sector is already vulnerable to losing staff and some of these positions are 

already difficult to fill.  In addition skilled labour from local SMEs within other 

sectors outside of construction may move to companies from outside of North 

Wales which would impact the local SMEs significantly. This is also the case for 

skilled labour moving to work for HNP, Menter Newydd or the main Tier 2/3 

companies. Ways in which to backfill these vacancies within local businesses 

needs to be considered. Consultation work from the Wylfa Newydd: Wider 

Impacts Study (not yet published) suggests that some existing companies 

would probably lose staff rather than pay them more but this ultimately depends 

on the percentage increase in wages that occur 

 

6.5 Evidence from the Wylfa Newydd North Wales Business Survey (2016) 

suggests that some businesses are concerned that the project will take 

construction workers away from them for better paid jobs. This may have knock 

on effect on other construction projects e.g. housebuilding, schools 

improvement programme and a range of other projects scheduled for 

construction in the same period as Wylfa Newydd. On this point the issue of 

labour displacement from the cumulative effects of different projects will likely 

exacerbate displacement effects. 

 

6.6 The displacement effect on labour and businesses who hope to maximise 

supply chain opportunities and other existing businesses could impact 

negatively and considerably on Anglesey’s economy. Appropriate strategies 

and programmes need to be investigated and adequately considered to assess 

how the issue of displacement can be minimised and/or overcome. The IACC 

request to discuss the issue of displacement as a matter of urgency with HNP 

to design the best method to introduce mitigation measures to address the 

situation as far as possible.  

 

6.7 The IACC consider that the following strategies should be considered to 

mitigate the displacement effects:  

 

6.7.1 It is recognised that there is an opportunity to back fill opportunities as 

employees move from existing employers to be employed directly or through 

the supply chain of the Wylfa Newydd Power station (construction and 

operational phases). However the pull factor of higher wages would likely result 

in the most qualified and skilled local labour being taken up by Wylfa Newydd 

and as such create a need for training to provide suitable replacement labour in 

vacated roles.  Assessing the demand created for and proposing means of 

providing additional support for training in the areas where there is likely to be 

displacement activity relating to the local labour force i.e. the areas where local 

labour will take up job opportunities during the construction and operational 

phases of the power station. As indicated by the work to date this would include 

“construction trades and specialists” (40% of predicted local labour). The 

Page 99



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

14 

remaining 60% of local labour would be in “engaged in work supporting the 

construction workforce in a wide variety of roles”. As such it would be 

suggested that further work to define these groups is undertaken and 

appropriate training support and associated resources for these areas is 

included as mitigation. 

 

6.7.2 Further information and analysis on wage levels to be paid at the development 

and the impacts of this on the local economy in displacement terms requires be 

providing in short course and analysing against the current income profile on 

the Island. 

 

6.7.3 In some cases the loss of employees from businesses may have a negative 

impact in terms of reducing that firm’s ability to service existing and potential 

future contracts including those tendered to the market by HNP, Menter 

Newydd and its supply chain. An assessment of the likely impact on this aspect 

is required to allow the development of mitigation strategies.  

 

6.8 The supply chain charter requires being effective in engaging and encouraging 

existing businesses to compete and win contracts in the Wylfa Newydd supply 

chain through pro-active policies and agreed targets by value and number. This 

will help growth of the existing business base and retention of staff. A 

monitoring and review regime which can amend the approach to address any 

identified deficiencies during its operational period is therefore essential. The 

IACC expect that the monitoring and review will be undertaken in partnership 

with the authority and other relevant bodies including representatives of the 

business community. 

 

7 WELSH LANGUAGE AND CULTURE  

7.1 Anglesey is recognised as one of the strongholds of the Welsh language. The 

Welsh language is a natural element of everyday life on the island and is a 

reflection of its traditions and culture. Linked to this is the rich history and Welsh 

culture that defines the area and its inhabitants. The sustainability of the Welsh 

language is dependent upon improving Welsh communities by providing ample 

employment, educational, cultural and social opportunities to use the language 

on a daily basis. 

 

7.2 As previously stated in our response to PAC1 and the Project Update the IACC 

expects the Welsh Language and Culture to be treated as an all-encompassing 

theme and golden thread underpinning consideration of impacts and mitigation 

of all aspects of the Wylfa Newydd project. The authority does not consider that 

this approach has been taken by HNP in the PAC2 documentation as despite 

the statements that the Welsh Language is recognised as being important and 

running through all of the consideration of the impacts on it has been 

compartmentalised and considered in isolation on various elements. 

Page 100



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

15 

7.3 The IACC recognise that the impact of this project is at risk of being significant 

and far reaching in terms of the Welsh Language and culture. It is therefore 

essential that HNP demonstrates a firm commitment, including through 

appropriate mitigation, towards maintaining and strengthening the Welsh 

Language and culture ensuring a sustained legacy for future generations as 

outlined above. Robust planning is required to successfully mitigate the 

cumulative effect of the project both short  term and long term on the language 

and culture within all communities. 

 

7.4 The initial commitment shown by HNP in the early workshops with the aim of 

developing an action plan and mitigation strategy is welcomed and the authority 

remains committed to continue with this dialogue based on the above. All key 

strategies need to state HNP’s unequivocally commitment to mitigate against 

negative effects upon the Welsh Language and Culture.  

 

7.5 The IACC is aware that HNP is developing a Welsh Language and Culture 

Strategy and welcomes this acknowledgement of the importance of these 

elements to the Island’s communities and welcomes the consultation HNP has 

under on that element. HNP is encouraged to share this strategy with the IACC 

throughout its development in order to achieve the shared objectives of 

protecting and promoting these elements through pooling of expertise and local 

knowledge. The clear conclusion that there will be an overall adverse effect on 

Welsh language and culture through inward migration requires HNP to engage 

in short course to identify and develop suitable mitigation proposals.  

 

7.6 The IACC have recently adopted the Isle of Anglesey Welsh Language 

Strategy 2016-2021 which aims to increase the number of Welsh speakers on 

the island from 57.2% to 60% by 2021 in accordance with the Welsh 

Government’s draft strategy ‘A Million Welsh Speakers by 2050’. The strategy 

recognises the potential impact that the Wylfa Newydd development is likely to 

have on the Welsh Language and defines the key considerations for any 

measures aimed at enhancing any benefits and reducing the negative effects 

on the Welsh Language. This strategy is a key consideration in any measures 

aimed at enhancing any benefits and reducing the negative effects on the 

Welsh Language and should be given appropriate weight in progressing 

proposals. The IACC expects to see clear acknowledgement of and alignment 

with this strategy in forthcoming Welsh Language and Culture Strategy. 

 

7.7 HNP has made a high level commitment to use the Welsh Government’s Risk 

Assessment Methodology to risk assess and validate the WLIA and mitigation 

strategy.  This needs to be used to validate the robustness of impact assessing 

methodology, baseline information, assessment findings and proposed 

mitigations.  The IACC welcome HNP’s Welsh language pledge however there 

is a lack of clarity on any accountability arrangements, we would suggest that 

Page 101



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

16 

an accountability framework needs to be adopted for example e.g. MOU or 

contract in relation to that Pledge. In addition, actions and measures to ensure 

the pledge is delivered need to be defined and implemented. 

 

7.8 At this time, the WLIA does not fully recognise the enormous scale of the 

project and the direct and indirect impact of transient construction workers and 

their dependants will have on the Welsh Language and culture.  This results in 

the report lacking sufficient commitment to undertaking mitigation steps 

immediately.  It is essential to take action now in order to counteract the influx 

of workers engaged in the project.  

 

7.9 The IACC considers that the overall number of workers’ dependants at 480 

(including 170 children) is of concern as this will have implications on schools, 

services and communities and greater clarity and certainty in terms of precise 

number of workers and expected dependents is requested ahead of submission 

to define impacts on schools, services and communities and allow work to 

identify clear mitigation requirements to be progressed.  

 

7.10 It is noted that the WLIA interim report does not include education in the five 

key aspects of community life; the IACC considers that this is an omission 

which should be rectified.   

 

7.11 In addition there is a need for appropriate interface with the Welsh Education 

Strategic Plan (WESP) and the specific targets which must be met at a local 

level.  There is also insufficient interface with the Gwynedd and Anglesey’s 

Single Integrated Plan 2014 and the document fails to acknowledge sufficiently 

the statutory footing of wellbeing in Wales and the requirements of the Well-

being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Social Services and 

Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. 

 

7.12 Further specific suggestions on how the Welsh language and culture should be 

considered within proposals, protected and strengthened have been given in 

response to question 5 of the PAC2 consultation and are set out in Appendix B 

of this response.  

 

8 HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT  

8.1 The IACC is supportive of the online and offline works to the A5025 from Valley 

to the Wylfa Newydd site which will be a direct benefit to the developer to 

enable a safer travel route for its workers and contractors. We recognise the 

collaborative work which has been ongoing between the IACC and HNP to 

develop these proposals. The IACC expects this to continue as the proposals 

are refined.  

 

Page 102



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

17 

8.2 The IACC also recognise that HNP has prepared an Integrated Traffic and 

Transport Strategy (ITTS) detailing proposals as part of the Wylfa Newydd 

Project and appreciate that this will continue to evolve as further details 

emerge. It will be important that there is further collaboration with HNP on the 

development and refinement of the ITTS.  

 

8.3 Given that pre-application discussions have not yet commenced on the majority 

of the Associated Development and Off-Site Power Station Facilities we will 

only be offering high level comments on individual locations. IACC in its 

capacity as the Local Authority has provided comments on these sites in 

response to the details given without prejudice to any future decision of any 

part or function of the Council and for the purposes of this consultation only. 

Nothing in these comments may be taken to be the Council as Planning 

Authority’s position on any of the matters considered should they be included in 

any application and any such application will be determined or responded to on 

its merits as made. Nothing in these comments can or should be taken as the 

acceptance by IACC of the principle of a proposed use for any site. The IACC 

would encourage HNP to take up the opportunity for further discussion on this 

at the Pre-Application Stage.  

 

8.4 The IACC has provided specific comments on the bus routes and stops 

identified in response to question 4 of the PAC2 consultation and are set out in 

Appendix B of the response and that response should be read along with this 

section.  

 

8.5 Further consideration is recommended to assess how linkages between the 

Parc Cybi site and the Port of Holyhead can be improved to complement and 

support the delivery of the Enterprise Zone site and enhancing connectivity with 

the Port which is a key international gateway. Consideration should also be 

given to whether any upgrade of Holyhead Port to accommodate shipments by 

sea is required or if improvement of linkages with the port to the transport links 

will be necessary. 

 

 Sustainable Travel (including HNP Shuttle Buses and Park & Ride) 

8.6 The IACC welcomes HNP’s objective to seek infrastructure improvements and 

promotional initiatives to increase levels of public transport, walking and cycling 

and to ensure that schemes offer efficient, flexible, reliable and sustainable 

modes of transport for the workers. However, with the increase in traffic 

especially in larger vehicles such as HNP Shuttle Buses along the A5025 

between Wylfa and Amlwch there is increased risks to cyclists due to reduced 

road width and lack of roadside verges.  

 

8.7 Whilst acknowledging that the proposed strategy of providing ‘multi-stop’ shuttle 

services to pick-up workers at numerous stops along North West and North 

Page 103



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

18 

East Anglesey, may be feasible in theory, the IACC would question whether it is 

reasonable to assume that in practice all workers would be willing or able to 

walk or cycle to the nearest bus pick-up point.  

 

8.8 As constantly highlighted in its earlier responses the IACC has  serious 

concerns regarding the use of the A55 Junction 4 and the associated 

roundabouts capacity with the large number of vehicles entering and departing 

the proposed Park & Ride site. The comments below are without prejudice to 

that stance. Comments on the Dalar Hir site are provided in response to 

question 8 of the PAC2 consultation and are set out in Appendix B of the 

response and that response should be read along with this section.  

 

8.9 HNP figures suggest that single car occupancy will be utilised at the Park and 

Share facility which goes against numerous local and national policies such as 

Planning Policy Wales, Edition 8 and the SPG GP 14 on Transport. Planning 

Policy Wales “PPW” and TAN 18 seek to ensure that the location of major 

travel generating uses are located near district centres, public transport 

interchanges and that facilities are located in close proximity to their users (3.7 

TAN 18). PPW also promotes a resource efficient settlement pattern by locating 

developments so as to minimise the demand for travel, especially by the private 

car. Similarly, these policies expect major generators of travel demand to be 

located within centres or on accessible sites. It is highly likely that a high 

proportion of the workers would travel to the nearest pick-up point via car, 

particularly in times of inclement weather, which would increase the likelihood 

of indiscriminate and/or anti-social parking, causing obstruction and the 

potential for traffic congestion.  

 

8.10 IACC envisage that workers will make informal arrangements to meet each 

other near the A55 corridor, most likely at junctions 6, 7 and 8 and on the 

mainland to car share their onward journeys to Dalar Hir. IACC also envisage 

existing Park & Share facility at St Tysilio, Llanfairpwll will fill up early with 

Horizon workers, thus depriving local car sharing opportunities as well as 

introducing parking problems. The provision of facilities along these junctions 

therefore needs to form part of the measures proposed by Horizon in 

connection with their park and ride strategy. 

 

8.11 To increase the number of people sharing a vehicle, the IACC would 

recommend that smaller scale Park and Share facilities are constructed at 

strategic junctions (6, 7, and 8) on the Island and on the mainland along the 

A55. This would reduce the need for HNP to construct such a large facility 

irrespective of its location and would encourage car sharing and reduce the 

need for single occupancy car travel (there by promoting sustainable travel). 

This proposal would address foreseen problems of illegal and informal parking 

Page 104



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

19 

arrangements and provide long term parking benefits similar to the existing 

Park & Share at St. Tysilio.   

 

8.12 The solution of creating a number of Park and Share facilities would also add 

value to HNP’s Integrated Traffic & Transport Strategy and also contribute to 

HNP’s Operational Travel Plan. This would also help reduce congestion levels 

on Britannia Bridge and at A55 Junction 4.  

 

8.13 HNP’s statement that the majority of 800+ workers living in the Holyhead area 

are likely to be within easy walking or cycling distance of the shuttle bus 

terminus adjoining the railway station is not accepted and the IACC does not 

consider this conclusion to be robust. Proceeding on this flawed basis would 

increase the likelihood of illegal / anti-social parking, traffic congestion and road 

safety issues in the local area as workers drive to the pickup point where 

insufficient parking is available and the road impacts of the increased traffic 

have not been properly assessed or mitigated.  HNP also need to provide 

further details of the parking provision that will be provided to the 3,500 workers 

staying at Kingsland / Cae Glas Temporary Workers Accommodation. 

 

8.14 In order to address the IACC’s concerns HNP should consider: 

 

8.14.1 Providing additional pick-up points along the route for the 800+ workers 

anticipated to be residing in the Holyhead Area (at locations to be agreed with 

IACC).  

 

8.14.2 Provide parking facilities at the Kingsland / Cae Glas Temporary Workers 

Accommodation to allow a proportion of the 800+ workers living/staying in the 

Holyhead area to use the Shuttle Bus service from this location. This would 

reduce the need for such a large car park at the chosen Park & Ride facility. 

 

Travel to and from HNPs preferred Temporary Workers Accommodation 

from Mainland (at beginning/end of shift pattern)  

8.15 The strategic road network on Anglesey does not include the Class III road to 

Rhosgoch and Burwen, as shown in numerous figures within the PAC2 

documents Should the preferred site at Rhosgoch be brought forward there is 

likelihood of significant increase in uncontrolled traffic numbers using Class II, 

III and unclassified roads to access Rhosgoch Workers Accommodation from/to 

the A55. The IACC are concerned that workers will be ‘rat running’ across the 

island on unsuitable country roads at the beginning and end of the shift pattern. 

It would be naïve to expect that the majority of the construction workers to head 

north from Rhosgoch to the A5025, travel along the A5025 to Valley before 

joining the A55 on their way home. The likelihood is that they will follow the 

shortest route on Satellite Navigation and travel via the unsuitable Class III road 

to Tyn Ffrwd, before progressing along the B5111 to Llannerchymedd and then 

Page 105



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

20 

onto the A55 via Trefor or Llangefni. That road infrastructure is unsuitable for 

the anticipated volumes of vehicles which would arise at shift changes. There is 

significant risk that this would lead to issues such as road safety concerns, 

increased congestion and increased potential for vehicle collisions, edge of 

carriageway damage and complaints by local residents which will lead to a 

negative legacy in terms of the construction of Wylfa Newydd. The IACC will 

require discussions with HNP to agree on adequate mitigation measures along 

the Class III road between Rhosgoch and Burwen if the Rhosgoch site is 

progressed.  

 

Marine Off-Loading Facility (MOLF) 

8.16 Although HNP proposed that the MOLF will deliver between 60-80% of material 

to the site the IACC believe that the numbers of HGV movements are not being 

given sufficient weight or consideration by HNP. At Hinkley Point C, EDF 

proposed to bring in 80% of materials by sea but still have up to 500 HGV 

movements per day site. 

 

Highway Improvements and Enhancement Measures on the A5025 between 

Wylfa Newydd and Amlwch, including the road linking the A5025 to the 

proposed Temporary Workers’ Accommodation at Rhosgoch. 

8.17 The strategic road network on Anglesey does not include the Class III road 

between Rhosgoch and Burwen as shown in numerous figures within the PAC2 

documentation.  

 

8.18 IACC considers that the road is unsuitable to accommodate an increase in 

number of large vehicles (buses) due to restrictive widths and lack of roadside 

verges. Despite the relatively small overall increase in traffic volume, IACC 

considers the percentage increase in large vehicles (e.g. shuttle buses) at shift 

start/end times is very significant. The traffic flow increase should be assessed 

as an hourly increase in bus traffic (to include all Temporary Workers’ 

Accommodation and ‘Anglesey North East’ bus shuttle service), rather than the 

vehicle Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT). Accident data should be analysed 

for large vehicle types, as well as recognising the very high severity index. i.e. 

the ratio of killed and seriously injured compared to the total number of 

accidents.  

 

 Resilience of Britannia Bridge  

8.19 The IACC re-iterates its position with regards to the resilience of Britannia 

Bridge. Local experience and traffic data already suggests that the Britannia 

Bridge is a pinch point on the A55 and at peak periods (eastbound AM and 

westbound PM), during summer months, or when the ferry has disembarked at 

Holyhead; this has considerable traffic implications on the Britannia Bridge. 

This is the only section of the E22 Euro Route which is single carriage so this is 

already a concern which will be further compounded by traffic generated by 

Page 106



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

21 

Wylfa Newydd.  Additionally, adverse weather conditions have a significant 

impact on both the Britannia Bridge and Menai Bridge (diversion route) where 

the bridges may be closed to high sided vehicles. This raises significant 

concerns with regards to resilience.  

 

8.20 HNP need to work closely with the IACC, the Welsh Government, National Grid 

and other public sector partners (such as North Wales Police) to fully assess 

the potential impacts on the Britannia Bridge and develop appropriate mitigation 

to reduce the volume of HNP traffic crossing the bridge. These issues have 

been raised previously and need to be investigated further.  

 

 Operational and Emergency Arrangements  

8.21 The IACC would welcome discussions with HNP regarding arrangements to 

deal with emergency events. We request that HNP engage with North Wales 

Emergency Planning Department on the Emergency Plan to adequately deal 

with various situations.  

 

8.22 Currently there is no consideration of how HNP will manage a situation should 

a serious incident fully close the A5025, thus prohibiting access to the Wylfa 

Newydd Site and Associated Development Sites. No alternative suitable routes 

have been identified between Wylfa Newydd and the various Associated 

Development sites. Neither has there been consideration to targeted winter 

maintenance on Wylfa Newydd access routes or where there is potential for 

delay and disruption due to uncontrolled utility street works on Wylfa Newydd 

access routes.  

 

8.23 The IACC considers that it may be expedient to consider the introduction of the 

Street Works Permit Scheme to manage utility works on Wylfa access routes to 

mitigate against delays caused by street works. Such a scheme would require 

to be publically consulted upon, submitted to and approved by the Welsh 

Ministers and therefore has a substantial lead in time before taking effect. HNP 

is therefore encouraged to engage with IACC in short course to establish 

whether such a scheme could mitigate some of the concerns raised and allow 

assessment work to undertaken to underpin the preparation of any scheme.  

 

 Traffic Management 

8.24 HNP acknowledge that during the construction phase of the Associated 

Developments there will be increased traffic levels in the transportation of 

goods, materials and workers. The IACC have concerns on the significant 

increase in uncontrolled traffic numbers and use of unsuitable roads which will 

lead to a number of road safety concerns as has already been outlined. In 

addition to the suggested capital works to help overcome these concerns, the 

IACC suggest that HNP create the following: 

Page 107



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

22 

8.24.1 A comprehensive and robust Associated Development Sites Construction 

Traffic Management Scheme for IACC’s approval.  

 

8.24.2 A detailed Project Execution Plan whereby the Logistics Centre and Park & 

Ride facility are constructed first as to minimise the impacts on the local road 

network.   

 

8.25 At both the construction and operational phase of the project, HNP have 

acknowledged the need for a Travel Information Pack to be included in workers’ 

contracts to encourage travel by more sustainable means. This proposed 

approach is insufficient and a more robust Travel Plan which would be 

monitored and updated regularly is required. The plan should provide 

incentives for workers to travel sustainably and to avoid dependence on the 

private car. The IACC will require further discussions with HNP to formulate an 

adequate and robust Travel Plan that is fit for purpose for both the construction 

and operational phase. 

 

8.26 From a Highways and Transport perspective, the IACC suggests that HNP 

consider the following (not exhaustive): 

 

8.26.1 Improvements on the direct route from Rhosgoch to the A55 which is the 

B5112 (A5 Treban to Llannerch-y-medd), B5111 (Llannerch-y-medd to Ty’n 

Ffrwd junction) and the Class III road from Ty’n Ffrwd junction to Rhosgoch 

TWA site - make suitable alternative route during an emergency event.  

 

8.26.2 Specifying a contractual obligation that all workers must use a particular route 

as part of their employment contract.   

 

8.26.3 Road improvements to the A5025 from  Cemaes to Amlwch which would 

benefit the Wylfa Newydd project in the following ways: 

 

8.26.3.1 Improved route for HNP shuttle buses to access Temporary Workers’ 

Accommodation (TWA) as well as the proposed North-East service. 

 

8.26.3.2 Improving the road linking Rhosgoch TWA to the A5025 to an 

acceptable standard.  

 

8.26.3.3 Provide a suitable alternative route during an emergency event to 

similar standard of the Online Works to A5025 Valley to Wylfa Newydd. 

 

8.26.3.4 Improve the road to a standard where it could be considered as an 

alternative emergency route in the event of an incident on the A5025 

West. 

 

Page 108



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

23 

8.26.3.5 Reduce the risk of HNP shuttle buses colliding with each other. 

 

8.26.3.6 Potential to link the improvements with cycling provision. 

 

8.26.3.7 Improved safety for non-motorised users (NMU’s) to mitigate against 

the increase in large vehicles, e.g. HNP shuttle buses. 

 

8.26.4 Improved safety for Copper Trail Cycle Route users. 

 

8.26.5 A dedicated additional winter maintenance provision for Wylfa Newydd access 

routes; 

 

9 TOURISM  

9.1 Tourism is the largest sector of the Anglesey economy generating over £256M 

annually. We acknowledge that HNP and their consultants have submitted a 

Tourism Assessment for the IACC’s consideration. The IACC are considering 

and will respond to the Tourism Assessment separately however in general we 

would comment that this Theme has not been considered in sufficient depth 

and detail within the PAC2 documentation. Issues arising from this assessment 

include adverse impacts on tourism accommodation availability, reduced visitor 

numbers during construction period, disruption to visitors through increasing 

congestion/trips generated by the development. Whilst noting the tourism 

survey results, surveying reaction to a project that is not yet built is presuming 

some certainty of the actual outcome which cannot be relied upon when dealing 

with people’s perception.   

 

9.2 The IACC welcomes the potential significant positive tourism benefits from this 

project with the site itself being an attraction and the potential increased use of 

local restaurants, pubs and food. The PAC2 documents do not acknowledge in 

detail the potential benefits/impacts and the IACC along with the Destination 

Anglesey Partnership would welcome further discussions surrounding 

enhancing the positive elements as well as adequately mitigating against 

adverse impacts.  As previously stated in the IACC’s response to PAC1 and 

Project Update, detailed tourism assessments require to be undertaken and 

mitigation measures to be developed with the IACC to ensure that adverse 

tourism impacts are either avoided, mitigated or compensated for.  

 

9.3 The risk of deterioration in accommodation standards in the tourism 

accommodation assessment is recognised in the Tourism Assessment but the 

reference to proposed mitigation (B1.214) relates to the possible provision of 

leisure services not any reference to maintaining accommodation standards in 

the tourism sector. 

 

Page 109



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

24 

9.4 The overall approach to assessing impacts on all types of accommodation is 

based on the availability of bed spaces and does not take into account the way 

in which accommodation would be let. In many instances this would not be on a 

bed space basis but for a whole property. The use of bed spaces 

underestimates the demand and also relies on having the ability to manage 

demand across tenures and types of accommodation as well as control the 

accommodation decisions of a significant in-coming labour force. The 

assessment of minor adverse impacts for the tourism sector would appear to 

downplay impacts and this is likely to be the case for other accommodation 

particularly in the private rented sector.  

 

9.5 Maintaining and improving the tourism offer during the construction of Wylfa 

Newydd is of critical importance. Attractions are an important element within the 

wider tourism offer and the IACC sees the construction of tourism facility as 

being a unique proposition to our visitors. Hence, the IACC are supportive in 

principle of the concept of creating a Visitor and Media Centre. IACC needs 

greater dialogue with HNP on the creation of this centre, the exact location and 

the planned construction period.  Anecdotal evidence from other sites is 

showing a large following for construction tourism, and the IACC believes the 

centre should be operational at an early stage of the project build in order to 

maximise on this potential and create a central focus for visitors wishing to view 

the site. The IACC envisages the new visitor centre being a major conduit 

between the community and the power station as HNP has identified within the 

consultation documents. This would provide a very popular wet weather visitor 

attraction, add to the range of educational facilities on Anglesey and make an 

ideal stop whilst circumnavigating the coastal path, or visiting the North of the 

island.   

 

9.6 Overall there is limited additional work on tourism impacts and mitigation 

proposals. On the basis of the information provided it is not clear as to the 

extent of impacts on the tourism sector from the perspective of visitor activity, 

impacts on accommodation and wider impacts on activity within the sector 

including displacement of employment from businesses in sectors including 

hospitality, food, catering and other sectors of central importance to the tourism 

sector and wider economy. Reference to a tourism strategy which sets out 

mitigation measures is made but this is neither provided nor any detail given on 

mitigation.  

 

9.7 This is highlighted as a topic that contributes to the wider case being made 

regarding uncertainty in assessments and the case for a Community Resilience 

Fund to enable intervention where impacts are occurring for which mitigation 

has not been proposed or is not proving effective. Other mitigation suggestions 

for further consideration include:  

Page 110



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

25 

9.7.1 Monitoring officer/ resource to provide regular surveys with visitors to gauge 

impacts and adapt mitigation as the Wylfa Newydd development progresses. 

 

9.7.2 Contribution to resource to existing activity to mitigate the loss of visitor and 

associated income. 

 

9.7.3 Resources for training in wider sectors that would suffer from displacement 

effects e.g. food sector, hospitality/catering and other areas that could support 

the construction phase of the project to reduce the impact of employment 

loss/displacement in existing businesses and ensure a supply of suitably skilled 

labour. Accommodation and Food is highlighted in recent analysis as an 

important growth sector for Anglesey along with transport and distribution.   

 

9.8 Wylfa Newydd will have a major impact on the Wales Coastal Path. There will 

be a significant loss of amenity to coastal path users, local residents and 

visitors to the area during the construction phase and potentially during the 

operational phase. During the operational phase, the permanent route of the 

Coastal path should be positioned as close to the sea as possible offering 

users the best coastal route option with enhanced sea views. One of the 

proposed alternative options achieves this aim, is therefore preferable and 

should be explored in more detail.  The IACC would be pleased to discuss this 

further with HNP prior to finalisation of this aspect.    

 

9.9 Where rights of way, byways and cycle paths are affected by the development 

of major projects, alternative routes should be planned for and promoted to 

both residents and visitors to encourage travel by sustainable modes and 

further discussions is required with the IACC to come to an agreement. 

 

9.10 The IACC re-iterate this point as at this time Tourism has not yet been 

considered in sufficient depth and detail and would encourage HNP to give 

much more weight and consideration to this Theme ahead of any application.  

 

10 CONSTRUCTION WORKERS ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY 

10.1 The IACC welcome the inclusion of the Construction Worker Accommodation 

Strategy as part of the PAC2 consultation. This is a significant step forward 

from the PAC1 consultation and the Project Update (January 2016) which had 

little information on HNP’s Strategy for accommodating temporary construction 

workers (in terms of number of workers, potential locations and distribution by 

accommodation type/sector).   

 

10.2 There remains however concerns regarding the limited detail within the 

Strategy and the suggestion that there will be limited impacts from hosting the 

workforce for the Wylfa Newydd project. The IACC has significant concerns 

regarding HNP’s proposed distribution of workers into the various sectors.  

Page 111



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

26 

 Private Rented Sector 

10.3 HNP state that there is capacity of 1,300 bed spaces in the Private Rented 

Sector (PRS) and in the Construction Worker Accommodation Strategy it states 

that at peak, 1,100 workers will be accommodated in the sector. The IACC 

have serious reservations about this statement as HNP will effectively take up 

most of the headroom capacity in the PRS and yet appears to fail to recognise 

that this will have a considerable impact on this sector.  

 

10.4 Evidence commissioned by the IACC suggests that only 260 private rented 

properties become available in Anglesey each year (churn). The evidence also 

states that if north Gwynedd was included, then the figure would be 858 

properties each year (however this includes Bangor which is a University City).  

 

10.5 The IACC appreciate that the above references properties and not bed spaces, 

however the lack of availability in the PRS will have a significant detrimental 

impact on future rental prices. Based on HNP’s current Strategy, this will result 

in increased rent prices (due increased demand and less supply available on 

the market) and landlords being incentivised to end existing tenancies rather 

than renewing them in order to obtain higher rental income from construction 

workers. This will result in local people will not be able to afford to rent a house 

and this could significantly increase the risk of homelessness on the Island, 

displacement of local people who have to move to find affordable 

accommodation and the subsequent impacts on community cohesion, Welsh 

language and culture and availability of labour. 

 

10.6 Given that lack of existing capacity in the PRS and the number of people 

currently on the waiting list for a Council property (350), any decrease in 

availability of houses to rent or increase in rental prices as a result, would 

cause a significant adverse impact to Anglesey’s PRS which is unacceptable. 

HNP needs to address this up front by increasing supply of permanent houses 

available to rent (both for construction workers and local people) thus providing 

long lasting legacy. 

 

10.7 The IACC fully recognise that Wylfa Newydd will provide an opportunity for 

PRS Landlords for the duration of the construction period (and potentially 

beyond) and this is welcomed and supported in principle, however this should 

not be to the detriment of the sector as a whole and more particularly the more 

vulnerable families who are currently housed in this sector.  

 

10.8 The IACC suggests that the proposed mitigation include: 

 

10.8.1 Supporting or promoting measures to increase supply of Private Rented 

Accommodation available on Anglesey. HNP will need to work with the IACC, 

Welsh Government and other partners to increase the supply of new 

Page 112



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

27 

permanent accommodation, bringing empty homes back in to active use and 

encouraging landlords to increase the supply of PRS available and to ensure 

that it is of a sufficient standard. 

 

10.8.2 Provide the IACC with a Housing Fund for the purpose of providing financial 

support for initiatives designed to deliver additional housing capacity in order 

to mitigate any potential adverse effects on the local housing market that will 

arise from the Wylfa Newydd Project. In respect of the PRS, the Housing 

Fund shall be used for initiatives such as:  

 

10.8.2.1 The accreditation of Landlords; 

 

10.8.2.2 Stimulating new supply in the private rented sector through financial 

assistance for minor improvements; 

 

10.8.2.3 Supporting a rent deposit or guarantee scheme through the provision 

of rent deposits for households moving into the private rented sector; 

 

10.8.2.4 Funding the employment of IACC Housing Officers to manage, 

administer and monitor the Housing Fund and Initiatives in addition to 

the funding of extra resources to enable the IACC’s Environmental 

Health team to monitor the additional houses in multiple occupation. 

 

10.8.2.5 Supporting other housing mitigation measures, such as emergency 

housing services, if residents do become homeless or displaced. 

 

10.8.2.6 Monitoring supply and demand in the PRS. 

 

  Owner Occupied 

10.9  HNP assumes that 730 construction workers will purchase their own property 

which in the context of Anglesey is a significant figure. HNP state that 9,561 

bedspaces are available (of a stock of 38,450) and that the current turnover in 

the market suggests that 950 bedspaces are available. Based on this level of 

demand (i.e. 730); no direct effect on availability is expected therefore this will 

not have a significant effect on the owner occupied sector.  

 

10.10 The IACC believe this is misleading and over simplistic, as the workers who 

are likely to purchase a property could be well-paid, senior workers who are 

likely to be on Anglesey for the duration of the construction period (and 

potentially beyond)  and are likely to bring their families. These will most likely 

not be houses in multiple occupation which may house 3-4 construction 

workers to a property but family homes bought one per worker for them and 

their dependents. People do not purchase bedspaces they buy properties, 

Page 113



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

28 

950 bedspaces cannot be compared to 730 properties; if 3 bedrooms is taken 

as an average for a property the 730 properties is 2,190 bedspaces.  

 

10.11 Furthermore, in terms of the location of these properties, they are more likely 

to be on Anglesey (the wards of North Anglesey and potentially within 30 

minutes of site) and could be 3+ bedroom family style properties. The number 

of available properties in this owner occupied sector (i.e. within 30 minutes of 

site) is therefore expected to be much less than what HNP are assuming (i.e. 

within the KSA, or 60 minutes to site). HNP cite that developers will anticipate 

and respond to demand to create additional bedspaces. The IACC consider 

there is little evidence to suggest this will actually happen, and this approach 

cannot be relied upon.  

 

10.12 The potential impacts of workers purchasing properties on the Island on the 

existing housing market could be profound without appropriate mitigation 

being put in place. By reducing the number of houses available to buy for 

local people, this is likely to push up house prices meaning that local people 

cannot afford to buy a house in their local communities. This could lead to 

displacement of local people from their communities which could have a 

significant adverse impact on the sustainability of Anglesey’s rural 

communities and on other key issues such as the Welsh language.     

 

10.13 HNP will need to considerably increase the supply of houses on Anglesey to 

meet this increased demand through initiatives such as bringing back empty 

properties (which the IACC acknowledge and welcome), but also by building 

or stimulating the building of much more permanent accommodation on 

Anglesey than the 50 units proposed at Madyn Farm. As mentioned above, 

730 dwellings during the construction period is a huge amount of properties in 

the context of Anglesey and this could result in significant long term adverse 

impacts on the local housing market and the communities, facilities and 

services of Anglesey. 

 

10.14 The IACC suggests that the proposed mitigation includes: 

 

10.14.1 Provide the IACC with a Housing Fund for the purpose of providing 

financial support for initiatives designed to deliver additional housing 

capacity in order to mitigate any potential adverse effects on the local 

housing market that might arise from the Wylfa Newydd Project.  

 

10.14.2 Work collaboratively with the IACC, Welsh Government and other 

housing partners to provide more permanent accommodation on the 

Island which will ease the pressure on the housing market and will 

provide a legacy for both Wylfa Newydd operational workers and the 

residents of Anglesey.  

Page 114



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

29 

10.14.3 Financial contribution and/or provision of social infrastructure facilities 

and services on Anglesey (details to be confirmed following 

assessment of capacity and quality of existing provision against future 

requirements) to provide adequate provision for the construction 

workers and the residents of Anglesey. 

 

10.14.4 Any new housing built on the island must be in line with the LDP, and 

in areas where residents will want to live in the future (looking at future 

legacy) and must not adversely impact on language, and local 

infrastructure.  The legacy should not be housing which cannot be sold 

in future years, which may result in a negative legacy. 

 

  Empty Homes 

10.15 The IACC recognise and welcomes HNP’s commitment to bringing back 

empty homes to active use. The IACC is supportive of the commitment to 

facilitate a reduction in the number of empty homes in Anglesey, but this 

should not only be to directly provide accommodation for construction workers 

but also to mitigate for wider displacement effects caused by the influx of 

workers and any consequential effects on rent levels and house prices.  

 

10.16 To encourage owners/landlords to provide accommodation for both uses 

careful planning will required. Whilst there are in the region of 800 empty 

properties on the Island at any one time, there are many reasons why a 

property remains empty and therefore when making assumptions on the 

number of empty properties which could accommodate Wylfa Newydd 

Workers the figure should take account of those properties which are unlikely 

to be made available, for example:- 

 

 “Transactional” vacancies, i.e. properties which are empty between let or 

whilst they are in the process of being sold;  

 Properties under renovation either to owner occupy or to let; 

 Properties unsuitable for upgrade to rental standards e.g. because of a 

lack of services or their location; 

 Owners not wishing to return their properties back into use for a variety of 

reasons. 

 

10.17 On the Main Transport Route, there are currently 200 long-term empty 

properties. This demonstrates the extent of the problem on this side of the 

island which is going to be further impacted by HNP development. HNP 

should therefore commit to providing grants/loans to bring empty properties 

back to use as a means of mitigating against the potential displacement of 

local people from the PRS and owner occupied sector.  

Page 115



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

30 

10.18 Uptake of the existing Houses into Homes loan scheme for landlords 

renovating/converting properties to rent has been high, and from discussions 

with some of the smaller developers and landlords, at least 6 of the projects 

have been developed with Wylfa Newydd construction workers in mind.  

However, many owners are awaiting the announcement of a definite starting 

date for the Wylfa Newydd build (Final Investment Decision) before making a 

decision to invest in their existing empty properties to prepare them for the 

rental market and before adding to their rental portfolio.  It is therefore difficult 

to predict the demand for future funding.   

 

10.19 Whilst empty homes can support the accommodation needs of construction 

workers, consideration should also be given to the under-utilised empty 

commercial buildings and chapels on the Island, which may be suitable for 

conversion into worker accommodation and become part of the housing 

legacy thereafter. This would align with the guidance given in the SPG which 

promotes and supports the conversion of existing buildings to provide worker 

accommodation.  

 

10.20 The IACC recognise the role empty properties can play in increasing the 

supply of housing on the Island and welcome bringing these empty properties 

back to active use. This had many social benefits which should be 

encouraged. The IACC would urge HNP to work with the IACC and property 

owners in order to bring these properties back into use before HNP’s Final 

Investment Decision. This will allow enough lead in time for these properties 

to be identified, a scheme to be established and work to commence on these 

properties. 

 

10.21 The IACC suggests that the proposed mitigation includes: 

 

10.21.1 HNP to fund an Empty Homes Scheme to encourage people to bring 

empty homes back into the housing market. This Empty Homes 

Scheme shall include properties for Wylfa Newydd Workers as well as 

for local people in order to mitigate against any displacement issues in 

the PRS and to ensure that local people can purchase a home during 

the construction phase.  

 

10.21.2 HNP to fund 2 Empty Homes Officers for the build period and financial 

grant availability for owners of empty properties. These properties can 

be brought back into use, and could for example house 3 contractors in 

each dwelling.  This initiative would improve the condition of the 

existing housing stock in the private rented sector, which would be 

monitored for health and safety for the future through Rent Smart 

Wales and out local Environmental Health Service.  This work needs to 

Page 116



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

31 

start in 2017. Waiting until Wylfa Newydd Final Investment Decision 

(FID) will be too late.  

 

 Horizon’s Construction Worker Accommodation Strategy 

10.22 Although we recognise that a buffer/contingency is required for construction 

worker accommodation, Temporary Construction Worker Accommodation 

should not be seen as a default position if adequate provision is available in 

other sectors. HNP will need to provide a choice of accommodation and up 

front mitigation will be required to increase the level of housing stock (supply) 

to meet the demand. This includes bringing empty homes back to active use 

(as identified above), increase the supply of permanent accommodation (to 

rent and to buy) and provide contingency for the IACC to mitigate against any 

adverse impacts on existing residents (e.g. private rented sector and the 

ability of local people to afford a house due to HNP taking up the available 

stock driving up property prices). 

 

10.23 The IACC understands the proposal for 500 bed spaces on site (although this 

requires significant further clarification/justification in terms of what type of 

worker is ‘essential’ to be housed on site) and are fully supportive of the use 

of Land & Lakes to provide 3,500 bedspaces given that it has recently 

secured planning permission and leaves am acceptable legacy for Anglesey. 

The IACC is however concerned that if a deal cannot be struck with Land & 

Lakes then this provision will automatically default to the HNP preferred site at 

Rhosgoch and other accommodation types/sectors. Although this deal is 

subject to a commercial negotiation between Horizon and Land & Lakes 

(which the IACC wish to play no part or influence whatsoever) a contingency 

must be factored in at this stage for the IACC and the public’s consideration 

(i.e. a credible alternative to Land & Lakes).   

 

10.24 The IACC also require more permanent accommodation than just 50 units at 

Madyn Farm to be provided. There are numerous other potential sites which 

are suitable in Amlwch, including Amlwch A which has a housing allocation in 

the forthcoming JLDP and other areas within 30-60 minutes as sites which are 

suitable for permanent accommodation. Working collaboratively with the IACC 

and the WG, the IACC believes that more permanent housing should be 

developed which will provide a greater legacy and could provide 

accommodation for the 730 workers who are anticipated to purchase their 

own home during construction and the operational workforce thereafter. 

 

10.25 Furthermore, if adequate provision is not available in the other sectors (i.e. 

tourism, PRS and owner occupied) equally, the default should not be 

Rhosgoch. HNP will need to ensure that adequate provision is available in the 

PRS so as not to drive up rental prices and adversely affect resident’s ability 

to afford to rent a house. In the same vein, tourism capacity should be 

Page 117



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

32 

carefully considered (i.e. in terms of the number of bed spaces available) but 

also this analysis should be looked at spatially in order to maintain an 

appropriate balance between tourism and construction workers 

accommodation provision.  

 

10.26 HNP will also need to ensure that the Island’s facilities and services are not 

adversely affected during the construction phase. This includes for example 

leisure facilities, GP Surgeries, Dentists, schools, Post Office etc. Being a 9 

year construction project, Wylfa Newydd could have an impact on Anglesey’s 

facilities and services for a number of years which needs to be adequately 

and appropriately mitigated. This is particularly relevant to Horizon’s 

Construction Worker Accommodation Strategy as the majority of these social 

impacts will dependent on this Strategy (i.e. where the workers are going to 

be located and in what numbers, what social infrastructure requirements do 

the workers require and what is the capacity of existing provision, who has 

responsibility for providing this provision, how is this going to be provided and 

where.  

 

10.27 Given the scale of this project and the number of construction workers 

anticipated, this will undoubtedly have an impact on Anglesey's social 

infrastructure. Although it is difficult to account for personal choice and human 

behaviour, the number of workers who will not be in purpose built campus 

style accommodation is still significant and will have an impact on Anglesey's 

facilities and services. Even the workers in the temporary camps will seek 

facilities and services in their 3 days off which needs to be considered. The 

IACC will therefore seek mitigation for both these quantifiable and 

unquantifiable impacts. This could for example be improvements to leisure 

facilities, healthcare facilities and similar provision.  

 

10.28 The IACC suggests that the proposed mitigation includes: 

 

10.28.1 HNP to increase supply of accommodation in other sectors (particularly 

PRS, owner occupied and latent accommodation). This will reduce 

pressure on an already constrained housing market and will ensure 

that the default position is not temporary workers accommodation. Any 

additional housing should be quality housing, which can be as part of 

future housing legacy for the Island.  The IACC will work with HNP to 

create accommodation models which can be transferred from 

construction workers accommodation into quality family homes, post 

construction period. 

 

10.28.2 Continue to develop and fund the Construction Worker Accommodation 

Management Portal (CWAMP). This will ensure that an appropriate mix 

of accommodation type is utilised and will ensure that an appropriate 

Page 118



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

33 

spatial distribution of the workers is achieved. Monitoring of the portal 

should be undertaken against a set of agreed thresholds which when 

reached, trigger the release of a defined number of temporary 

construction worker housing.  

 

10.28.3 The CWAMP concept will only partly answer the issues which relate to 

the local housing market context, but will help towards managing the 

contractors based in the PRS and will also help raise the condition of 

the PRS stock on the Island, through regular checks of the properties 

by Environmental Health Officers and Housing Officers.  Membership 

and governance arrangements of the CWAMP will be essential to get 

this right, together with and agreed code of conduct and implications of 

breaking the code, being made explicit.  This will lead to reduced social 

cohesion issues on the Island, thereby reducing the workload of the 

IACC’s Officers, in particular the Anti-Social Behaviour Officer.  There 

will be a need for HNP to employ additional ASB officers, or fund the 

IACC and Police to do so. 

 

10.28.4 Work collaboratively with the IACC, Welsh Government and other 

housing partners to provide more permanent accommodation on the 

Island which will ease the pressure on the housing market and will 

provide a legacy for both Wylfa Newydd operational workers and the 

residents of Anglesey.  

 

10.28.5 Financial contribution towards and provision of adequate social 

infrastructure provision for the construction workers and Anglesey 

residents.  In response to a question raised by HNP in the Project 

Update 2016, improvement of existing facilities and services was the 

preferred option and the IACC would support this view.  

 

10.28.6 There is a need for a specific package and strategy, working with the 

IACC’s Housing Services, on how HNP will support the vulnerable 

households potentially displaced by Wylfa Newydd development.  We 

estimate that 2,000 Anglesey households will be at risk, if rent is 

increased by 10% locally in the PRS, of these 330 will be pensioners, 

and 598 lone parents.  

 

11 LEGACY  

11.1 The IACC believes that Wylfa Newydd has the potential to bring significant 

benefits and impacts to Anglesey and its communities for a number of years.  

The development, operation and legacy of the Wylfa NNB (and its associated 

developments) will be key to transforming the long term sustainability, wellbeing 

and vibrancy of the island and its residents. 

Page 119



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

34 

11.2 Legacy needs to be better defined.  At present there is a complete lack of 

detail, on how funding may be provided and there is limited clarity on the 

mechanics of delivery, of targets, scope, timing and duration.  For all legacy 

benefits identified, the IACC will expect such details to be provided in advance 

of submission so that it can comment appropriately within the Local Impact 

Report.  We also understand that such information will be of value to the 

examining authority which (see NPS EN-1 paragraph 5.12.8) is required to 

consider any legacy benefits that may arise. 

 

11.3 The IACC is currently developing a thematic framework to outline our legacy 

vision and aspirations from the various major developments proposed for the 

island and we will be engaging further with HNP, other companies, 

communities and organisations to secure support for its delivery.  For the 

purpose of this framework, ‘legacy’ means ensuring a positive impact for 

Anglesey and its communities from the development, delivery and hosting of all 

proposed major projects. 

 

11.4 The IACC’s legacy aspirations are also encompassed within its vision for the 

Wylfa Newydd project.  This vision is set out clearly within the Wylfa Newydd 

SPG: 

 

11.5 The New Nuclear Build at Wylfa is a positive driver for the transformation of the 

economy and communities on Anglesey, providing sustainable employment 

opportunities, improving the quality of life for existing and future generations 

and enhancing local identity and distinctiveness.  

 

11.6 Legacy benefits are not seen by the IACC in purely monetary terms and value.  

Legacy can relate to the spatial impacts of Wylfa Newydd and what Anglesey 

will look like post construction - including the location and purpose of all 

associated developments - and what additional facilities and resources will be 

required to service these sites.  Achieving a positive legacy is also linked to 

providing future employment for the island’s residents; ensuring local 

businesses can capitalise upon supply chain opportunities; improving or 

developing new community facilities and enhancing Anglesey’s infrastructure.  

Legacy benefits are also integral to improving health, well-being, quality of life 

and the Island’s natural environment, as well as supporting and strengthening 

the Welsh language and culture. These legacy benefits can be delivered 

through both statutory and voluntary mechanisms, and are an appropriate 

means to mitigate and/ or compensate for adverse impacts.   

 

11.7 We recommend that meaningful and proactive legacy discussions begin as 

soon as possible with HNP in order to ensure that all opportunities to improve 

the quality of life and wellbeing for the island’s existing and future generations 

are capitalised upon.  There is a need to ensure that Wylfa Newydd (and its 

Page 120



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

35 

associated development) are developed, constructed and operated in a co-

ordinated and integrated manner to best influence and support the short and 

long term future of Anglesey.  

 

11.8 The inclusion of a Chapter within the Main Consultation report which 

establishes HNP’s commitment to ensuring that the Project delivers long-term 

benefits and enhancements for communities throughout its life, including 

positive legacy benefits, is welcomed.  However, many of the legacy benefits 

listed within the document represent, in the opinion of the IACC, secondary 

benefits resulting from project requirements rather than legacy benefits in their 

own right.  For example the legacy resulting from the A5025 improvements is a 

by-product of the requirement to enhance the safety of the highway in order to 

facilitate the project.  Similarly the renovation of the existing housing stock is 

required to mitigate the effects of the project on the local housing market, the 

continued occupation of the properties following construction is again a by-

product of the project. 

 

11.9 In addition, some of the benefits identified, such as the retention of leisure 

facilities at Rhosgoch would be entirely inconsistent with the IACC planning 

policy and lead to a facility some distance from the main population centre in 

Amlwch.  Local community legacy would be better served by the enhancement 

of the existing Amlwch Leisure Centre.  

 

11.10 In view of the above the list of legacy benefits set out by HNP forms, in the 

opinion of the IACC a starting point rather than a comprehensive list of what 

local communities would expect as a result of hosting a project with a lifespan 

of up to 100 years.  Reference by HNP to the list of benefits still being under 

consideration and remaining “along the lines of those discussed at Stage One 

Pre-Application Consultation” is disappointing and given HNP’s declared 

timetable to submission suggests that a great deal of work requires  to be 

done, in partnership with the IACC over the coming months.  

 

11.11 The IACC remains of the position that opportunities to enhance legacy, in 

order to secure the greatest positive outcome from the project should be 

identified against a range of social, economic, environmental and cultural 

measures.  The IACC provides a large number of possible legacy examples 

throughout its SPG and in many cases the potential to maximise benefits 

arises with the appropriate siting of facilities.  For example, were HNP to 

revisit its current unacceptable disregard of Llangefni as a location for any 

form of project related development opportunities for legacy within or in close 

proximity to the Island’s largest community, then significant legacy benefits 

could be realised. 

 

Page 121



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

36 

11.12 In addition to a lack of appropriate consideration given to effects that location 

can bring for legacy HNP should also consider legacy in addition to the socio-

economic sphere.  There is presently a total lack of reference to 

environmental legacy, including improvements to the culture of the island, its 

historic places and landscapes and to its natural history.  Located alongside 

SSSI’s, SPA’s, an AONB and Registered Park and Garden for example the 

IACC would expect to see commitments to long term enhancement and 

stewardship leaving a strong environmental legacy for future generations.  

 

11.13 The following list is non-exhaustive but includes some of the potential 

thematic areas which the IACC would expect to see legacy benefits to assist 

in: 

 Creating a thriving and prosperous economy 

 A confident island that prides itself on its strong economy, providing 

employment opportunities for all. 

 An island recognised globally for the scale and diversity of its energy 

research, development, production and servicing. 

 A hub for sustainable businesses that support a prosperous, low carbon 

society and encourage innovation and entrepreneurship.   

 A well connected place with robust transport infrastructure. 

 An island that continues to attract a diverse range of visitors. 

 

 Enabling residents to achieve their full potential 

 A place where opportunities exist for young people to remain on the island 

to live and work. 

 A well-educated and highly skilled population. 

 A place where communities and individuals can maintain and develop their 

independence. 

 A place where people choose to live and thrive. 

 An island which projects a positive image regionally, nationally and 

internationally. 

 

 Ensuring residents are healthy, safe and equal 

 A safe, secure and attractive island to live and work. 

 An island with excellent community services and facilities, including high 

quality and modern schools, affordable housing and effective health 

provision. 

 A place where deprivation, inequality and social immobility have been 

reduced; and services meet the needs of vulnerable groups. 

 An island where people actively participate in recreation, leisure and 

cultural activities. 

 

 

Page 122



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

37 

 Protecting and enhancing the natural and built environment 

 An island that recognises the value and quality of its environment. 

 An island with a rich and diverse natural environment that supports 

resilience. 

 A place where the natural and built environments are used sustainably.  

 An island with a high quality public realm. 

 

 Maintaining and promoting the language and culture 

 A place that celebrates its unique cultural and geographical identify and 

distinctiveness. 

 An island that embraces and promotes its proud cultural heritage and the 

Welsh language. 

 

11.14 An important aspect of securing a positive legacy will be the ability of the 

community to address unforeseen or unquantified issues as and when they 

arise. There is a need to deliver a mitigation response that has sufficient 

flexibility to respond. Where impacts cannot be fully assessed in advance or 

fully mitigated then alternative mitigating measures will be required. This 

would include the Community Resilience Fund designed to deal with 

unanticipated or underestimated impacts or those which are simply not 

quantifiable. The Community Resilience Fund would: 

 

 address the consequences of development; 

 specifically target and empower local people in responding to the 

impacts of development; 

 be intentionally flexible in order to be able to address impacts as they 

occur and tackle the problem of unusable funds arising from overly 

restrictive distribution criteria. 

 

11.15 The IACC considers that detailed legacy discussions need to begin as soon 

as possible in order to ensure that all opportunities to improve the quality of 

life for the island’s existing and future generations are taken.  

 

12 CUMULATIVE IMPACTS  

12.1 Given the number of major developments proposed on Anglesey over the next 

5 to10 years, there is a real risk of adverse cumulative impacts on the Island. 

This includes cumulative impacts within HNP’s development (i.e. Wylfa Newydd 

Site and associated developments) and cumulative impacts with other major 

development such as Land & Lakes, National Grid, LNG Great Lakes, Orthios 

and others.  

 

12.2 The IACC re-iterates that HNP will need to consider and account for these 

cumulative impacts throughout the project going forward. The IACC would 

Page 123



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

38 

expect to agree in advance the approach and methodology to assess the 

cumulative impacts on the Island and to monitor the cumulative impacts as 

major projects develop with HNP.   

 

12.3 Key cumulative issues for the IACC include the potential economic 

opportunities afforded to the local workforce as a result of a number of projects 

coming forward on Anglesey at the same time.  We are aware that HNP is 

looking at the skills required locally with a view to increasing training to enable 

workers to take advantages of employment opportunities and supporting STEM 

awareness and training in schools in addition to post- secondary education to 

ensure that younger residents are able to identify and take advantage of future 

workplace opportunities. Precise details of the measures to be taken should be 

provided.  

 

12.4 Support for improved educational attainment and the raising of aspirations will 

also be important in addressing the potential for significant cumulative effects 

from all of the Wylfa Newydd Project developments on businesses and the 

supply chain.  Such effects are broadly considered to be beneficial due to an 

increase in demand.  However local businesses may struggle to retain and 

recruit in the face of competition from the project and a requirement to support 

existing businesses through skills development and training support will be 

needed. 

 

12.5 Cumulative effects will be felt on the Island’s tourist industry.  HNP identifies 

mitigation such as marketing and 'Brand' support for the tourism sector as a 

means to reduce effects.  This commitment is supported but mitigation in the 

form of potential alternative tourism attractions to maintain numbers of visitors 

during construction (e.g. improvements elsewhere to the long distance footpath 

network, cycle network, and early introduction of the visitor centre or a 

temporary facility) will also be required.  Marketing and branding should also 

commence in advance of construction to ensure that visitors are not dissuaded 

initially from visiting Anglesey. 

 

12.6 Cumulative environmental effects upon local communities and the environment 

may include those arising from air quality, noise and from visual effects.  A 

combination of effects may give rise to a significant level of disturbance upon 

communities which surround the site and the main transport corridors which 

connect it.  The IACC expects to see sufficient information, including cumulative 

visualisations, to enable robust conclusions to be reached on the significance of 

effects upon local communities. Similarly sufficient information will be required 

to enable consideration of the combined effects upon the AONB and other 

designated sites. 

 

Page 124



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

39 

12.7 We remain concerned over the lack of consideration of the Welsh Language as 

a receptor in the cumulative environmental documentation submitted.  It is 

considered that cumulative effects upon the Welsh language should be 

assessed and mitigation identified where conclusions of significance are 

reached. 

 

12.8 The above effects are not exhaustive. The IACC are also eager to explore the 

cumulative impacts on housing, social infrastructure, highway infrastructure and 

health well-being. 

 

12.9 The IACC has reviewed HNP’s cumulative assessment. Comments on the level 

of information provided, the methodological approach, and the long and short 

lists of sites are provided within the IACC’s PEIR Response document.  

 

13 NUCLEAR WASTE  

13.1 The consideration of radiological issues within the PEIR is welcomed by the 

IACC although further detail is still required. The lack of a chapter at PAC1 was 

a concern of the IACC and it is noted that the Secretary of State did request 

consideration of such effects within the EIA Scoping Opinion.   

 

13.2 The IACC accepts that the control of radiological emissions will be controlled by 

other regulators however the authority is keen to understand the potential for 

cumulative effects between the operation of Wylfa Newydd and the 

decommissioning of the existing Wylfa Power Station. Whilst the PEIR 

references consideration of such effects within the cumulative assessment, and 

whilst the existing Wylfa Power Station is scoped in, no subsequent reference 

is made and no assessment is provided.    

 

13.3 On the issue of cumulative effects the IACC also would wish to see information 

provided on the type, number and frequency of vehicle movements associated 

with the movement of radiological material through the communities which live 

alongside the A5025 and an estimate of the dosing that may result.  HNP will 

be aware that matters of perception around health are a key concern of local 

communities and the implement of mitigation and/or compensation measures 

agreed with the IACC, should be considered where the potential for adverse 

impacts on local communities, the economy or the environment are identified. 

 

13.4 We note the potential for the continued storage of spent fuel up to 140 years 

post operation (with HLW also, potentially being stored at least until after 

decommissioning).  The environmental statement should consider the effects of 

retaining such a facility over such a long period of time which represents the 

lifetimes of generations of Anglesey residents.   

 

Page 125



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

40 

13.5 Information on the type of waste generated, amount and requirement for 

storage is welcomed. We would in addition wish to see information provided on 

the anticipated variance in waste over the operation of the plant and significant 

variances should be modelled both for their effects upon transportation (where 

the waste is to be exported off site). 

 

13.6 The potential for climate change effects so long into the future will be difficult to 

accurately analyses but we do expect HNP to demonstrate the safe storage of 

spent fuel over the lifetime of the facility.  

 

13.7 In going forward, the IACC would expect the environmental statement to 

include quantitative analysis and evidence to support the assertions and 

conclusions contained within the PEIR.  In addition, and consistent with the 

SPG, the IACC expects HNP to: 

 

 Identify and assess the potential effects of nuclear waste storage; 

 Fully engage with the Island’s communities in developing proposals for 

nuclear waste storage; 

 Implement mitigation and/or compensation measures as appropriate; 

 Provide adequate site security via the Nuclear Constabulary; 

 Provide clarity on the means of decommissioning. 

 

13.8 HNP require undertaking more work to identify the potential effects upon local 

communities and identify mitigation and compensation measures in line with 

SPG GP17. This will include providing a fund to cover residual impacts which 

have not been contemplated and are either unquantifiable or capable of 

mitigation but will nevertheless be experienced by communities and their 

residents. Such impacts will include dealing with the prospect of nuclear waste 

and spent fuel being stored at Wylfa Newydd not for an ‘interim’ period but for 

up to 140 years. 

 

14 WELLBEING, COHESION AND EQUALITY 

Wellbeing, Scope of Impact Assessments 

 

14.1 Specific responses on health well-being and equalities queries raised in PAC2 

have been given in response to questions 6 and 7 of the PAC2 consultation 

and are set out in Appendix [B] of the response which should be read along 

with this theme. 

 

14.2 As previously stated in the Local Authority’s response to the Wylfa Newydd 

Project Update and the Health Impact Assessment Progress Report (HIAPR), 

the Council expects Wellbeing to be treated as an all-encompassing theme 

underpinning consideration of impacts and mitigation of all aspects of the Wylfa 

Page 126



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

41 

Newydd project.  It is of concern that this approach has not been taken by HNP 

in the PAC2 documentation and the IACC would encourage HNP to revisit this 

aspect prior to progressing the final HIA. 

 

14.3 The PAC2 documentation is based on the narrower health impact assessment 

requirement (which pre-dates the Wellbeing legislation) and does not 

appropriately address wellbeing.  This is despite the issue being raised by the 

Council in its response to the Project Update document and the HIAPR and 

also a number of discussions between HNP, the Council and Wellbeing 

partners over the past 6 months.   

 

14.4 The HIAIR discusses the demand for some medical and health care services 

but does not make any reference to social care and wellbeing services.  This is 

a significant omission as the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 

provides a framework for further collaboration and integration of health, social 

care and wellbeing.  This is regrettable as the Council has previously stated this 

in its response to the Project Update document and the HIAPR. 

 

14.5 The three draft Impact Assessments (Health, Environmental and Equalities) 

and any mitigating actions cannot be developed in isolation, without full 

consideration of the entire project.  The proposals continue to lack sufficient 

detail.  Clarity on these matters is crucial in order to enable: 

 

 A well informed assessment of community, health, social care and 

wellbeing impacts 

 Development of ambitious legacy investments for communities on 

Anglesey for the mitigation of adverse impacts (both locality specific 

and Anglesey wide). 

 

14.6 There are significant data gaps in the community, health, social care and 

wellbeing aspects of the impacts assessments being: 

 

14.6.1 Current data on health, social care and wellbeing services and capacity 

 

14.6.2 Qualitative information collated from vulnerable children, young people and 

adults on care and support services and capacity 

 

14.6.3 Factors that have an effect on the quality of life of individuals and 

communities on the Island 

 

14.6.4 Community wellbeing baseline profiles and state of reports for each electoral 

ward on the Island from an economic, social, environmental and cultural 

wellbeing perspective (underpinned by the Wellbeing of Future Generations 

sustainable Development principle). 

Page 127



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

42 

14.6.5 Critical assessment, analysis and interpretation of likely impacts of Wylfa 

Newydd on social care and wellbeing and the resilience of the Island’s 

communities. 

 

14.7 As previously stated in the IACC’s response to the Project Update document 

and the impact assessment progress reports, the current Impact Assessments 

are fragmented and are not integrated assessments across the plethora of 

community, health, social care and wellbeing considerations.  Information in the 

individual impact assessments is contradictory.  The Equality Impact 

Assessment has been developed within the framework of the English legislative 

requirement and makes no reference at all to the Welsh specific duties.  Also, 

the EIAIR discusses a very narrow interpretation of public services, makes no 

explicit reference to services that are commissioned to meet the needs of 

vulnerable children, young people and adults and mental health/illness issues 

are a significant omission.  The IACC suggests the following points are 

considered: 

 

14.7.1 Steps should be taken to ensure that Wellbeing is treated as an all-

encompassing theme throughout the Project. 

 

14.7.2 As previously proposed, the IACC requests a more detailed discussion on 

how the health, social care and wellbeing impacts of the proposed 

developments are addressed as part of the entire project.  Consideration 

should be given to including this within the scope of the community cohesion 

assessment (which was not included in PAC1 or PAC2 and is yet to 

commence).  The proposed Health and Wellbeing Strategy should also be a 

focus for these discussions. 

 

14.7.3 An assessment of the impacts on demand for social care and wellbeing 

services should be undertaken jointly with the work planned on identifying the 

impacts on demand for medical and healthcare services and mitigation 

measures. 

 

14.7.4 Early sight of the final proposals for the whole project is required in order to 

ensure a well-informed assessment of impacts and proposals for mitigation.  

There are key considerations for statutory services and partner organisations 

in the 3rd Sector and independent sector which will require adequate time to 

provide a robust response and propose mitigation. 

 

14.7.5 Urgent steps should be taken to commission work packages to fill the data 

gaps identified in order to ensure a robust baseline profile and impact 

assessment of community, health, social care and wellbeing conditions upon 

which to development sustainable mitigation measures. 

Page 128



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

43 

14.7.6 Steps require to be taken to ensure that the impact assessments are 

integrated assessments across the spectrum of community, health, social 

care and wellbeing considerations.  Information in the individual impact 

assessments should be reviewed to ensure that the information is current and 

is not contradictory. 

 

14.7.7 The scope of the HIA must be broadened to include people with learning 

difficulties, cognitive impairments and additional learning needs and also long 

term chronic conditions as affected population groups. 

 

14.8 Local data for the population near the Wylfa Newydd development area 

suggest above average rates of obesity compared to Anglesey and Wales. Any 

reduction in the availability of sports and leisure facilities or the attractiveness 

of outdoor spaces for recreation may make this aspect harder to address.  

Relocating activities to Amlwch Leisure Centre is not a sufficient measure to 

mitigate against these impacts.  Noise, dust and visual appeal may also affect 

how areas are used for physical activity. 

 

15 SAFEGUARDING, COMMUNITY COHESION AND IMPACTS  

15.1 Safeguarding, lifestyle and behaviours are all issues of significant concern 

which will affect community cohesion of local communities.  HNP have not 

properly recognised the importance of ensuring robust safeguarding 

arrangements in place as proposed by IACC in its response to the Project 

Update Document and HIAPR. 

 

15.2 The IACC notes that HNP intend to have policies in place for workforce conduct 

which will set a clear expected standard of conduct.  IACC believes that HNP 

should also apply similar, robust conduct expectations for its contractors.   

 

15.3 Any increase in risk taking behaviours by the population hosting the 

construction workforce and young people will have an impact on community 

cohesion.  For example an increase in alcohol consumption whilst boosting the 

general night time economy is highly likely to have adverse effects such as 

increase in community tensions, rate of anti-social behaviour incidents, 

violent/hate crime incidents and consequently increase the fear of crime. 

 

15.4 The IACC believes that a goal of an Island of cohesive communities is essential 

and safer communities through our joint working with the Police and other Blue 

Light services and the Community Safety Partnership should be a given.  IACC 

are concerned about the potential increase in Human Trafficking and modern 

day slavery activities as a direct impact of Wylfa Newydd.  These behaviours 

have serious, adverse impacts on local communities.  PAC2 does not include 

proposals to illustrate how HNP intends to inter-connect with existing groups 

Page 129



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

44 

and structures who lead on modern slavery and human trafficking, these should 

be set out an consulted upon ahead of submission of the applications. 

 

15.5 IACC agrees with the view of HNP that it is imperative that consideration be 

given to how health promotion activities amongst the workforce, dependents, 

facilities management, supply chain and local communities can be effectively 

targeted and sustained during the construction phase of Wylfa Newydd.  We 

are of the view that vulnerability will be particularly significant in the following 

situations – people living close to construction worker accommodation 

buildings, young adults and people with learning difficulties, cognitive 

impairments or with additional learning needs (being more impressionable) and 

people who already engage in behaviours for which the health risks may 

increase.  

 

15.6 In addition to young people, vulnerable adults with care needs and older people 

should also be considered as groups being particularly sensitive in the 

population.  These adults are often integrated in local communities, living 

independently and supported to meet their care needs.  It is absolutely 

paramount that these potential safeguarding risks are managed and minimised 

through effective mitigation measures.  The IACC suggests the following are 

considered: 

 

15.7 HNP should engage with IACC and partner agencies to ensure robust, 

integrated safeguarding arrangements in order to minimise any potential 

safeguarding risks during the construction phase of Wylfa Newydd and beyond.  

These arrangements should include, amongst other matters, the following 

elements: 

 

15.7.1 Vulnerable adults in the vicinity of the development and also further afield 

across the Island be encouraged to engage with activities as part of Agewell 

and Community Hub activities.  Capacity of these hubs will require expansion 

and investment by the developer 

 

15.7.2 In addition to a 24/7 hotline, there also needs to be a financial agreement in 

place between HNP, partner agencies and community representatives to deal 

with lifestyle issues resulting from crime and disorder etc.   

 

15.7.3 Human Trafficking and modern day slavery - HNP should engage with the 

relevant authorities to ensure greater controls are in place during the 

construction phase in order to proactively respond to and minimise the 

potential for significant safeguarding issues 

 

15.7.4 A mechanism be established to monitor the wellbeing of affected communities 

and robust baselines established against which to evaluate impacts of lifestyle 

Page 130



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

45 

and risk taking behaviours (this is currently a data gap which forms part of a 

resource bid to HNP in July, 2016) 

 

15.7.5 Diversify the functions of the Housing Hub in order to minimise any potential 

safeguarding risks to adults should they choose to rent out spare rooms.  

  

15.7.6 Urgent steps require to be taken to complete the proposed assessment of 

community cohesion to realise the goal of an Anglesey of cohesive 

communities.  The impact assessment should also include mitigation measures 

to minimise adverse impacts including: 

 HNP to acknowledge the obligations that will be required of the Blue 

Light organisations in the form of extra policing, manpower and 

resources, facilities etc all of which will be as a direct consequence of 

the HNP proposals 

 Further discussions with IACC and partner organisations to integrate 

with existing safeguarding structures to tackle modern slavery (both in 

terms of intelligence sharing and bolstering of victim support capacity) 

 A shared ambition of communities across the Island which are more 

attractive, viable, safer and better connected as a consequence of 

Wylfa Newydd. 

 

15.7.7 Consider how health promotion activities (including sexual health) with the 

workforce and local communities can be effectively targeted and sustained 

during the construction phase of Wylfa Newydd.   

 

16 ACCESS AND SERVICES 

16.1 On air quality, HNP are anticipating periodic elevated levels of Particulates 

(Dust) and Nitrogen Dioxide. Consideration is being given to what air quality 

monitoring should be conducted and how vulnerable people living nearby can 

be alerted when the combination of weather conditions and Wylfa Newydd 

activities impact adversely on air quality.  

 

16.2 Noise is anticipated as being a significant impact; it is likely that the IACC will 

receive complaints on this issue which it is obliged to investigate. Of those 

residents living closest to the construction works, people who spend a large 

amount of time at home during the day, including older people, people with 

disabilities and parents at home with children, will be most likely to be affected.  

Children at Cemaes Primary School will experience an increase noise levels 

during construction.    

 

16.3 Accommodating workers in private rented sector (such as spare bedrooms) 

poses the potential for significant safeguarding issues unless managed 

Page 131



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

46 

appropriately to minimise risk.  The IACC is concerned as regards how to 

ensure adequate measures in place to: 

 

16.3.1.1 Protect vulnerable children, young people and adults within dwellings 

where occupiers let spare rooms or empty properties 

 

16.3.1.2 Respond to the consequences of utilising housing options for 

construction workers that would otherwise have been available to 

accommodate vulnerable individuals living in local communities who 

are reliant on state benefits as their only source of income. 

 

16.4 There remains insufficient recognition of impacts on local transport 

infrastructures – in particular the A5025 between Cemaes and Amlwch.  As 

previously advised in response to PAC1, Project Update and HIAPR, this is a 

high profile, political issue and has not been fully addressed despite it being the 

main highway artery between the proposed development site and possible 

locations for temporary worker accommodation.  The HIAIR does not 

adequately consider how the resilience of both the Menai and Britannia Bridges 

between the Island and the mainland will be assessed should there be a major 

incident.  Users of health, social care and wellbeing services and also the 

professionals who support their health and social care needs travel extensively 

on the Island and on the mainland – to access or provide health and social care 

services.     

 

16.5 The IACC suggests that the following are addressed: 

 

16.5.1 IACC will expect a scheme of monitoring for Nitrogen Dioxide in and around 

the development, A5025 and A55 (Llanfairpwll By-pass). There should also be 

a further scheme of monitoring for fine particulates (PM10 & PM2.5) and 

nuisance dust. The Council has already expressed its preference for adoption 

of WHO levels for PM2.5 as there is no recognised safe limit for this pollutant. 

We concur that given the potential impacts on health, there should be a 

method used to alert people when levels are high.  

 

16.5.2 IACC expects HNP to work with communities, 3rd sector and other providers 

in developing community activities, clubs or respite centres where individuals 

can seek refuge from the effects of construction.    

 

16.5.3 Resilience of both the Menai and Britannia Bridges should be fully considered 

in the impact assessments and discussions between IACC, Welsh 

Government and HNP on a mitigation strategy. 

   

Page 132



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

47 

16.5.4 Improvements to the main artery highways on the Island should be assessed 

and consideration given to alternative transportation options (other than 

roads) 

 

16.5.5 Have in place a fully costed and funded traffic management plan which factors 

in scenarios in the event of major incidents.   

 

Displacement of health and social care workforce 

16.6 As considered under theme 6 above, displacement of skills/jobs will not be 

confined to the construction sector and it is disappointing that this has not been 

recognised by HNP.   

 

16.7 HNP should recognise the significant risk of health and social care job 

displacement and commit to working with the IACC and other providers to 

address this issue through a long term workforce strategy 

 

Engagement and consultation 

16.8 Multiple references are made in the PAC2 documentation to an intention on the 

part of HNP to undertake further engagement and consultation with local 

communities and effected groups which in the arena of health, social care and 

wellbeing will include vulnerable and hard to reach groups however the PAC2 

documentation does not explicitly make reference to this.  IACC believes that 

this engagement and consultation work needs to be undertaken in a meaningful 

and engaging manner.  This has been previously raised with HNP and formed 

part of the IACC response to the Project Update Report and the HIAPR. 

 

16.9 As previously proposed by IACC, HNP should adopt the Participation Cymru 10 

National Principles of Public Engagement framework as a foundation for a 

robust programme of engagement and consultation with local communities and 

vulnerable groups. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 133



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

1 

 

STRATEGIC QUESTIONS 

 

1 Q1 “Do you have any general comments about the Wylfa Newydd 
Project as described in this Consultation?”  

1.1 The IACC refers HNP to the high level strategic report submitted as part of the 
IACC response1 where this question is fully addressed. In particular please 
see the introduction (section 1).  The IACC reiterates its continuing support for 
the Wylfa Newydd project and its stance that greater engagement on the 
detail of proposals, including mitigation and legacy, is needed as a matter of 
urgency to allow these to be properly developed ahead of the submission of 
any applications.   

1.2 We provide the following specific comments in response to this question 
under reference to the Main Consultation Document paragraph numbers: 

 1.19: The description of the Wylfa Newydd Power Station includes the 
proposed power station on the Wylfa Newydd site and ‘supporting 
structures and features to be constructed and operated on Anglesey’. We 
assume that the supporting structures and features includes what are 
described elsewhere as ‘offsite Power Station Facilities’ which will be 
physically separate from, but local to, the Power Station Site and are an 
integral part of Horizon’s the overall nuclear development. This should be 
made explicit in the description of the project along with the proposed 
consenting routes for the different elements, including Associated 
Development described in the second bullet point. 

 

 1.20: Reference to the ‘surrounding land and marine areas’ should be 
clarified to confirm that this refers to land and sea within the Wylfa Newydd 
Development Area which needs to be included in the above project 
definition. 

 

 1.21: The opportunities arising from the construction and operation of the 
Wylfa Newydd Power Station are not limited to training for jobs. Also, the 
IACC’s aspirations are not limited to the creation of ‘a world renowned 
centre of excellence for the production, demonstration and servicing of low 
carbon energy’. These are encapsulated in the Vision and seven Objectives 
for the Wylfa New Nuclear Build Project as set out in Chapter 3 of the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance which was formally adopted by the 
IACC following widespread public consultation. This is discussed further in 
the response below to your sub question on your project Vision and 
Objectives. Reference to the opportunities presented by the project must 
also include the inevitable impacts of a project of this scale and complexity 
and their mitigation. 

 

                                                           
1
 Appendix A of the Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s Second 

Stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC2) 

Page 135



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

2 

 

 1.22: Reference to the number and range of job and supply chain 
opportunities on offer to local people and businesses both during 
construction and operation is welcomed. A general statement on HNP’s 
commitment to providing support to help people and businesses to take 
advantage of these opportunities would be appreciated. The IACC 
considers that going forward and ahead of the submission of applications 
greater clarity and detail is required on labour requirements and profile to 
ensure there is an appropriate, collaborative response and mitigation is 
appropriately targeted. 

 

1.3 Turning to the Project Vision and Objectives Question “Do you have any 
comments on our Project Vision and objectives?” in Chapter 2 of the 
Main Consultation Document, the IACC wish to make the following 
observations for HNP to consider further:  

1.3.1 2.2: The Horizon Nuclear Power Wylfa Ltd main offices as opposed to 
premises, are in Gloucester, the site office on Anglesey is very small in 
comparison.  There is clear expectation in GP1 of the IACC SPG that 
an establishment of a Corporate Hub is located on the Island which 
would increase HNP’s profile in North Wales and provide support for 
the promotion of inward investment with a focus upon the 
establishment of companies involved in low carbon technology on 
Enterprise Zone sites. While it is known that HNP have moved away 
from the concept of a Corporate Hub as originally envisaged, 
enhanced local visibility and presence is critical to demonstrating clear 
commitment and action to the Island and region. The alternatives to 
the Corporate Hub being proposed to achieve the Local Purpose aim 
of strengthening the economy and community should therefore be set 
out.   

 

1.3.2 2.3: The Local Purpose embraces the economy, environment and 
communities. This aligns directly with the definition of Sustainable 
Development, a principle which underpins the Wellbeing Goals in 
National Assembly for Wales legislation which forms the basis for 
decision making by the IACC and other public bodies who are 
stakeholders in the Wylfa Newydd project.  

 

1.3.3 2.8: The IACC welcomes the upfront recognition of the importance of 
legacy in the project vision. It is however noted that legacy extends to 
Associated Development as well as the Power Station and should be 
delivered at all stages of its lifespan from development to construction 
to operation to decommissioning and after use of the Project sites and 
this could be more clearly expressed. Going forward the IACC wishes 
to engage with HNP on legacy in much greater detail and that will 
include an expectation in line with the SPG that this has been 

Page 136



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

3 

 

considered on all elements of the project including site selection and 
proposals for Associated Development as well as the Power Station 
proposals.   

 

1.3.4 2.9: In line with the Local Purpose HNP states that it will also seek to 
maximise the benefits and reduce the effects on the economy and 
culture.  The IACC welcomes this clear intention and the alignment of 
the vision with the SPG objective which this creates. The IACC 
considers that this element could be strengthened by specific 
reference being made to the adjacent communities to the Wylfa 
Newydd development. 

 

1.3.5 The project vision is somewhat generic and unrelated to the Wylfa site. 
The IACC would expect the vision to include reference to partnering 
with the host community to ensure the successful delivery of a 
sustainable energy future. It should include reference to the project 
itself and its host community as it is this location that will serve the 
New Nuclear Build for a period of 100 years or more. Stronger 
commitment is required between the developer and the host. It is 
recommended that the project vision mirrors the IACC’s SPG vision 
3.1: “The New Nuclear Build at Wylfa is a positive driver for the 
transformation of the economy and communities on Anglesey, 
providing sustainable employment opportunities, improving the quality 
of life for existing and future generations and enhancing the local 
identity and distinctiveness”.  Reference should be made to adjacent 
communities as there is no doubt there will be impacts resulting from 
the Wylfa Newydd Development.  

 

1.3.6 In relation to the Project Objectives, (Paragraph 2.10), we ask that you 
align these Objectives with those the IACC have set out in the SPG, 
i.e to ensure that the Wylfa Newydd Project: 

1.3.6.1 Contributes to the delivery of the Anglesey Energy Island 
Programme, and the Anglesey Enterprise Zone, placing the 
Island at the forefront of energy research and development, 
production and servicing; 

1.3.6.2 Drives the transformation of the Anglesey and North Wales 
economies and maximises opportunities for the employment 
and up-skilling of local people; 

1.3.6.3 Delivers significant and enduring infrastructure benefits to 
the Island’s communities; 

1.3.6.4 Supports improvements to the quality of life (including 
housing, health well- being and amenity) of the Island’s 

Page 137



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

4 

 

residents, visitors and workers during its construction and 
operation; 

1.3.6.5 Recognises and strengthens the unique identity of the Island 
and its communities; 

1.3.6.6 Promotes the sustainable movement of people and materials 
and provides resilient transportation infrastructure capable of 
attracting and sustaining economic growth and creating 
sustainable communities;  

1.3.6.7 Conserves and enhances the Island’s distinctive 
environment and resources, taking into account climate 
change. 

With regard to the second sub question: “Do you have any general comments on 

the Project components and their distribution?”  

1.4 This is assumed to relate to the different elements which make up the overall 
Wylfa Newydd Project. The response is set out in the covering letter to this 
response and the within the Appendices..  

Page 138



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

5 

 

Q2. Do you have any specific suggestions that we can consider to maximise 

uptake of these jobs and skills opportunities by local people? 

2.0 This topic area is addressed more broadly in the high level strategic report2 
submitted as part of the IACC response at sections 3 (Local Employment 
Opportunities), 4 (Education, Skills and Training) and 6 (Displacement). This 
section provides answers to the specific question asked but should be read 
along with the high level strategic report.  

2.1 It is acknowledged that this is a pre-application consultation and all of the 
information for the project may not yet be available in its final form however 
the IACC would welcome further information and clarity on the current 
estimated timing, type and numbers of workers and skills required at different 
stages of the construction period to inform discussion on this point. The initial 
breakdown of construction disciplines in table 9.1 is useful and further detail 
on that is sought.  This information was requested in the IACC response to 
PAC13 and to the informal consultation4. The IACC considers that this 
information is now required as a priority to inform the approach and discussion 
on jobs, skills, education and displacement.   

Jobs 

2.2 The Wylfa Newydd Employment and Skills Service requires to collaborate with 
the  North Wales Economic Ambition Board to ensure that the approach taken 
is appropriately reflects  and is aligned with the recently adopted Regional 
Skills and Employment Plan.  

2.3 It is essential that HNP commit to clear and practical mechanisms to secure 
and maximise local labour recruitment (including monitoring through the 
project’s supply chain). In addition to the Employment and Skills Service a 
commitment to advertise job opportunities locally, host/ attend recruitment and 
career events will ensure greater visibility and active promotion of 
opportunities.  

2.4 The IACC suggests that HNP consider the following to maximise uptake of 
local labour:  

2.4.1 Support increase resources for training in wider sectors to support  
construction e.g. security, clerical, administrative, catering and 
hospitality to  maximise the use of local labour  

2.4.2 Consider further investment to increase the target percentages in  
managerial/supervisory roles and further improvements in 
mechanical/electrical and civils occupations.  

                                                           
2
 Appendix A of the Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s Second 
Stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC2) 

3
 Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s First Stage Pre-Application 
Consultation (PAC1) dated 04 December 2014, covering letter at page 6 item III.  

4
 Response to the Horizon Nuclear Power informal Public Consultation on Project Update (January 
2016) dated 24 March 2016, Appendix 1, item 3.3 

Page 139



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

6 

 

2.4.3 Assist in the development of consortia so that local companies can 
come together to bid for tenders confidently. 

2.4.3 Assess ability of Menter Newydd and the supply chain allied to existing 
FE and training network (based in N Wales) to determine maximum 
possible labour participation in construction and operation (Grwp 
Llandrillo Menai) based on lead in times for specific training matched 
against occupations/skills demands.  

2.4.4 Commitment to and funding for advertising relevant job opportunities in 
local and regional press and through local intermediaries including Job 
Centre Plus, colleges, higher education providers, training providers 
and other relevant intermediaries involved in the delivery of training, job 
matching, recruitment and careers advice.  The Employment and Skills 
Service should be utilised here.  

2.4.5 Commit to working collaboratively with the IACC to attract returning 
workers.  

2.4.6 Utilise Sell2Wales wherever possible on tender opportunities. 

Education, Skills and Training 

2.5 The IACC suggests that HNP consider the following to help address concerns 
raised on education, skills and training and thereby to maximise the uptake of 
opportunities by local people: 

2.5.1 Work to determine a more precise view of training requirements and 
skills demands to hit and exceed the local employment targets – 
currently there is no information on this demand within the PEIR. 

2.5.2 Create apprenticeships and work placements leading to permanent 
jobs and set a clear target and commitment to a number of apprentices 
and work placements in different trades and occupations across the 
different phases of development (construction/ operation/ 
decommissioning) showing how this is broken down and what resource 
(financial and staff) is dedicated to delivering it. 

2.5.3 Provision of training to provide individuals with necessary nuclear 
health and safety and quality assurance requirements prior to on-site 
work e.g. Nuclear passport. 

2.5.4 Growth/ expansion on the Business Readiness Programme (a result of 
successful collaboration between the IACC, HNP, WG, NWEAB and 
NAMRC) which helps local companies develop the skillsets needed to 
take part in the nuclear industry’s supply chain.  

2.5.5 Investigate the potential to transfer trained labour from construction into 
operational phase – look at opportunities from professional/managerial 
roles through civils/mechanical/electrical through to trades and support. 
Have a “life cycle” training and employment package to demonstrate 

Page 140



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

7 

 

long term commitment and longevity of economic and social 
opportunities.  

2.5.6 Invest in training provision and new training facilities to maximise the 
proportion of job opportunities being taken by labour resident in the 
labour market/travel to work area in construction and operational 
phases. Includes capital investment in facilities both for construction 
trades, mechanical and electrical, civils, managerial and professional 
and support occupations to maximise the use of local talent and labour 
and address the impacts of labour displacement. 

2.5.7 Resources and investment for training in wider sectors that would 
suffer from displacement effects e.g. food sector, hospitality/catering 
and other areas that could support the construction phase of the 
project to reduce the impact of employment loss/displacement in 
existing businesses and ensure a supply of suitably skilled labour. 
Accommodation and Food is highlighted in recent analysis as an 
important growth sector for Anglesey along with transport and 
distribution.  These sectors could become quickly overheated through 
high levels of demand from Wylfa Newydd and also offer good entry 
level opportunities for the longer term unemployed and underemployed 
groups.  

2.5.8 Focus on under-utilised or employed elements of the working age 
population e.g. unemployed, low skilled in order to maximise the 
economic and social benefits of investment. 

2.5.9 Provision of graduate and post-graduate placements within the 
construction and operational workforces. 

2.5.10 Monitor and publicise performance around the recruitment, 
employment and training and apprenticeships achieved by the project 
during construction, operation and decommissioning. This would have 
a staff and training resource implication for the authority. 

2.5.11 Deliver a programme of awareness raising and promotion of 
opportunities for the existing and future workforce utilising existing 
training and education providers and wider press and promotional 
channels. 

2.5.12 IACC and HNP to work in partnership to introduce performance 
measures for local recruitment, employment, training and 
apprenticeships should also be set, promoted, and progress monitored 
to ensure that objectives are being achieved and any deficiency in 
delivery identified and addressed. 

2.6 The IACC invites HNP to collaborate to utilise established digital platforms to 
promote employment opportunities and directly target individuals from 
Anglesey and North Wales (who work across the world), but interested to 
return.  

Page 141



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

8 

 

2.7 All of the above activities are critical to enhance local employment which 
would in turn retain Welsh speakers and persons who are already part of the 
community and protect the Welsh language and culture.    

2.8 Please refer to the relevant section of the Nuclear New Build SPG for further 
advice and guidance on how the IACC expects the issues associated with this 
thematic area to be progressed. 

 

Page 142



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

9 

 

Q3 Temporary Worker Accommodation in the Amlwch area (including 

Rhosgoch and land adjacent to Madyn Farm, east and west of the B5111).    

Our preferred proposal is to provide accommodation for up to 3,500 workers at 

Holyhead (Cae Glas and Kingsland), 1,500 workers at Rhosgoch, 500 workers 

on-site for critical construction workers, 200 workers at Madyn Farm. However, 

we are considering alternative accommodation for up to 800 workers at 

Amlwch next to the permanent housing at Madyn Farm, east and west of the 

B5111. 

 

Now that we have developed more detailed proposals for both Rhosgoch and 

Amlwch (adjacent to Madyn Farm, east and west of the B5111) we welcome 

your views on the choice of sites, and the reasons for your preferences. 

3.0 HNP’s preferred proposal does not outline the sequence in which the 
proposed accommodation will be brought into use.  Clarity will be critical to 
influence and inform further impact assessment, management arrangements, 
mitigation and compensation.  

3.1 The IACC welcomes the fact that Land & Lakes is HNP’s preferred option to 
accommodate up to 3,500 workers and are fully supportive of this position 
given that it recently secured planning permission and provides a clear legacy 
benefit for the Island.  

3.2 We understand however that no commercial agreement has yet been reached 
with Land & Lakes and there is no credible alternative proposed in this 
consultation to house this number of workers elsewhere. Given the lack of 
capacity in the other accommodation sectors (PRS, owner occupied and 
tourism) and the fact that the alternative site which could be expanded to 
accommodate this number of workers (Rhosgoch)  is contrary to planning 
policy and therefore not supported in principle by the IACC , this is a 
significant risk to the project and local host community. HNP is fully aware of 
the IACC’s position on Rhosgoch. This site is a large, partly brownfield rural 
site with poor road infrastructure and access, it’s remote from all facilities and 
services and this proposal will result in a large number of vehicular 
movements to and from the site on a daily basis. The use of the site for 
temporary workers accommodation is contrary to planning policy (as outlined 
in the SPG and the emerging JLDP).   

3.3 The IACC has commented in general terms on the site selection methodology 
for the associated development at question 8 below and does not accept that 
HNP have demonstrated that there is no suitable sequentially preferable site. 
IACC is concerned that the site selection leading to the decision to progress 
Rhosgoch as the preferred site has been inappropriately influenced by the 
weight given to the fact that HNP have concluded a land agreement for that 
site and are therefore unwilling to properly consider alternatives. 

Page 143



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

10 

 

3.4 Given their different planning policy status, Amlwch A and B are addressed 
separately below.  

3.4.1 Amlwch A – This site is allocated in the emerging Joint Local 

Development Plan (Policy TAI14: Housing In Sub-­‐Regional Centre & 
Urban Service Centres, site T8) for housing, is sustainable and has the 
potential for good connectivity to the settlement, in particular along 
existing rights of way. The use of the site for residential 
accommodation is therefore accepted in principle however issues of 
density and the impacts of the numbers of residents would still need to 
be carefully considered. The IACC would support proposals which 
assist in bringing forward permanent housing on this site to meet the 
needs of the construction workers and also local residents. Permanent 
houses could be used by temporary construction workers in the first 
instance and then released as open market dwellings (with 50% being 
affordable) thereafter. This along with the Madyn Farm proposal would 
provide a better long term legacy for the people of Amlwch than 
temporary modular accommodation. Where HNP can demonstrate the 
permanent housing is not feasible for this site the legacy benefit of 
providing servicing to an allocated housing site would be considered to 
be positive and supported.  

3.4.2 Amlwch B – This site is in open countryside and is not currently 
allocated or proposed to be allocated in the forthcoming JLDP however 
its location neighbouring the Amlwch A allocated site and therefore the 
settlement boundary makes it sequentially preferable to an isolated site 
in the  open countryside without these qualifiers. The A and B sites 
together would provide the critical mass HNP have advised is 
necessary to make modular accommodation proposals economically 
viable. The site is more distant from the edge of the existing settlement 
and the meaning that impacts on amenity of the residential area can be 
limited. 

3.5 The IACC would need to ensure that Amlwch retained a 5 year land supply for 
housing if this site was utilised as temporary workers accommodation and this 
would require to be addressed in the planning statement for any application.  

3.6 If HNP were minded to develop more permanent accommodation in Amlwch, 
IACC would suggest that sites to the western side of Amlwch would be 
preferable to minimise the number of vehicular movements and other impacts 
on the town. The IACC would be keen to work with HNP and the Welsh 
Government to identify the most sustainable solution which works 
commercially for HNP but also works for the community affected in Amlwch 
with appropriate mitigation for the impacts on the housing sector and provides 
a legacy.  

3.7 The IACC has undertaken work to update the locational guidance given the 
SPG in response to the increased worker numbers advised by HNP which 
necessitate the review of the general approach. The IACC maintains its’ 
positon that locations must be sustainable, that sites adjacent to settlements 

Page 144



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

11 

 

as are preferable over rural locations on sustainability grounds and that the 
search area for sites has been drawn too narrowly and inappropriately 
excludes sites in the vicinity of Llangefni despite its status as a Centre. The 
work to update and reassess the IACC position is ongoing and ties also into 
the work on the progressing Joint Local Development Plan for which a sub-
policy specifically dealing with TWA has been proposed. The IACC strongly 
advises HNP to enter into discussion on this point with the planning authority 
ahead of submission of the TWA applications.  

 

 

Page 145



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

12 

 

Q4 We have improved our proposals for transporting workers around the 

island to minimise the impact on local roads and this now includes detail of 

our proposed bus routes and our preferred locations for bus stops. Do you 

any views on the bus routes and stops that we have identified? 

 

4.0 This topic area is addressed more broadly in the high level strategic report 
submitted as part of the IACC response at section 8 (Highways and 
Transport).  This section provides answers to the specific question asked but 
should be read along with the high level strategic report. 

4.1 The routes identified by HNP already accommodate a bus service. However, 
these are generally very minor and narrow roads and a number of these 
services are infrequent, with only a small number of buses on the road 
network. HNP’s proposed shuttle bus service will potentially significantly 
increase the proportion of buses / large vehicles on these routes, resulting in 
additional conflict and congestion. The scale of mitigation proposals is 
dependent on the level of increased buses on the road network. This could be 
from widening the road and providing passing bays or if the road network is 
deemed unsuitable due to the significant increase level of buses then Park & 
Share facilities would be required at strategic locations. Further details is 
given below.  

4.2 The IACC is supportive of a shuttle bus route serving Amlwch. However, road 
improvements to the A5025 between Wylfa Newydd and Amlwch would be 
essential in order to accommodate the percentage increase in large vehicles. 
The existing route has reduced verge width / clearance in places. Therefore 
upgrades to the road/verge width would be required to mitigate against the 
increased use of large vehicles. Other mitigation measures would be for HNP 
to utilise smaller buses which are more suitably designed for rural roads. The 
IACC would welcome further discussions with HNP on this to adequately 
mitigate against adverse impacts.   

4.3 A section of road network included within the central area of Anglesey route 
may be deemed unsuitable to accommodate shuttle buses (Carmel via Elim). 
It is not clear from the indicative map which road it is intended to use, 
particularly at the Carmel end. The side roads in this area are very narrow and 
unsuitable for larger vehicles. Horizon will need to clarify the intended route 
and demonstrate that it has sufficient capacity and width to accommodate 
shuttle buses.  

4.4 The shuttle bus route along the improved A5025 to a Park and Ride facility is 
supported in principle however the route shown is predicated on the facility 
being located at Dalar Hir and the IACC maintains its’ objection to this site at 
this time.  

 

Page 146



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

13 

 

4.5 The route along the A5025 up to Pentraeth (North East Area) is supported, 
subject to the provision of suitable parking / park and share facilities 
strategically located for easy access to the proposed bus stop locations to 
avoid increases in the likelihood of illegal parking and traffic congestion near 
the bus stop as a high proportion of workers in rural areas will depend on the 
private car to reach the closest bust stop from their home. The same is 
applicable for the route from Benllech via Llannerch-y-medd to Amlwch. 
However, the section of this route from Benllech to Llannerch-y-medd is 
narrow and winding. Whilst it currently serves an existing bus service, HNP’s 
proposed shuttle bus service will potentially significantly increase the 
proportion of buses / large vehicles on this section, resulting in additional 
conflict and congestion.  

4.6 The North West area route is supported, subject to the provision of suitable 
parking / park and share facilities strategically located for easy access to the 
proposed bus stop locations.  

The Holyhead and mainland route 

4.7 Current proposals indicate a single pick up point in the ‘Holyhead Terminus’. It 
is considered that due to the large number of potential workers within the 
Holyhead Town area, additional pick up locations around the town should be 
provided.  

4.8 To mitigate the potential impacts outlined above it is essential that HNP 
provide a number of parking / park and share facilities along the North East 
and North West bus service routes. This would address parking concerns and 
mitigate against indiscriminate parking, provide parking legacy, contribute to 
HNP’s Operational Travel Plan whilst encouraging car sharing and reduce 
single occupancy car travel where workers chose to drive to the pick-up 
points.  

4.9 The IACC invites HNP to discuss the potential leasing of existing under-used 
IACC car parks in Amlwch with it to address some of the points raised.  

4.10 The use of appropriately sized buses which are more suitable for rural roads 
and the routes proposed are also an essential mitigation consideration. 

4.11 Please refer to the relevant section of the Nuclear New Build SPG for further 
advice and guidance on how the IACC expects the issues associated with this 
thematic area to be progressed. 

Page 147



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

14 

 

Q5 The Welsh Language Impact Assessment Interim Report sets out our initial 

proposals for enhancing the benefits and reducing the negative effects of the 

Project 

Do you have any specific suggestions on the measures that we have 

identified to enhance benefits and reduce negative effects to Welsh-

speaking communities, or the Welsh language and culture? 

 

5.0 This topic area is addressed more broadly in the high level strategic report5 
submitted as part of the IACC response at section 7 (Welsh Language & 
Culture). This section provides answers to the specific question asked but 
should be read along with the high level strategic report.  

5.1 It is difficult to comment upon the measures identified by Horizon to enhance 
benefits and reduce negative effects to Welsh-speaking communities, or the 
Welsh language and culture since there is a general lack of clarity of wording 
and commitment to specific detail of proposed mitigation measures.  The 
interim WLIA contains all of the topics the IACC would expect to be included 
however it is lacking in detail and it is accordingly difficult for the IACC to 
make comments upon it as the Welsh language has been separated out from 
the PEIR meaning it lacks this information.  

5.2 The IACC has some concern that the study areas shown in figure 4.1 of the 
WLIA interim report are too narrowly defined at 1km and 5km from sites and 
should be wider to encompass the impacts across communities and the Island 
as a whole.     

5.3 The expected numbers of dependants moving to the Island (480) is of concern 
as this will have implications on schools, services and communities and the 
IACC requests greater clarity and certainty in terms of precise number of 
dependents expected to be provided to assist in defining the impacts on 
schools, services and communities in order to identify clear mitigations. 

5.4 The IACC has recently adopted the Isle of Anglesey Welsh Language 
Strategy 2016-2021 which should be a key consideration in any measures 
aimed at enhancing any benefits and reducing the negative effects on the 
Welsh Language. IACC considers that the following points require to be 
addressed to ensure that this element is properly considered and addressed: 

Children and Young People 

5.4.1 Employment opportunities for local people enabling them to remain on 
the Island to live and work 

5.4.2 To support projects to ensure that the Welsh Language is transferred 
within families, including incoming families of workers (both 

                                                           
5
 Appendix A of the Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s Second 
Stage Pre-Application Consultation (PAC2) 

Page 148



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

15 

 

construction and operation)  moving into the area as a result of the 
project 

5.4.3 Support improved resources for primary and secondary schools and 
colleges to promote the uptake of STEM subjects 

5.4.4 Commitment to support the language immersion/ learning project in the 
5 secondary school catchment areas (a peripatetic team of 6/ or a 
Language Centre in each) 

5.4.5 Adequate resources to promote and monitor the Language Charter 

5.4.6 Commitment to fund Welsh Social activities Co-ordinators for children 
and young people 

The Workforce 

5.4.7 Ensure that all apprentices can speak Welsh or are given the 
opportunity as part of their training to learn Welsh 

5.4.8 Ensure that HNP, Menter Newydd and the cascading supply chain 
commit to measures promoting the employment of local people via the 
Employment & Skills Service by advertising jobs locally in the first 
instance and by providing opportunities to train & up-skill local people 
before widening the net.  

5.4.9 Develop packages for all Wylfa Newydd workers to raise the 
awareness of the Welsh Language and Culture 

5.4.10 Facilitate and/or fund marketing campaigns to track migrant workers 
and attract them back to Anglesey 

The Community 

5.4.11 To create language profiles of every Anglesey ward in order to inform 
the strategic placement of workers 

5.5 It is noted that the Key Socio-economic study Area (KSA) in the WLIA interim 
report is  subdivided into the following sub-areas: 

• Anglesey North; 

• Anglesey West; 

• Anglesey South; and 

 Menai Mainland 

This does not align with the strategy which breaks these areas down further 
into wards and or with the local areas of influence identified in table 4.1. HNP 
is requested to consider refining these areas ahead of the final WLIA.    

Page 149



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

16 

 

5.6 The initial commitment shown by HNP in the early workshops with the aim of 
developing an action plan and mitigation strategy is welcomed and the IACC 
remains committed  to continuing  this dialogue. 

Page 150



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

17 

 

Q6   The Health Impact Assessment Interim Report sets out our initial 

proposals for enhancing the benefits and reducing the negative effects of the 

Project on health and wellbeing. 

Please can you provide thoughts on the positive benefits and potential 
risks to your wellbeing that you might expect from the Power Station?  If 
so, please tell us how these might affect your overall views about the 
Project 

 

Welsh Legislative Framework 

6.0 Similar to Welsh Language Culture Wellbeing including health must be treated 
as an all-encompassing theme underpinning our consideration of impacts and 
mitigation of Wylfa Newydd.  Wellbeing has a statutory footing in Wales6 and 
should be accorded greater weight in this assessment.  . 

 

Scope and Limitations of the Assessment 

6.1 The current scope of the HIAIR focuses on a narrow and deep assessment of 
public health and environmental health issues and does not consider the 
broader health, social care and wellbeing impacts of Wylfa Newydd. This has 
been raised previously by the IACC7.  The HIAIR discusses the demand for 
medical and health care services but does not make any reference to social 
care and wellbeing services.  This is a significant omission.   There are 
significant data gaps in the assessment.  IACC believes that the authority and 
HNP  should urgently work towards a common baseline which is agreed by 
key partners8, to ensure that risks and impacts are identified and mitigation 
agreed 

 

Positive benefits and potential risks to wellbeing 

6.2 Potential opportunities and impacts of Wylfa Newydd on communities, health 
and wellbeing are likely to be profound.  Wellbeing issues are partly covered 
by the Health Impact Assessment but also need to be fully reflected in the 
Equalities, Welsh Language and Environmental Impact Assessments and also 
the community impacts chapter of the Main Consultation Document. 

6.3 The IACC has prepared detailed comments on these potential benefits and 
negative impacts; a summary of the key Wellbeing themes is given here 

                                                           
6
 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 / Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 

2014 
7
 Response to the Horizon Nuclear Power informal Public Consultation on Project Update (January 

2016) dated 24 March 2016 
8
 Local Authority, Health Board, Public Health Wales, Blue Light organisations, Natural Resources 

Wales, 3
rd

 Sector 

Page 151



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

18 

 

which should be read in conjunction with the thematic response at Appendix A 
: 

6.3.1 Safeguarding and community cohesion – a number of risks have 
been highlighted around the protection of vulnerable children, young 
people and adults as a direct consequence of risk taking behaviours, 
human trafficking and modern slavery.  These behaviours have 
adverse impacts on the fabric and cohesion of local communities.  
Safeguarding is everyone’s business and mitigation measures will 
need to be in place to minimise any potential safeguarding risks. It is 
understood that HNP intend to have policies in place for workforce 
conduct which will set a clear expected standard of conduct.  IACC 
believes that HNP should also apply similar, robust conduct 
expectations for its contractors.  Chapter 15.7 of Appendix A provides a 
comprehensive list, although not exhaustive, of suggestions on ways of 
providing arrangements in place to minimise any potential safeguarding 
risks.  

 

6.3.2 Displacement of health and social care workforce – displacement 
of skills/jobs will not be confined to the construction sector.  People 
employed in low paid and seasonal jobs will be attracted to higher 
wages on offer with Wylfa Newydd – in particular the health and social 
care sector which are critical to the economy of the Island.  The health 
and social care sector9 is vulnerable to losing staff.  Some of these 
positions are already difficult to fill.  The impacts on highly critical 
services for vulnerable and older people could be far reaching. It is 
suggested that the mitigation for the displacement of health and social 
care should be a priority as part of the wider issue of displacement of 
labour as discussed in Chapter 6 of Appendix A.   

6.3.3 Access to services: traffic and transport – there remains insufficient 
recognition in the HIAIR of the impacts on local transport 
infrastructures and the assessment does not adequately consider 
resilience of the bridges between the Island and the mainland.  These 
will have significant negative effects on users of health, social care and 
wellbeing services and also on the professionals who support their 
health and care needs as they travel extensively to either access or 
provide services. The identification of moderate adverse impacts on 
journey time after mitigation10 is clearly of concern and the IACC would 
welcome discussion on how this can be addressed. The IACC 
recommends that this topic needs to be considered further when 
discussing the resilience of the highway network to agree on suitable 
mitigation measures.  

6.3.4 Wellbeing – the statutory footing of wellbeing in Wales has not been 
reflected in the HIAIR.  HNP should reflect wellbeing through all 
aspects of Wylfa Newydd and associated developments and as with 

                                                           
9
 Local Authority, Health Board, private and voluntary sector service providers 

10
 HIAIR, table 8.1 

Page 152



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

19 

 

the Welsh Language should be treated as an all- encompassing theme 
underpinning the consideration of the impacts and mitigation 

6.3.5 Health impact assessment based on narrow requirements – Wylfa 
Newydd is a complex and evolving project.  This work-stream started a 
number of years ago because of the requirement upon HNP to prepare 
a Health Impact Assessment, however, in the meantime, new Welsh 
legislation has been enacted relating to health and wellbeing11 which 
encompasses health impacts but is much broader in its coverage as 
set out in the 7 national wellbeing goals.  PAC2 is based on the original 
narrower health impact assessment requirement despite numerous 
discussions on the matter between IACC and its Wellbeing partners 
with HNP.  The National Assembly for Wales Wellbeing legislation 
must be taken into account as is the case for any legislation and this 
wider scope must be reflected in any application coming forward.  

6.3.6 Air quality and noise –a scheme of monitoring for Nitrogen Dioxide in 
and around the development and other locations on the Island is 
requiredand given the potential impacts on health, there should be a 
method in place to alert people when levels are high.  Noise is 
anticipated to have a significant impact and HNP is expected to have 
robust mitigation measures in place to limit noise levels.  This is 
especially important for adjacent communities. The mitigation 
proposals given in the HIAIR are preliminary and not detailed at this 
stage making it difficult for constructive comment to be given, for 
example " we are considering how support could be provided... to 
ensure a robust noise complaints and reporting mechanisms"12. HNP is 
strongly encouraged to discuss these proposals with the authority 
ahead of any submission. Noise mitigation and monitoring requires to 
be set out in detail in any application and we would suggest that noise 
management plans will be required. 

Dalar Hir’s use as park and ride could also lead to significant effects 
upon air quality.  The one and a half pages of baseline information is 
entirely insufficient to allow the IACC to understand the baseline 
situation and hence the magnitude of change as a result of the 
development proposed.  Whilst the project specific NO2 diffusion tube 
survey will be useful and help clarify the baseline air quality, it is not 
considered that this approach is sufficient for a project of this size. It is 
not clear whether any diffusion tubes have been located with a 
reference method chemiluminescent analyser so that a project specific 
bias adjustment factor can be developed. It would also be hoped that, 
given the significant construction impacts, a dust and particulate 
monitoring survey could be established so that baseline 
concentrations and deposition rates can be quantified and compared 
to concentrations and deposition rates during the construction phase. 

                                                           
11

 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015; Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 
2014 
12

 HIAIR, para 6.13 

Page 153



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

20 

 

6.3.7 Engagement and consultation – there are risks associated with 
failing to engage and consult fully with local communities and effected 
groups which in the arena of health, social care and wellbeing include 
vulnerable and hard to reach groups.  HNP should therefore adopt the 
Participation Cymru National Principles of Public Engagement 
framework as the foundation for a robust programme of engagement 
and consultation with local communities and vulnerable groups.  

6.4 The inclusion of housing effects in this assessment is welcomed but the 
mitigation proposals are too vague and high level to allow meaningful 
comment to be made at this time.   

6.5 Please refer to the relevant section of the Nuclear New Build SPG for further 
advice and guidance on how the IACC expects the issues associated with this 
thematic area to be progressed. 

Page 154



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

21 

 

Q7 We want to reduce the potential effects on social and equality issues on 

Anglesey.  Our initial work can be found in the Equality Impact Assessment 

Interim Report.  

Do you have any information on equality issues on Anglesey, or 
suggestions for measures to help reduce effects, that may help us in 
further work on the Equality Impact Assessment? 

 
Welsh Legislative Framework 

7.0 A more equal Wales is one of the 7 National Wellbeing Goals.  Wellbeing 
must be treated as an all-encompassing theme underpinning our 
consideration of impacts and mitigation of Wylfa Newydd.  Wellbeing has a 
statutory footing in Wales13, the Equality Impact Assessment Interim Report 
(EqIAIR) does not reflect this Welsh legislative context. 

 
Scope and Limitations of the Assessment 

7.1 The current scope of the EqIAIR has been developed within the framework of 
the English legislative requirements for equality but needs to be grounded in 
Welsh specific duties14.   Consideration of cohesion issues in the EqIAIR does 
not reflect Welsh national policy; the assessment should be undertaken within 
this context15.  The EqIAIR discusses a very narrow interpretation of public 
services and makes no explicit reference to services that are commissioned to 
meet the health, care and wellbeing needs of vulnerable children, young 
people and adults.  Also, mental health/illness issues are a significant 
omission as they directly affect and impact on protected characteristic groups.  
There are significant data gaps in the assessment.  IACC believes that we 
should urgently work towards a common baseline which is agreed by key 
partners16, to ensure that risks and impacts are identified and mitigation 
agreed.  Also, as is the case with the other impact assessments, the EqIAIR 
and any mitigating actions cannot be developed in isolation without full 
consideration of the entire project but the Wylfa Newydd proposals continue to 
lack sufficient detail and clarity on these matters are crucial. 

 
Information on equality issues and measures to help reduce effects 

7.2 Potential opportunities and impacts of Wylfa Newydd on communities, 
protected characteristic groups, health and wellbeing are potentially profound.  
Equality issues are partly covered by the Equality Impact Assessment but also 
need to be fully reflected in the Health, Welsh Language and Environmental 
Impact Assessments and also the community impacts chapter of the Main 
Consultation Document. 

                                                           
13

 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) 2015 / Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 
14

 Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 / Equality Objectives 2016-2020 (Welsh Specific Duties) 
15

 Community Cohesion National Delivery Plan 2016/17 (Welsh Government) and All Wales Community Cohesion Strategy 
16

 Local Authority, Health Board, Public Health Wales, Blue Light organisations, Natural Resources Wales, 3
rd
 Sector 

Page 155



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

22 

 

7.3 To directly answer the question posed, the IACC has prepared detailed 
comments on the potential benefits and negative impacts and these can be 
found in the covering letter and accompanying appendices, which comprise 
the IACC’s formal response to PAC2.  Below is a precise of the key equality 
related themes which should be read in conjunction with the IACC’s detailed 
response to PAC2: 

 
7.3.1 Safeguarding and community cohesion – a number of risks have 

been highlighted around the protection of vulnerable children, young 
people and adults (protected characteristic groups) as a direct 
consequence of risk taking behaviours, human trafficking and modern 
slavery.  These behaviours have adverse impacts on the fabric and 
cohesion of local communities.  Safeguarding is everyone’s business 
and mitigation measures will need to be in place to minimise potential 
safeguarding risks. There is frequent reference to community cohesion 
in the EqIAIR.    The proposed assessment of community cohesion is a 
fundamental component of the Equalities Impact Assessment and as 
such needs to be completed as a matter of urgency.  This cohesion 
assessment must identify potential impacts and provide the platform for 
consideration of mitigation measures.  These impacts could be far 
reaching.  The IACC would welcome discussions surrounding the 
impact assessment on cohesion and it should be undertaken with key 
partner organisations. Potential mitigation proposals have been 
identified in Chapter 15.7 of Appendix A. These could be considered 
further upon completion of the assessment.   

7.3.2 Access to services: traffic and transport – there remains insufficient 
recognition in the EqIAIR of the impacts on local transport 
infrastructures and the assessment does not adequately consider 
resilience of the bridges between the Island and the mainland.  These 
impacts will have significant negative effects on users of health, social 
care and wellbeing services many of whom are protected characteristic 
groups of the EqIA.  There are also significant negative impacts for the 
professionals who support individuals’ health and care needs as they 
travel extensively to provide services. The IACC recommends that 
additional clinics or facilities are provided across the island to deal with 
any effects on the users of health, social care and wellbeing services.  

7.3.3 Wellbeing – the statutory footing of wellbeing in Wales has not been 
reflected in the EqIAIR.  HNP should reflect wellbeing through all 
aspects of Wylfa Newydd and associated developments and as with 
the Welsh Language should be treated as an all- encompassing theme 
underpinning our consideration of the impacts and mitigation 

7.3.4 Narrow interpretation – Wylfa Newydd is a complex and evolving 
project.  The current EqIA has been written within a narrow 
brief/interpretation of equality and lacks substance and an appreciation 
of the Island’s characteristics.  IACC has not yet had sight of some of 

Page 156



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

23 

 

the 5 strategies17 cited in the assessment as mitigation measures.  
Also, the document should include consideration of the proposed 
temporary workers accommodation on the sites at Holyhead.  The 
EqIAIR does not include any mitigation measures despite the 
assessment referencing section E of the document as a summary of 
mitigation.   IACC expects HNP to ensure robust, sustainable mitigation 
measures to be in place in response to the impacts of Wylfa Newydd 

 
7.3.5 Engagement and consultation – there are risks associated with 

failing to engage and consult fully with protected characteristic groups, 
local communities and other effected groups which in the arena of 
health, social care and wellbeing include vulnerable and hard to reach 
groups.  HNP should therefore adopt the Participation Cymru National 
Principles of Public Engagement framework as the foundation for a 
robust programme of engagement and consultation with local 
communities and vulnerable groups.   Engagement with stakeholder 
groups directly representing the interests of protected characteristic 
groups should be an integral part of this activity.  This has been 
previously raised by the IACC18. The IACC and partner organisations 
are eager to work collaboratively with HNP to ensure conformity with 
Participation Cymru National Principles of Public Engagement.  

7.4 Please refer to the relevant section of the Nuclear New Build SPG for further 
advice and guidance on how we expect the issues associated with this 
thematic area to be progressed. 

                                                           
17

 Jobs and Skills, Public Access and Recreation, Education Engagement, Construction Worker 
Accommodation and Integrated Traffic and Transport 
18

 Project Update document (January, 2016) and the HIA Progress Report (February, 2016) 

Page 157



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

24 

 

Q8 Given the information provided on our Associated Development, Off-Site 

Power Station Facilities and On-site Temporary Workers Accommodation. Do 

you have any views on: 

1.How we can improve the preferred plan, including such issues as the layout 
of the buildings and parking areas. 
 
2.How can we improve the external appearance of the buildings, landscaping 
and boundary treatment. 
 
3.Our proposed legacy for each site. 
 

(i) Rhosgoch 
(ii) On Site Temporary Workers Accommodation 
(iii) Mobile Emergency Equipment Garage (MEEG) 
(iv) Alternative Emergency Control Centre/Environmental Survey 

Laboratory (AECC/ESL) 
(v) Kingsland / Cae Glas 
(vi) Amlwch, adjacent to Madyn Farm east and west of the B5111 
(vii) Madyn Farm (permanent homes) 
(viii) Dalar Hir 
(ix) Parc Cybi 

 

 

Please fill in the boxes on our feedback form for each site you are commenting 
on: 

8.0 IACC note that comments on the details proposed for the Associated 
Development, Off-Site Power Station Facilities and On-site Temporary 
Workers' Accommodation are sought for the sites listed in the question. IACC 
in its capacity as the Local Authority has provided comments on these sites in 
response to the details given without prejudice to any future decision of any 
part or function of the IACC and for the purposes of this consultation only. 
Nothing in these comments may be taken to be the IACC as Planning 
Authority’s position on any of the matters listed should they be included in any 
application and any such application will be determined or responded to on its 
merits as made. Further, while IACC has responded on the site specific 
matters set out IACC this response does not constitute acceptance of the 
preferred sites as being suitable locations for any of the developments 
considered.  

8.1 Site specific comments: 

(i) Rhosgoch 

IACC considers that temporary worker accommodation at Rhosgoch does not 
conform to the development plan’s spatial hierarchy as expanded upon within 
the SPG and that it is inappropriately located due to its remote location, lack of 

Page 158



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

25 

 

sustainable transport links and inability to contribute to existing sustainable 
transport strategies.  The proposal would effectively result in the creation of a 
temporary settlement in an open countryside location which is isolated from all of 
the facilities which are required of a ‘settlement’. The IACC has further concern 
with regard to the reliance upon the private car to access the site by construction 
workers and the 1160 car parking spaces provided as part of this proposal 
together with the resultant movement of vehicles to and from this isolated 
location.  

Ecological impacts associated with the scheme also need to be taken into 
consideration. The information contained within the PEIR is insufficient to verify 
the conclusions reached.  The baseline report contains no survey information 
including the detailed botanical survey which is referenced as being appropriate.  

The IACC notes that the CWAS states at 5.8 that campus style accommodation 
has been moved to be concentrated outside settlements following previous 
consultation. The authority does not agree with this statement. The TWA 
proposals have always been concentrated outside of settlements and in 
particular have been directed towards Rhosgoch where HNP have a land 
interest.   

(ii) MEEG 

IACC support this site in principle. As the site currently stands, there is ample 
opportunity to improve its visual amenity and enhance its general appearance 
whilst ensuring that it is adequately screened and landscaped from open 
countryside to the rear and adjacent residential properties.  The IACC would 
encourage continued dialogue with respect to the drafting and refining of 
proposals for this site.  Whilst it is acknowledged that opportunities exist, these 
opportunities are reliant upon the submission of a design which is functional and 
at the same time an exemplar of high architectural quality as previously 
discussed with the Design Commission for Wales.  It is important that the 
proposals for the site should not only form a strategic function in terms of the 
overall project requirements, they should also demonstrate the values and 
commitment of HNP towards the local community and residents of the island. 

(iii) AECC/ESL 

With respect to the proposal for the AECC/ESL facility at Cefn Coch the IACC 
understand and accept that the location of this facility is in part governed by 
criteria which are set by the Regulators. Little substantive detail has been 
presented to the IACC which clarifies the precise specifics which have been laid 
down by the Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) in terms of its own 
requirements in this particular instance which clearly serve to demonstrate that 
the proposal presently under consideration would have to be a new build 
development which was constructed at this particular location. In particular the 
IACC requires additional justification as to whether, and why, the greenfield site 
in the countryside is preferred over the potential alternative previously developed 
site at Cylch-y-Garn school. 

 

Page 159



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

26 

 

(iv) On-site temporary workers accommodation 

No detail has been presented which provides a breakdown of the key 
construction and security personnel who are considered critical throughout the 
main construction period such that they have to be accommodated at this 
particular location.  Having received this detail it could well transpire that there 
are other more appropriate locations within the Wylfa Newydd Development 
Area where the key workers could be accommodated.  The logic of siting HNP’s 
On Site Temporary Workers Accommodation at this coastal location adjacent to 
the Tre’r Gof SSSI is questioned.  It is imperative that the design and evolution of 
the development pays due regard to the environmentally sensitive nature of the 
site irrespective of the fact that it should be designed for short term use. In line 
with the spirit of the Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act any legacy 
use should, at the very least, continue to facilitate public access for all ability 
levels to enjoy this attractive coastal location. 

v) Kingsland and Cae Glas 

IACC emphatically support the use of Cae Glas and Kingsland as temporary 
workers accommodation. In accordance with the planning permission granted 
the Reserved Matters application to be submitted will require that the 
development attains an Exemplar standard as both sites are within the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty “AONB”. Under the terms of the planning permission 
this means that an exceptionally high quality, sympathetic and sustainable 
development appropriate to the landscape context within the AONB.   

IACC  support the full legacy use of Cae Glas as an extension to Penrhos leisure 
village providing up to 315 holiday units and the residential use of Kingsland for 
up to 320 residential units of which  50% will comprise affordable housing. 

(vi) Amlwch A and B 

Whilst the consultation is being undertaken on these sites collectively, given that 
they are two separate sites each having different planning merits and as such 
separate consideration is needed.   

The IACC would strongly prefer to see at least some permanent housing come 
forward on the  Amlwch A site given its designation as a housing allocation in the 
forthcoming JLDP. The three story massing of the temporary accommodation 
blocks proposed and their curved form does not accord with the settlement 
pattern of the adjacent settlement and it is considered that the accommodation 
blocks could have an unacceptable effect on the character and appearance of 
the area.   

Amlwch  B is very prominent in landscape and visual impact terms  as the site is 
prominent in an area which forms part of the Special Landscape Area and is 
visible from Parys Mountain which is  included  on  the  Register  of  Landscapes  
of  Outstanding  Historic Importance  in  Wales. The three storey massing of the 
temporary accommodation blocks and curved form does not accord with the 
settlement pattern of the adjacent settlement.  The impact of the proposals would 
be compounded by the siting of the main car park adjacent to the A5025 rather 

Page 160



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

27 

 

than screened by building. In order to understand both the potential for effects 
upon landscape designations, and the closer visual effects relative to the existing 
settlement IACC will require photomontages from key viewpoints which should 
be first agreed with the IACC in order to establish the potential for significant 
effects. 

 (vii) Madyn Farm 

IACC in principle support the location of permanent workers accommodation at 
Madyn Farm. The proposed dwellings should be kept away from the boundaries 
with commercial properties abutting on to the north-west and north east of the 
site, and positioned and orientated such that the principal elevations do not have 
views of the commercial premises. The layout and illustrative material in the 
consultation documents indicate dwellings in close proximity to the boundary 
with these commercial properties and with their rear elevations facing the 
commercial sites.  These arrangements have the potential to detrimentally affect 
the amenities of the occupants of these dwellings. In addition these 
arrangements have the potential to inhibit and cause complaint in relation to 
lawful commercial activities on these commercial premises. It is suggested that 
the orientation of the proposed dwellings and a landscaping buffer along the 
boundary could mitigate these impacts. 

(viii) Dalar Hir  

The imposition of a 30 minute maximum commute time between the park and 
ride and the Wylfa site is not properly justified. The justification given is that this 
is the maximum reasonable time when workers have an onward further journey, 
however this does not accord with reasoning in the TWA broad area of search 
which provides for a maximum 30 minute commute rather than the daily 
construction commuting zone of  90 minutes from the site  or the “standard travel 
to work area” which is given in the CWAS as a 60 minute drive. A longer 
commute to a park and ride in Llangenfi would accord with the CWAS which 
anticipates workers taking accommodation in the town as it is a major service 
centre and would shorten the onwards journey for workers travelling east within 
the standard travel to work area. It is accepted that Llangefni would be east of 
the settlement of Holyhead however it is already proposed to bus workers 
separately from the sites in the vicinity of Holyhead so alternatives could be 
explored. It is not considered that traveling to Dalar Hir would be attractive to 
workers residing in Llangefni as it would involve travel away from the Wylfa site 
to reach the park and ride.  HNP’s pre-determined “strong preference” for a 
single park and ride site in the east of the Island19 and the exclusion of Llangenfi 
has produced a sub-standard solution which discounts a major settlement. The 
site selection process is flawed as it is based on an arbitrary and unjustified area 
of search which excludes a major settlement near to the A55.  

Dalar Hir is in clear conflict with policy on development in the open countryside 
and provides no opportunity for legacy proposals.  

 

                                                           
19

 P19, 4.9 

Page 161



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

28 

 

Visitor centre 

8.2 In principle IACC is supportive of creating a Visitor and Media Centre in 
association with the development needs of Wylfa Newydd. We would 
welcome greater dialogue with HNP in the creation and design of this centre, 
the exact location and the planned construction period.  It is considered that 
the centre should be developed sooner than planned in order to maximise the 
potential of tourists and residents that wish to view the construction of the 
New Nuclear Build. HNP’s preferred site for its Visitor and Media Reception 
Centre is effectively a green field site in an attractive, unspoilt and open 
countryside setting immediately adjacent to the Cae Gwyn SSSI and 
comprising, in part a prehistoric mound and ditch system.  HNP will need to 
provide assurances and supporting evidence to justify that any adverse 
environmental and ecological impacts will be overcome. IACC appreciate that 
this particular scheme is at an early stage of the development process and 
only limited information is currently available. In going forward, The IACC 
would welcome further engagement and discussions on the Visitor Centre and 
its proposed location. 

Logistics centre 

8.3 In principle the Logistics Centre would be appropriately located at Parc Cybi 
being situated with an industrial allocation and being in general conformity 
with policies in the Development Plan as referenced by the SPG. The 
planning history of the site also indicates the principle of the development 
would be acceptable and planning permission has been granted for industrial 
warehousing on the site. HNP would need to overcome concerns about the 
capacity of Junction 2 of the A55 to ensure that the junction would cope with 
the worst case traffic scenario. Traffic modelling will be required on junction 2 
and associated infrastructure to understand whether improvements to the 
junction can cope with the potential volume of vehicle movements. We 
recommend that the traffic modelling needs to include all cumulative projects 
and projected future traffic volume such as the Land & Lakes Development, 
Orthios, full expansion of Parc Cybi and Penrhos Retail Park.  

8.4 The legacy use of the proposed Logistics Facility for B8 (Storage & 
Distribution) either in connection with the project or another employment use 
is also supported. It is recommended that confirmation is provided as to 
whether this legacy use will be required in connection with the operation of 
Wylfa Newydd. 

The IACC also takes this opportunity to respond to the site selection 
methodology and reports.  

8.5 Associated development 

8.5.1 The IACC considers that the site selection reports are inconsistent, do 
not properly justify the criteria used and are heavily influenced by 
HNP’s existing land options and acquisitions rather than giving due to 
weight to planning policy and the locational guidance provided by the 
IACC in planning policy and in particular the SPG.  

Page 162



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

29 

 

8.5.2 The previous consultation responses have generally not properly been 
taken into account in the site selection, other than to be mentioned very 
briefly and then discounted with little evidence. Some responses have 
been taken into account in temporary workers’ accommodation section 
but the conclusions have not altered.  

8.5.3 Operational prerequisites for the AD are not the same as for the offsite 
nuclear facilities which the IACC accepts are subject to some locational 
and spatial requirements under the relevant consenting regimes. These 
requirements and how they have been applied as a filter have not 
however been clearly enough set out in the report and the IACC does 
not accept that a suitable case has been made that all the applicable 
sites have been properly considered.  In the case of AD the operational 
requirements are HNP’s preferences and cannot be accorded the 
same degree of weight. HNP’s preferences have been built into a 
number of assumptions underpinning the site selection approach which 
are not fully explained or justified. Of particular concern is the complete 
discounting of Llangefni despite it being a major settlement and service 
centre on the Island.  

8.5.4 The non-inclusion of Llangefni in the 4 stage assessment process 
skews the process by excluding a number of large sites. The broad 
area of search set out at Para 3.22 is a 30 minute commute to the 
centre of the Wylfa Site and 10 minutes to the A55 or A5025. The 
rationale for this that construction workers on a shift pattern living in 
purpose built accommodation will not want to travel for more than 30 
minutes each way. This does not accord with the areas of search for all 
other accommodation types in the CWAS where the daily construction 
commuting zone is set at 90 minutes from the site  and extends to 
Bangor. The “standard travel to work area” is given in the CWAS as a 
60 minute drive and includes Holyhead and Bangor, to reach Bangor 
workers would pass Llangefni. Further the considerations for the park 
and ride provide for a maximum 30 minute travel zone because 
workers have a further journey following that, it is not clear why it is 
anticipated that all other workers can have a longer commute but it 
would be unacceptable for workers residing in purpose built 
accommodation to have a circa 40 to 45 minute commute to the 
majority of sites in Llangefni. Given that the AD site selection report 
notes that Llangefni is situated “very close” to the edge of the preferred 
30 minute commute zone this exclusion is not accepted.  

8.5.5 The separate consideration of sites in Llangefni is inadequate and does 
not accord with the SPG guidance. The Llangefni sites identified as 
potentially suitable, while noted as having similar constraints to those 
at Amlwch, are dismissed on the basis of travel time. The assessment 
of these sites is cursory and appears to have been included only to 
address the IACC’s previous request for their consideration and allow 
them to be dismissed. There is no real scoring of the sites and impacts, 
consideration of potential legacy or assessment of the environmental 
constraints. Instead a brief description and the travel time are the only 

Page 163



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

30 

 

details given. The IACC does not accept that a 10 minute difference in 
travel time which would still be within the standard travel to work area 
is a good enough basis to exclude all of the sites. This assessment is 
not considered to comply with policy. 

8.5.6 The commitment to legacy uses is sub-standard and does not comply 
with the SPG which requires these to be considered and factored into 
site selection. 

8.6 Off-Site Power Station Facilities Site Selection Report 

8.6.1 It is not clear what other alternative sites were also included in the 
consultation. 

8.6.2 The locational restriction and the operational requirements of the 
various facilities are not set out in any detail. For example it is known 
that some facilities require to be within set kilometre limits of the main 
site and that this requirement clearly limits the sites which can be 
considered but this is not fully explained. Rather at 6.10 it is stated that 
a distance of 5km has been “allocated” to AECC and ESL to ensure 
appropriate timescales in responding but travel time in different 
directions from the main site will be affected by the road network as 
well as pure distance and this has not been set out.  

8.6.3 Para 3.8 provides that it is HNP’s preference to co-locate the AECC 
and ESL but does not  explain the operational requirements of these 
facilities or how they would complement each other in an emergency, 
which is the justification for co-locating the two buildings.  

8.6.4 Consultation responses aren’t demonstrated as being taken into 
account anywhere in the methodology. Although Para 5.2 does seem 
to suggest that additional sites identified through public consultation 
were considered this is not fully explained. 

8.6.5 Para 6.29 highlights that where planning and environmental 
considerations were similar as between different sites, commercial 
factors were then taken into account when deciding the preferred sites 
– it is flagged at para 6.33 that the preferred site is available on 
reasonable commercial terms, which provided additional weight to its 
selection. 

 

Page 164



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

31 

 

Q9 Do you have comments on our proposals for enhancing the benefits or 

reducing any negative effects of the Project, or suggestions that we should 

consider to develop our proposals further? 

9.0 This answer should be read along with Theme 11 (Legacy) of the high level 
strategic report submitted as part of the IACC response 

9.1 At present many of the proposals to enhance benefits and reduce and 
mitigate negative effects in relation to the key economic and social 
development aspects in the short and long term, namely employment, supply 
chain, skills development and training, tourism, housing, health and wellbeing, 
community cohesion and service delivery are vague in their description and 
lack detail as to quantification, timing, duration and delivery. There are also a 
range of references to work in progress that promises further information on 
measures to enhance benefits and reduce negative impacts but without these 
proposals it is difficult to comment on them. 

9.2 In a number of instances it will be difficult to predict the future impacts of the 
Wylfa Newydd development. Instances include the impact on the labour 
market and existing employers in terms of displacement and wage inflation, 
related to this, impacts on key sectors of the economy including tourism, 
construction and ancillary services and health and social care services. 

9.3 The IACC recommend that HNP should give much greater consideration to 
pro-actively supporting the delivery of more permanent housing dispersed 
over the Island in addition to the fifty units proposed for Maydn Farm. This 
would help to address not only the impacts on the housing market of HNP 
workers purchasing properties during the construction period and the demand 
created by the permanent operational jobs which will be multigenerational and 
therefore may require more than one house per role as people retire, but will 
also address many of the other impacts of the project which are harder to 
quantify including community cohesion and Welsh Language.   

Enhancing benefits  

9.4 There is limited clarity on how the project benefits will actually be delivered in 
a range of incidences (skills and training opportunities, employment 
opportunities, value of business to local firms) as there is no specific 
reference to measurable targets, scope, value, timing and duration or the 
mechanics of how those benefits will be achieved.  Draft or approved 
investment plans should be provided. 

9.5 What is the funding being provided to Grwp Llandrillo Menai? Scale and 
nature of outputs? Throughput of people – does it have the capacity to deliver 
the numbers? What is the breakdown between construction phase related 
training and operational phase training? How long does the education 
engagement programme deliver for? Can this be extended if necessary? In 
broader terms how long does the jobs and skills strategy remain in place? 
How long does the programme of supplier engagement and promotion of 
contract opportunities deliver for? 

Page 165



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

32 

 

9.6 Assessment of displacement and knock on needs - there is a need to 
understand the effects on sectors other than construction, e.g. opportunities 
from higher level managerial and professional through to supporting functions 
such as food, catering, security, administration, health and social care etc.  – 
there is no detail here and this impacts the ability to identify the potential to 
maximise local labour. This is critical. When better understood this will inform 
the nature of training and related financial resources to be provided to mitigate 
impacts around employment, skills provision and labour displacement. 

9.7 There is a focus on awareness raising and outreach work with schools but 
very little on actual investment. What are the proposals that are being put 
forward for investment? The Education engagement strategy focuses heavily 
on the post 16 years sector and beyond “awareness raising with pre-16 years 
age group” there is little actual detail or proposals for investment. This 
additional investment will be critical if longer term benefits and a supply of 
labour are to be delivered.  An Investment fund for upgrading the teaching 
facilities for science and technology teaching across the five secondary 
schools is proposed to help address this as well as upskilling in STEM subject 
teaching for local primary phase teachers and specialist technology and 
science teachers at secondary school phase. 

Reducing negative impacts  

9.8 Thought needs to be given to how the Employment and Skills Service 
monitors negative impacts in general and also specifically issues around 
labour displacement in businesses and other negative impacts relating to the 
tourism sector e.g. visitor numbers and expenditure impacts?  

9.9 What provision is there to allow a feed of information from HNP/Menter 
Newydd and subsequent suppliers to understand progress in a) Number of 
local people in employment b) value and number of contracts awarded c) 
Number of apprenticeships/training places provided 

9.10 What control will you have to compel workers to use temporary 
accommodation? What contingency is in place if a suitable supply of 
temporary accommodation cannot be provided? How will the accommodation 
be paid for – out of wages (before or after these are paid)/as a benefit? 

9.11 There is currently very little on displacement or what training for trades and 
“other roles to support construction” is in place to mitigate this? (8.44 Main 
consultation document) Should a specific proposal be developed to respond 
to this? 

9.12 Further investment should be made to train and provide labour to “back fill” 
job roles vacated by those moving to work in the various stages of the Wylfa 
Newydd development and associated development. 

 

 

Page 166



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

33 

 

Any other suggestions 

9.13 What possibility is there to use existing/current Wylfa expertise in Wylfa 
Newydd project phases, this is being explored but can we get a feel for 
numbers that might transfer across? 

9.14 Resources are needed for training in wider sectors that would suffer from 
displacement effects e.g. food sector, hospitality/catering, health and social 
care and other areas that could support the construction phase of the project 
to reduce the impact of employment loss in existing businesses and ensure a 
supply of suitably skilled labour. 

9.15 Investigate the potential to transfer trained labour from construction into 
operational phase – look at opportunities from professional/managerial roles 
through civils/mechanical/electrical through to trades and support. Have a “life 
cycle” training and employment package to demonstrate long term 
commitment and longevity of economic and social opportunities.  

9.16 In a number of instances supporting information (e.g. Jobs and skills 
strategy/Education engagement strategy/ Health and Wellbeing Strategy) has 
not been provided. The IACC Education Department is eager to engage and 
collaborate more effectively going forward.  

9.17 Safeguarding, lifestyle and behaviours are all issues of significant concern 
which will affect community cohesion of local communities. Further detail is 
required to put robust safeguarding arrangements in place.  Along with 
partner organisations we are eager to engage and collaborate to ensure 
robust, integrated safeguarding arrangements and monitoring in order to 
minimise any potential safeguarding risks during the construction phase and 
beyond. 

9.18 More prominence/ recognition should be given in the document to people 
living in adjacent communities. 

 

Page 167



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

34 

 

Question 10 Consultation Overview Document- Landscape and Environmental 

Masterplan (LEMP) 

Do you have any comments on the following refinements that we (HNP) 
have made to the LEMP, or these proposals in general? 

The ground levels for the Power Station buildings, to reduce visual 
impacts to the areas south of the Power Station Site 

The shape and height of mounding around the training and simulator 
building, to reduce visual impacts to the South of the Power Station site 

The on-site Temporary Workers Accommodation to reflect the latest 
accommodation design and construction works in the area 

The profile and height of mounding where it is closest to existing 
communities. 

10.0 The IACC remains concerned about the retention of 10 million cubic tonnes of 
material on site, compounded by the fact that HNP’s stance remains that all 
excavated material will remain on site with no alternative provision having 
been factored into calculations despite our repeated advice20.   

The ground levels for the Power Station buildings, to reduce visual impacts to 
the areas south of the Power Station Site 

10.1 The IACC understands that the final ground levels for the Power Station site 
itself have yet to be confirmed as different scenarios have been presented by 
HNP. This results in differing depths of excavation and as a consequence the 
quantity of material to be removed, which in turn will have a direct effect upon 
the amount of material which will be recycled on site and utilised as part of 
HNP’s re-profiling of the land surrounding the Power Station and its 
associated buildings. The preferred option needs to be discussed to 
understand how best to reduce adverse visual impacts to areas to the south 
of the Power Station Site.  

The shape and height of mounding around the training and simulator building, 
to reduce visual impacts to the South of the Power Station site 

10.2 The shape and height of the mounding around the training and simulator 
building appear to be recent amendments and the final design of the building 
and profiling of the material which is to envelope this structure are yet to be 
agreed.   

10.3 The IACC would strongly encourage that both elements of the project 
(building design and landscaping) continue to be worked upon and refined in 
unison as opposed to being approached as two different work packages if an 

                                                           
20

 Isle of Anglesey County Council’s Response to Horizon Nuclear Power’s First Stage Pre-
Application Consultation (PAC1) dated 04 December 2014 Appendix 2;   Response to the Horizon 
Nuclear Power informal Public Consultation on Project Update (January 2016) dated 24 March 2016, 
appendix 1 item 13 

Page 168



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

35 

 

effective  solution is to be achieved at this critical location which is highly 
visible from publicly accessible locations.  

10.4 With HNP’s position remaining that of retaining all excavated material on site 
it is imperative that the above approach is adopted if an effective solution is to 
be achieved and the risk of sediment runoff reduced.  Any alternative 
approach could result in artificial and unsightly gradients and/or an adverse 
interaction between the built form and surrounding topography. 

The on-site Temporary Workers Accommodation to reflect the latest 
accommodation design and construction works in the area 

10.5 Issues have previously been raised by the IACC regarding the suitability of 
the location as well as the numbers of ‘key workers’ which HNP state that they 
require on site as well as the duration.  

10.6 The proposal as it presently stands when viewed from publicly accessible 
areas will be framed against the backdrop of the existing Magnox Power 
Station and surrounding structures. Given the environmental sensitivity of this 
location within an exposed coastal location it is imperative that the final design 
pays cognisance to these issues. 

10.7 The IACC would welcome further dialogue and discussions in this respect to 
limit any adverse visual and long terms environmental impacts upon this 
attractive coastal location which is flanked by a Site of Special Scientific 
Interest to the east, a Local Nature Reserve to the North and Dame Sylvia 
Crowes mound to the South. 

The profile and height of mounding where it is closest to existing 
communities. 

10.8 The effect of the LEMP on adjacent land users will only be fully realised once 
there is certainty provided with respect to what the final design and finally 
agreed ground levels will be.  The effects upon adjacent landowners will 
predominantly be during the construction period and such effects will be 
significant.  It is therefore imperative that extensive mitigation solutions are 
programmed into the construction timetable and deployed well in advance in 
an effort to limit the impacts upon the surrounding communities and their 
residents. 

10.9 The height, mass and shape of the mounding is yet to be confirmed although 
the preferred option is for a gentle sloping drumlin shaped pastoral landscape 
setting to the new power station and again the risk of sediment runoff needs 
to be highlighted.   

10.10 This is in contrast to the existing setting for ‘Wylfa A’ which is a combination of 
steep mounds with woodland planting.  This approach provides the main 
screening close to the main reactor with a traditional agricultural landscape on 
the periphery of the site. Further consideration is warranted when developing 
the LEMP to include more strategic woodland planting as part of the overall 
mitigation and softening of the engineered built form.   

Page 169



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

36 

 

10.11 The IACC re-iterates the importance of providing advanced off site planting 
and mitigation to strategic areas similar to HNP’s bio-diversity compensation 
measures in an effort to mitigate the visual impact of the complex and assist 
in its assimilation into the wider landscape setting.  

10.12 By way of general commentary and feedback upon HNP’s efforts to refine 
their LEMP it is acknowledged that this process is still evolving and is yet to 
be finalised.  It is hoped that the IACC will remain a party to this process as 
these proposals are refined for submission.   However, the IACC view 
remains that the final design will be primarily dictated by the fact that HNP do 
not wish to remove material off site irrespective of any negative impact which 
this might have upon the final landscaping proposals and that this accordingly 
limits the proposals which are likely to come forward and does not suitably 
prioritise good design and long term visual and landscape considerations over 
material movement preferences.  

 

Page 170



OFFICIAL  DRAFT 

37 

 

Q11 Do you have any comments on the Preliminary Environmental Information 

Report? 

11.0 We welcome the provision of the PEIR and in its review it has identified a 
number of common themes.  We accept that the document contains 
preliminary information but it is of the opinion that there is insufficient 
information within many of the chapters to enable it to reach its own 
conclusions within regard to the likely environmental effects of the project.  In 
essence, the conclusions recorded within the various chapters require the 
IACC to accept them at face value because of the absence of sufficient 
baseline data.  We are therefore eager to continue to work with HNP as the 
assessment chapters evolve and baseline information is collated to ensure 
that sufficient information is contained within the environmental statement. 

 

11.1 The Planning Inspectorate Advice Note Six ‘Preparation and submission of 
application documents’ provides advice on the presentation of information 
contained within an environmental statement including information on figures 
and drawings, and a requirement to provide all baseline surveys relied upon 
within the assessment.  We advise that HNP follows the guidance contained 
within the document when preparing the submission documents. Furthermore 
it should consider discussing the most appropriate means of presenting the 
environmental statement with the Planning Inspectorate given the lessons that 
it will have learned from other applications.  We would welcome the 
opportunity to be included in such a discussion with the common aim of 
producing a suite of environmental documents that are easily navigated.  

 

11.2 A detailed response on the PEIR is provided within the IACC’s PAC 2 PEIR 
response Document. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 171



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 172



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

1 

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO PRELIMINARY ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

REPORT 

 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Background  

1.1.1 On 31st August 2016 Horizon Nuclear Power Wylfa Limited (HNP) 

commenced pre-application stage 2 consultation on its proposals for the 

Wylfa new nuclear power station, its associated development and facilities.  

 

1.1.2 The consultation includes a number of documents which together provide 

information on the project, its evolution to date and the potential effects upon 

the environment (social, economic and environmental) that could arise.  

 

1.1.3 This document represents the Isle of Anglesey County Council’s (IACCs) 

response to one of the consultation documents, namely the Stage 2 

Preliminary Environmental Information Report (PEIR) and its associated 

appendices. 

 

1.2 The Role of Preliminary Environmental Information 

1.2.1 The Planning Inspectorate’s Advice Note 17 summarises the role of the 

PEIR.  In referring to The Infrastructure Planning (Environmental Impact 

Assessment) Regulations 2009 (‘the EIA Regulations’) it states that it should 

contain information , reasonably required to assess the environmental 

effects of the development )and of any associated development). 

 

1.2.2 It notes that the PEI need not replicate or form a draft Environmental 

Statement  but that it should enable consultees (such as IACC) to 

understand the likely environmental effects of the proposed development 

and help them to inform their consultation responses on the proposed 

development. 

 

1.2.3 The Advice Notes encourages applicants to provide PEI when undertaking 

their formal consultation to enable the statutory consultees to understand the 

environmental effects of the development and to inform the context of 

consultation and that whilst PEI does not have to be the draft ES, the the use 

of a draft ES may be appropriate when consulting in the later stages of the 

pre-application process.  

 

1.2.4 Ultimately is it advised that it will be for applicants to decide at what stage in 

the pre-application process they wish to commence statutory pre-application 

consultation and at what point they feel consultation on PEI will be most 

effective. 

Page 173



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

2 

 

1.3 The Structure of this document  

1.3.1 The remainder of this chapter contains general observations on the way in 

which the PEIR report has been presented and the level of information 

contained within. 

 

1.3.2 Chapter 2 provides a summary of the key comments made by IACC with 

respect to the various topic chapters concerned with the main site (the power 

station).  Chapter 3 provide comments and advice from the Council with 

regard to the cumulative assessment.  Comments on individual site 

assessments are provided within the Council’s overarching response to the 

PAC2 consultation. 

 

1.3.3 The IACC comments are made based upon the information contained within 

the Preliminary Environmental Information Report and the Appendices 

document together with other consultation documents (e.g. the Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment Report) as appropriate.  

 

1.4 Structure and presentation of the PEIR 

1.4.1 Topic assessments are contained within the main PEIR whilst assessment 

methodologies and baselines form the appendices.  Both documents (the 

PEIR and Appendices) could be improved through the consistent use of 

contents pages to aid navigation.   

 

1.4.2 The rationale for the separation of topic baselines into an appendix is 

understood.  However the IACC would anticipate that appendices are used 

to present detailed technical baseline reports, for example the results of 

ecological surveys, site investigations for example, as opposed to the 

baseline as a whole.  The IACC would expect to see comprehensive 

baseline summaries provided within the main assessment chapters of a 

future environmental statement.  

 

1.4.3 The consultation process has benefited from the separation of the project 

description into the Main Consultation Document, with the preliminary 

environmental assessment presented within the PEIR.  It will be important to 

include the development description and how it will be built, operated and 

decommissioned within the environmental statement.  Similarly a summary 

of the mitigation and enhancement proposed within the environmental 

statement, and the means by which item will be secured should sit within the 

document. 

 

1.5 Information contained within the PEIR 

1.5.1 In the review of the PEIR a number of common themes have emerged.  The 

IACC accepts that the document contains preliminary information but is 

Page 174



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

3 

 

concerned that there is insufficient information within many of the chapters to 

enable it to reach its own conclusion within regard to the likely environmental 

effects of the project.  In essence, the conclusions recorded within the 

various chapters require acceptance at face value given the absence of 

sufficient baseline data.  The IACC remain committed to continued 

collaboration with HNP as the assessment chapters evolve and baseline 

information is collated to ensure that sufficient information is contained within 

the environmental statement.   

 

1.5.2 Some of the preliminary assessments reported within the document 

reference the need for additional modelling before the level of effect can be 

confirmed.  The Council would favour continued liaison with Horizon as the 

modelling concludes so that it can comment upon the methodologies, results 

and possible mitigation requirements in advance of submission. 

 

1.5.3 The PEIR chapters include figures to illustrate environmental conditions and 

study areas.  However the scale at which some of the figures are presented 

and their coloration has made certain aspects difficult to understand.  The 

IACC would expect a full suite of figures at an appropriate scale to be 

included within each chapter of an environmental statement. 

 

1.5.4 The Planning Inspectorate Advice Note Six: Preparation and submission of 

application documents provides advice on the presentation of information 

contained within an environmental statement including information on figures 

and drawings, referencing and the use of appendices, including a 

requirement to provide all baseline surveys relied upon within the 

assessment.  The IACC  propose that it is consulted informally on the layout 

of the document, discussing the most appropriate means of presenting the 

statement (including Planning Inspectorate imput), in the light of the lessons  

learned from the Hinkley Point C submission.  

 

 

 

Page 175



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

4 

 

2. Comments on Technical Chapters 

2.1 Introduction 

2.1.1 This chapter summarises the IACC’S response to the information presented 

within the chapters and appendices of the PEIR.  They are informed by 

detailed comments which are provided separately. 

 

2.2 Introductory Chapters A1-A4 

2.2.1 The IACC welcomes the information contained within the chapters and has 

little comment to make. 

 

2.2.2 A number of commitments are outlined in Chapter 2 including that the 

environmental statement will address the requirements of the new EU EIA 

Directive (2014) e.g. risks from major accidents or disasters.  The IACC 

welcomes this commitment, recognising that it was a requirement of the 

Secretary of State’s Scoping opinion. 

 

2.2.3 Chapter 3 includes for the definition of significant effects in EIA terms and 

the implications arising from such definitions within the assessment.    The 

IACC suggests that reference is also made to compensation and off-setting 

in circumstances when mitigation is not possible or practical.  

 

2.2.4 Chapter 3 paragraph 3.19 sets out the levels HNP defines as significant in 

EIA terms.  The IACC welcomes this clarification which was a request of the 

Secretary of State’s Scoping Opinion.  The definition includes ‘as a 

precautionary approach’ effects of minor significance.   Setting the level of 

‘EIA significance’ at this level requires the identification of 

mitigation/compensation across a wide number of effects and from the 

review of the environmental topic chapters it is clear that mitigation has not, 

in all cases been identified for levels of minor significance and above.  The 

IACC welcomes the precautionary approach taken but suggests that this is 

revisited as the assessments progress.  Ultimately however a common 

definition of EIA significant applied consistently across all topic chapters 

should be employed.  

 

2.2.5 HNP states that it is developing a strategy for the decommissioning of the 

Power Station proposing prompt commencement of decommissioning with a 

target timeframe for completion of main decommissioning activities of 20 

years following the end of power generation.  The IACC welcomes this 

commitment which is consistent with Secretary of State’s Scoping Opinion 

and the Wylfa Newydd SPG.  Specific comment on some of the 

considerations to be included when assessing the effects of 

decommissioning are referenced later in this document. 

Page 176



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

5 

 

2.3 Socio-economics 

2.3.1 The IACC has reviewed the information contained within Chapter B1 and 

has a series of observations to make. 

 

2.3.2 At PAC1 it was the opinion of the IACC that the issue of displacement was 

insufficiently covered. The IACC  is of the opinion that labour displacement 

impacts from the project could be significant.  For example, skilled labour 

may move to take advantage of higher wages available for jobs at the power 

station development (and associated development).  This could then have 

an adverse impact on the firm or contract that those workers leave so that 

any economic effect e.g. Gross Value Added may be reduced or delayed. 

 

2.3.3 Additional demand will also have knock on effect on other construction 

projects e.g. housebuilding, schools improvement programme and a range of 

other projects scheduled for construction in the same period as Wylfa 

Newydd. On this point the issue of labour displacement from the cumulative 

effects of different projects will likely exacerbate displacement effects and 

this point is returned to later in this document. 

 

2.3.4 Paragraphs B1.132 – 137 references a calculated level of current 

displacement of 9%. The IACC considers the effect to be underplayed and 

questions how displacement is calculated at 9%? The baseline report 

contained within the PEIR appendices should provide information on wage 

levels and the current baseline position. 

 

2.3.5 With reference to the mitigation of displacement effects the IACC would seek 

support in addition to reference to engagement.  This would include 

additional support for training in the areas where there is likely to be 

displacement activity relating to the local labour force i.e. the areas where 

local labour will take up job opportunities during the construction and 

operational phases of the power station and measures to deliver training to 

help fill vacated positions as a result of the Wylfa Newydd project.  Further 

commitment to ensure that the supply chain charter and Employment and 

Skills Service are effective in engaging and encouraging existing businesses 

to compete and win contracts in the Wylfa Newydd supply chain through pro-

active policies and agreed targets by value and number will help the growth 

of the existing business base and retention of staff. 

 

2.3.6 The PEIR references the number of home-based staff that are considered 

likely to take up job opportunities associated with the construction of the 

Wylfa Newydd project.  The commitment to using existing local labour and 

businesses to construct and operate Wylfa Newydd is welcomed and will be 

a key factor in the ability of the project to provide Anglesey and North Wales 

Page 177



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

6 

 

with additional economic growth. The labour participation rate is an important 

consideration to inform activity to maximise benefits and mitigate negative 

impacts. It also determines the extent and scale of a range of other impacts. 

The larger proportion of the project labour requirement that is secured from 

the workforce already resident in the catchment or commuting zone the 

lower the overall impact made by workers moving or commuting to the 

project from outside the area.  Experience of similar projects suggests that 

there could be higher levels of opportunity for the construction phase as 

opposed to the 25% referenced albeit that the proportion of the local 

workforce employed could differ in relation to the type of jobs and phasing of 

the project.  Greater clarity on the likely take-up by local workers of different 

job types is required. 

 

2.3.7 The PEIR references the Education Engagement and Jobs and Skills 

strategy which are essential elements of any approach to maximising local 

labour. These have not been consulted on widely, distributed across all 

relevant stakeholders or developed in conjunction with IACC education. The 

emphasis should be extended beyond 16+ to ‘awareness raising of STEM 

subjects’ at pre -16 level. This is a substantial  omission  in the approach to 

providing a longer term legacy and supply of labour for the development and 

is referenced again elsewhere within this document. 

 

2.3.8 The skills strategy should also include measures designed to  retain and use 

skills and knowledge contained within the existing Wylfa A workforce. This 

ensures that positive benefits from the Wylfa Newydd project can be 

enhanced. 

 

2.3.9 Outside of the potential workforce that already has many of the health, safety 

and quality assurance requirements to operate in the nuclear environment 

and workplace there is a need to provide resource to address the differing 

requirements of the local labour force that do not currently meet the 

standards needed across different occupational profiles,  job types and 

workplace locations. This is an essential measure in the ability of the local 

workforce to participate and have the correct ethos and approach to the 

Wylfa Newydd project. 

 

2.3.10 HNP should undertake work to determine a more precise view of training 

requirements and skills demands to meet and exceed the local employment 

targets – currently there is no information on this demand.  Opportunities 

should be taken to support ‘life cycle’ training to allow workers involved in 

construction to move into the operation phase.  These could include for 

training to provide individuals with necessary nuclear health and safety and 

quality assurance requirements prior to on-site work e.g. nuclear passport. 

Page 178



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

7 

 

2.3.11 At paragraph B1.125 reference is made to a 2% - 4% local contribution 

towards the power station development. HNP must set out how they intend 

to support the achievement of the higher figure and the IACC suggest that 

consideration be given to the funding of an Enterprise Centre to house and 

provide direct support to local businesses and start-ups.  Furthermore HNP 

should set in place the means to monitor the take up of opportunities by local 

firms either through the use of existing procurement systems such as 

sell2wales.  Consideration, within procurement rules to a level of contract 

value (eg less than £250,000) that will be offered to companies locally 

through engaging with the Local Authority/ NWEAB before attempting to 

procure more nationally should be given.  

 

2.3.12 The IACC considers tourism (and the impacts upon the sector) not to have 

been dealt with sufficiently within the PEIR.  At PAC1 the IACC requested a 

specific topic paper for tourism and a means for understanding and 

monitoring impacts.  The IACC remains concerned about the potentially 

significant, adverse effects upon the Island’s image and perceptions,  

tourism accommodation availability, reduced visitor numbers during 

construction period and disruption to visitors through increasing 

congestion/trips generated by the development. 

 

2.3.13 The overall approach to assessing impacts on all types of accommodation is 

based on the availability of bed spaces and does not take into account the 

way in which accommodation would be let. In many instances this would not 

be on a bedspace basis but for a whole property. The IACC considers that 

the use of bedspaces underestimates the demand and also relies on having 

the ability to manage demand across tenures and types of accommodation 

as well as control the accommodation decisions of a significant in-coming 

labour force.  HNP should consider committing to the monitoring of the 

accommodation supply, particularly within the tourism and private rented 

sectors. 

 

2.3.14 There is limited assessment on tourism effects and mitigation proposals.  

From the information provided within the PEIR it is not clear as to the extent 

of impacts on the tourism sector from the perspective of visitor activity, 

impacts on accommodation and wider impacts on activity within the sector 

including displacement of employment from businesses in sectors including 

hospitality, food, catering and other sectors of central importance to the 

tourism sector and wider economy. Reference to a tourism strategy which 

sets out mitigation measures is made within the PEIR but this is not 

provided. The IACC welcome discussion of the mitigation and compensation 

of tourism impacts with HNP to inform the strategy referred to. 

Page 179



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

8 

 

2.3.15 In view of the comments provided the IACC considers it appropriate that 

HNP consider the development of a Community Resilience Fund. Such a 

fund would be informed by robust monitoring of many activities that may 

combine to affect local communities (both social, economic and 

environmental) The  Community Resilience Fund would: 

a) address the consequences of development; 

b) specifically target and empower local people in responding to the 

impacts of development; and  

c) be intentionally flexible in order to be able to address impacts as 

they occur and tackle the problem of unusable funds arising from 

overly restrictive distribution criteria. 

 

2.4 Public Access and Recreation, Traffic and Transport 

2.4.1 The Chapter references the requirement to divert the Wales Coastal path 

suggesting two alternative routes.  The IACC would favour the seaward 

option recognising is the shorter of the two options and its benefits relative to 

the other option.  The IACC would advise that a Health Economic 

Assessment Tool (HEAT) is used to assess the effects of the diversion upon 

local communities. 

 

2.4.2 The Wylfa Sports and Social Club is owned by Magnox and is currently due 

to close when defueling of the Existing Power Station is complete.  However 

due to the requirement to clear the site for Wylfa Newydd HNP proposes its 

early closure.  The Council considers the club to be a valuable asset for the 

local community and requests that consideration is given to the impact of the 

closure.  Mitigation in the form of alternative locations in the area that could 

host current users of the club and/or levels of support which could be given 

to the users in the transitional period including compensatory investment in 

local community halls, leisure centres, playing fields and pitches and sports 

clubs would provide a legacy for the community. 

 

2.4.3 Reference is made to construction workers living in the temporary workers 

accommodation using Amlwch Leisure Centre, leading to potentially a minor 

to moderate adverse effect on existing users of Amlwch Leisure Centre.  The 

IACC are committed to collaboration to ensure appropriate mitigation is 

developed and the opportunity to leave a lasting positive legacy for the 

people of Amlwch and surrounding communities is captured. The IACC 

welcomes the HNP objective to increase the usage of public transport, 

walking and cycling however it remains concerned over the potential effects 

upon highway safety as a result of the movement of construction works from 

sites in and around Amlwch to the power station.  This concern is particularly 

with regard to the proposed HNP Shuttle Buses and the IACC considers that 

Page 180



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

9 

 

their use of the A5025 will lead to an increased risk to cyclists due to 

reduced road widths and lack of roadside verges. 

 

2.4.4 The IACC suggests that the PEIR seriously underemphasises the number of 

bus trips from the proposed park and ride and therefore the impact of buses.  

The figures presented in the PEIR seem to suggest that every single bus 

travelling from the Park and Ride site will be full. This might be the position 

at the beginning and at the end of shifts however, experiences from Hinkley 

Point C indicate that personnel are going to travel to and from the site 

throughout the day.  Furthermore buses will need to travel at very regular 

intervals in order to prevent the use of the private cars to site. 

 

2.5 Noise and Vibration, Air Quality. 

2.5.1 The noise and vibration chapter identifies various mitigation measures as a 

common thread of Best Practice; for example within the CEMP (Construction 

and Environmental Management Plan).  The mitigation is based upon an 

assessment of likely environmental effects which is unsupported within the 

document by any evidence to confirm its veracity.  The IACC would therefore 

wish to see the results of the noise modelling in order to better understand 

the potential for significant effects.  Noise modelling should also include for 

consideration of underwater noise and the IACC will require more 

information on the methods to be employed to excavate rock including the 

anticipated number and frequency of blasting. 

 

2.5.2 The IACC has concerns over the high number of residential properties 

experiencing major adverse effects during the construction phase.  The 

PEIR assessment has considered different construction scenarios and 

concerns relate to Scenario B during the day (60 properties) and more 

particularly Scenario C during the night.  Mitigation measures do not appear 

to reduce the levels of significance which are presented within the PEIR and 

the IACC considers that insufficient information is provided to enable it to 

understand the magnitude of the effects, in particular the length of time and 

frequency over which the effects would be experienced. 

 

2.5.3 The baseline presented with Appendices document references at Table 4.4 

the use of professional judgement to define and select a suitable typical 

value.  Confirmation that suitable analysis methods have been used (eg 

BS4142:2014 for LA90s) to determine the mean and modal background 

noise levels should be provided. 

 

2.5.4 Many of the environmental aspects which are discussed throughout the 

chapter are encapsulated within various other Environmental Management 

Plans; such as the CNVMP (Construction Noise and Vibration Management 

Page 181



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

10 

 

Plan), MMP (Materials Management Plan) and EMP (Environmental 

Management Plan).  The Council would confirm that it will be responsible for 

the ensuring compliance against the measures contained within these 

documents and as such their provision should form individual requirements 

of the Development Consent Order (DCO). Additionally, the Council will 

require HNP to apply for Control of Pollution Act 1974 Section 61 Consent 

Notices prior to commencing construction activities to ensure Best Practice 

is maintained. 

 

2.5.5 Owing to the vast scale and variety of construction works being proposed the 

ability to monitor such effects on a ‘real time’ basis as they occur shall be 

fundamental to mitigation.  Similarly, the engagement of the Local 

Community in various liaison groups is paramount when looking at Best 

Practice for mitigation measures owing to the numerous environmental 

aspects associated with this development. 

 

2.5.6 In view of the above, the ability to inform local communities, by offering ‘real 

time’ web based monitoring data should be an intrinsic part of any 

Environmental Management Plan proposed by Horizon Nuclear Power. 

 

2.5.7 With regard to air quality it is not clear what significance criteria have been 

used to conclude that the impact of road traffic during construction is not 

significant. Despite the concentrations being within Air Quality Objectives, 

the conclusion that the impact will be not significant requires further 

clarification given that construction traffic will increase by 2,600 on the 

A5025 West, where there are properties close to the road. 

 

2.5.8 Similarly whilst the impact of operational traffic may be lower than the impact 

of construction traffic, HNP should give consideration to the combined effect 

of operational combustion plant (which is considered to be a significant 

adverse impact with regards to ecological receptors), shipping emissions 

and operational traffic.  The likely long-term impact of the project on human 

and ecological receptors cannot be considered by the IACC without this 

being undertaken. 

 

2.5.9 At present, no mitigation measures are offered within the PEIR for 

construction and operational road traffic. Given the size of the project and 

the volumes of traffic generated, it is considered that mitigation to reduce 

construction and operational traffic flows and/or emissions should be 

included. For example, emission class standards could be specified. 

 

Page 182



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

11 

 

2.6 Soils and Geology, Ground and Surface Water 

2.6.1 The Soils and Geology chapter and appendices provide a summary of the 

findings of the site investigation.  The environmental statement will need to 

include for the full details of the site investigations in order that the IACC and 

consultees can undertake an independent assessment of the baseline and 

potential impacts. 

 

2.6.2 Reference is made to the preparation of a remediation strategy which 

identifies a number of activities that should take place in order to reduce the 

risk of harm to human health, or to the environment, from sources of 

contamination identified on site.  The IACC seeks clarity on proposed 

remediation strategy in order to ensure that appropriate protection of health 

and the environment is provided. 

 

2.6.3 The assessment chapter recognises that there is the potential for effects to 

nearby residents to occur, (inter-project effects) from a combination of dust 

arising from contaminated soils, noise and emission of air pollutants from 

plant and machinery and that this may increase the overall significance of 

effect to these receptors during construction.  It points to chapters B4 and B5 

for detailed assessments however the risk from contaminated soil is not fully 

addressed.  Whilst accepting that the document is preliminary environmental 

information, the IACC would expect that consideration is given to the 

combination of effects upon receptors.  

 

2.6.4 The IACC’s review of the Ground and Surface Water chapter concludes that, 

there is insufficient information contained within the baseline to justify the 

descriptions of the baseline conditions and the value of receptors.  For 

example no figures are provided within the baseline except a single rainfall 

plot.  There are no spatial plots provided of monitoring locations and as a 

consequence there is currently no evidence to support the statements 

regarding the hydrological and hydrogeological environments. 

 

2.6.5 Whilst the chapter provides a comprehensive list of receptors together with 

potential environmental effects and of mitigation measures these represent 

good practice and the level of site specific details is presently insufficient to 

enable the IACC to determine the adequacy of the assessment of 

significance.  

 

2.6.6 A key receptor in the context of the chapter is the Tre’r Gof and Cae Gwyn 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs).  The PEIR assessment of both 

sites concludes that they will not be significantly affected based upon a 

robust monitoring regime and implementation of remedial measures, ‘if a 

significant effect is identified’.  The Council will require further information to 

Page 183



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

12 

 

be included  within the environmental statement in order to understand the 

extent to which there is connectivity between existing surface and 

groundwater sources and the SSSI’s and the extent to which their features 

are dependent upon existing hydrological and hydrogeological conditions.  It 

will also need to agree a series of appropriate remediation and 

compensation measures. 

 

2.7 Terrestrial and Freshwater Ecology 

2.7.1 The chapter identifies the key ecological receptors with the potential to be 

affected.  Whilst recognising the preliminary nature of the document, there is 

insufficient baseline information (e.g. no mapping of species finds / records / 

survey data) and the absence of details on the proposed mitigation strategy 

and how this will integrate with the site preparation and clearance works. 

 

2.7.2 For example there is little data on the reptile site populations other than 

approximate location.  A lack of mapping and descriptions of the location and 

characteristics of the receptor site does not enable the IACC to consider the 

likelihood of effects.  A similar issue arises with regard to water voles and 

other receptors. 

 

2.7.3 The IACC understands that survey work is still being undertaken on terns 

and data collected in respect of Tre’r Gof SSSI.  As such definitive 

conclusions with regard to assessments of significance cannot yet be made. 

 

2.7.4 The IACC considers the basing of likely significant effects upon the Special 

Protection Area (SPA) using the Habitat Regulations Assessment is 

reasonable. Clarity is requested over the use of terms within these different 

assessment processes as they may not always be directly transferrable. 

 

2.7.5 HNP recognises that the assessment of effects upon certain ecological 

receptors will be informed by the conclusions reached in chapters such as 

noise and vibration (chapter B4), air quality (chapter B5), soils and geology 

(chapter B6), groundwater and surface water (chapter B7), marine 

environment (chapter B10) and landscape and visual amenity (chapter B11).  

Currently not all of these chapters reference ecological effects.  Subsequent 

assessment will also need to include for the possible effects due to changes 

in coastal processes (e.g. effects on shingle bar associated with SPA). 

 

2.8 Coastal process and the Marine Environment 

2.8.1 The Coastal Processes Chapter sets out the potential effects arising from 

marine based activities.  The IACC considers that the preliminary information 

provided contains insufficient design information on the structure and 

location of the MOLF (both the bulk quay and the ro-ro quay) and would 

Page 184



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

13 

 

expect the environmental statement to contain detailed drawings of the 

proposal and description of construction methods and timescales. 

Additionally, similar information on the breakwaters and level of dredging 

and blasting is required, along with details of shipping traffic during 

construction and operation. 

 

2.8.2 Sediment transportation, hydrological and thermal plume modelling of the 

proposals has not been undertaken and the baseline characterisation is very 

high level, as such conclusions within the PEIR regarding significance (and 

subsequent identification of mitigation) cannot be confirmed. 

 

2.8.3 With regard to the Marine Environment chapter there is a lack of data to 

support the baseline characterisation statements and the IACC would 

recommend that inclusion of technical appendices with baseline survey 

results, particularly fish populations. In addition it is considered that the fish 

section would benefit from inclusion of historic/third party data for the study 

area. 

 

2.8.4 Further information on the survey methodology is required and the IACC 

notes that underwater noise and hydrodynamic modelling is outstanding 

(underwater noise is also referred to in the Council comments on the Noise 

and Vibration chapter, see above). 

 

2.9 Landscape and Visual, Archaeology and Cultural Heritage 

2.9.1 The Landscape and Visual assessment presented within the PEIR, which is 

supported by baseline information within the appendix enables the IACC to 

understand the breadth of likely effects.  However there is insufficient 

baseline, including figures, to enable the IACC to arrive at its own 

conclusions on the relative significance of effect upon certain receptors. 

 

2.9.2 The assessment chapter correctly identifies the AONB as a key receptor in 

landscape and visual terms.  The importance of AONBs is reflected within 

National Policy Statement EN-1 which recognises that together with National 

Parks and the Broads such areas have been confirmed by the Government 

as having the highest status of protection in relation to landscape and scenic 

beauty (paragraph 125).  The Policy statement goes on to states that 

substantial weight should be given to the protection of these areas when 

deciding upon an application and that whilst consent can be granted in 

exceptional circumstances it should consider any detrimental effect on the 

environment, the landscape and recreational opportunities, and the extent to 

which that could be moderated. 

 

Page 185



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

14 

 

2.9.3 In view of the above, the IACC requires further information on the mitigation 

measures proposed to reduce the significance of effects upon the AONB.  In 

particular it would agree that the construction of the MOLF, breakwater and 

cooling water intake structures would result in a major adverse effect on the 

local seascape character of Porth-y-pistyll bay but conclude that there would 

be a major adverse effect on AONB and Heritage Coast due to scale, 

location and prominence of the structures at least until specific designs for 

the breakwater and its mitigation (particularly how restorative mitigation can 

achieve a ‘natural appearance’ of the affected section after removal of the 

temporary structure). 

 

2.9.4 The IACC welcomes the acknowledgement that despite the new Power 

Station buildings and structures being outside the AONB and Heritage Coast 

they would detract from the special qualities of the AONB and its setting, 

including peace and tranquillity, expansive views, the rural agricultural 

landscape and coastal landscape features. The IACC recommend the 

preparation of a comprehensive and overarching landscape/seascape 

mitigation and management strategy (as referenced at PAC1) for these 

designations to include mitigation tailored to individual localities.  Early 

dialogue with the IACC and NRW on mitigation and compensation measures 

would be welcomed. 

 

2.9.5 The PEIR recognises that Anglesey is predominantly a dark environment at 

night and correctly identifies the IACC’s intention to seek Dark Sky Status 

(although this would be at the Community level as opposed to Reserve 

Status).   HNP states that the lighting design would be developed with regard 

to Dark Sky status with a key aim to limit light spill onto adjacent areas. The 

IACC is eager to review the lighting strategy referred to, but not provided, 

within the PEIR. The potential adverse impact of lighting is likely to be 

significant and we suggest the 6km study area is extended.  Consistent with 

IACC comments at PAC 1 and scoping it is recommended that an 

assessment of lighting for all stages of operations should be classified as a 

separate chapter but with links to ecology, landscape and visual and socio-

economic. The linkage between lighting and ecological receptors was 

explicitly referred to by the Secretary of State within the April 2016 Scoping 

Opinion. 

 

2.9.6 The IACC welcomes the submission of photomontages within the PEIR 

appendices.  It does have concerns over the accuracy of the montages and 

reliance upon the limited guidance included within the Landscape Institute’s 

Advice Note 01/11.  The IACC notes that the scaling of some if not all of the 

montages has been adjusted to fit the page template and as such is not 

consistent with the information on viewing distances provided.  HNP should 

Page 186



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

15 

 

ensure that photomontages can be reproduced in a manner that respects the 

parameters identified by its consultants (in this case SLR).  Provision must 

be made for large format figures (i.e. larger than A3) if necessary. 

 

2.9.7 Whilst developed for a specific type of development, much of the guidance 

contained within Visual Representation of Wind Farms published by Scottish 

Natural Heritage is readily applicable to other large scale developments, 

including Wylfa Newydd.  Although some elements of the guidance may not 

be appropriate to the assessment of Wylfa Newydd and other elements may 

be impractical to adopt at this point in the development of the scheme given 

the inadequacy of the presentation of the photomontages in the PEI Report, 

the IACC considers that elements of the SNH guidance should be adopted 

for all future visualisations.  The IACC would welcome the opportunity to 

discuss this matter further. 

 

2.9.8 In addition to montages showing daytime conditions images should be 

produced to show night-time effects and also should include cumulative 

views with the proposed National Grid North Wales Connection. 

 

2.9.9 A review of the submitted montages suggests that there will be areas of the 

development site subject to large blocks of woodland.  However the LEMP 

currently does not appear to propose large areas of woodland planting but a 

more open pastoral landscape with hedgerows providing main planting 

mitigation.  That said the drawing ‘Key’ explaining the proposed works 

contained within the LEMP is difficult to decipher and some of the notation 

on the plan does not appear to match.  Clarification is therefore required if 

there is to be a change in of approach in the LEMP to now propose large 

blocks of woodland planting  on mounds. 

 

2.9.10 Chapter B12 of the PEIR presents the preliminary archaeology and cultural 

heritage assessment.  The IACC’s archaeological comments which are 

provided by GAPs welcome the amount of survey work undertaken by HNP 

acknowledging that a certain amount is not provided within the PEIR to the 

extent that there is little primary data presented in the environmental 

baseline to allow proper scrutiny of how judgements have been made. This 

primary data will need to be submitted with the environmental statement in 

order to enable the IACC to come to its own conclusions with regard to the 

significance of effects. 

 

2.9.11 The IACC welcomes the commitment to include archaeology as one of the 

exhibits within the proposed Visitor centre.  However whilst the mitigation 

measures will increase the understanding of Welsh culture it is only by 

disseminating this information to the widest possible audience and engaging 

Page 187



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

16 

 

with the community that real value from the data is obtained.  As such, 

ensuring that the programme of archaeological work provides opportunities 

for the public to engage with their culture through public access to the 

excavations and even participation is essential.  Providing a legacy in the 

long term can also ensure good value, maximise public benefit, and given 

the interest in the discoveries there is scope to be more ambitious. 

 

2.9.12 As a result of the Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 the Register of 

Historic Parks and Gardens has become a statutory designation and 

nationally important. 

 

2.9.13 Both the direct and indirect effects on Cestyll Garden are a significant 

concern to the IACC.  An assessment of significance for Cestyll Garden 

needs to be completed and distributed to all relevant parties so that an 

understanding of the potential effects can be made.  The assessment needs 

to identify the individual attributes that together contribute to the significance 

of the asset and the extent to which they would be affected. Impacts 

therefore need to be fully understood and robust and comprehensive 

compensation measures need to be guaranteed if no other mitigation is 

possible.  Given the minor to major direct and indirect effects on this 

nationally designated asset the IACC notes that a conservation statement for 

the Garden is proposed.  Such a statement should include for mitigation 

and/or compensation of effects and an outline management plans and 

should be subject to a requirement of the DCO. 

 

2.9.14 The IACC is also concerned about the effects upon the setting of the Felin 

Gafan Corn Mill.  This is a grade II* listed building which Tables B12.1 and 

12.2 state would experience a moderate effect to its setting during 

construction and operation.  According to the PEIR EIA methodology effects 

identified as minor or above are significant in EIA terms. 

 

2.10 Radiological Issues and Radiological Waste Management 

2.10.1 The presentation of a chapter setting out radiological issues is welcomed by 

the IACC.  The lack of a chapter at PAC1 was a concern and it is noted that 

the Secretary of State did request consideration of such effects within the 

Scoping Opinion.  The IACC recognise that regulating radiological emissions 

is the responsibility of other organisations, but is eager to understand the 

potential for cumulative effects between the operation of Wylfa Newydd and 

the decommissioning of Wylfa A.  The IACC would expect the environmental 

statement to include quantitative analysis to support the assertions and 

conclusions contained within the PEIR.  On the issue of cumulative effects it 

would wish to see information provided on the type, number and frequency 

of vehicle movements associated with the movement of radiological material 

Page 188



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

17 

 

through the communities which live alongside the A5025.  HNP will be aware 

that matters of perception around health are a key concern of local 

communities and the implement of mitigation and/or compensation 

measures agreed with the IACC, should be considered where the potential 

for adverse impacts on local communities, the economy or the environment 

are identified. 

 

2.10.2 The IACC notes that the PEIR confirms the potential for the continued 

storage of spent fuel up to 140 years post operation (with HLW also, 

potentially being stored at least until after decommissioning).  The 

environmental statement should consider the effects of retaining such a 

facility over such a long period of time which represents the lifetimes of 

generations of Anglesey residents.  The potential for climate change effects 

so long into the future will be difficult to accurately analyse but the IACC  

expect HNP to demonstrate that the safe storage of spent fuel over the 

lifetime of the facility.  

 

2.11 Conventional Waste and Materials Management 

2.11.1 The information contained within the PEIR is helpful and the IACC 

recognises that estimates on volumes of waste, including dredgings remain 

preliminary and that there are still a number of uncertainties in relation to all 

the quantities and end-use of materials.  To understand the environmental 

and infrastructure effects further information will be required on how much 

waste and materials will be generated and how it will be managed.  This is 

important for two reasons: 

 

 To ensure that all environmental effects of the proposed scheme are 

assessed e.g. if large quantities of material / waste will be screened 

and crushed on site, then this will have noise / air quality effects.  

Alternatively, if large quantities are to be exported, then this would 

have traffic effects – all effects that require assessing. 

 To ensure that as accurate as possible information is included within 

an overall waste need assessment, which will demonstrate whether 

or not the proposed scheme can be adequately supported (or 

otherwise) by the existing network of waste management 

infrastructure. 

 

2.11.2 HNP will need to demonstrate that there is sufficient spare capacity within 

the network of waste management facilities that will be relied upon for the 

off-site disposal of the waste generated by the one-off enabling and 

construction activities and the on-going operational waste management 

requirements of the site.  As the proximity principle is a cornerstone of Welsh 

waste management legislation and policy, demonstration that where 

Page 189



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

18 

 

possible, local facilities can manage any waste requiring off-site treatment is 

required.  To this end, it is considered that some form of 'need' assessment 

should be included in the waste section. 

 

2.11.3 The preliminary assessment considers the waste arisings generated from 

the decommissioning of the Power Station but the decommissioning of 

temporary developments associated with the construction of the site is not 

mentioned. There is insufficient information within the respective chapters 

relating to their decommissioning to explain how they are to be cleared and 

restored, especially in relation to how inert waste/material is to be processed 

and managed and utilised.  

 

2.12 Climate Change 

2.12.1 The inclusion of consideration of the effects upon the project resulting from 

climate change is welcome and responds to both the IACC and Secretary of 

State’s response to scoping.  The PEIR provides preliminary information on 

how the power station has been designed with climate change in mind 

(Table B16.3) and further detail on these adaption measures should be 

provided within the environmental statement.  In particular information 

should include how the design aspects have been reviewed to account for 

the climate change effects and whether mitigation measures for these design 

aspects have been identified in relation to the potential effects.  

 

2.12.2 The IACC noted within its scoping response that climate change is likely to 

change baseline conditions during the lifetime of the project and an 

assessment of how the baseline might evolve, relative to each environmental 

topic chapter should be included even where the conclusion that it can be 

scoped from assessment is reached.  In response the PEIR recognises the 

fact that the power station will be in operation for 60 years and that the local 

environment is likely to have been affected by climate change over time 

which might increase the sensitivity of the environment.  Table 16.2 therefore 

sets out those environmental topics with the potential to be affected. 

 

2.12.3 The IACC considers that in addition to the topics identified consideration 

should also be given to the changes to the landscape as a result of climate 

change as well as the potential for increased pressure upon certain 

terrestrial and freshwater species.  

 

2.12.4 Whilst the commitment to a consideration of climate change effects during 

the operational phase is welcome consistent with earlier comments the IACC 

would also wish to be assured of the safety of the spent fuel store over the 

period of 140 years following the cessation of operations at the power 

station.    

Page 190



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

19 

 

2.13 B-17 to H-01 

2.13.1 The IACC’s comments on the individual sites are contained within its 

overarching response to the main Consultation document, with the exception 

of any cumulative comments which are included below. 

 

2.13.2 Irrespective of the policy compliance of the site and uses proposed the over-

riding conclusion is that there is insufficient information presented either 

within the main document or baseline appendices to enable the IACC to 

reach its conclusion on the likelihood of potentially significant effects.  

Page 191



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

20 

 

3. Cumulative Effects  

3.1.1 The cumulative assessment defines a number of study areas.  The figure 

and colours chosen are difficult to interpret, especially the air quality/noise 

and vibration study areas. 

 

3.1.2 The PEIR provides a long-list and short-list of projects considered for 

cumulative effects.  It notes that the list of projects has not yet been frozen 

ahead of the DCO application and that it is actively seeking views on 

projects that should be added to the long-list for consideration.  

 

3.1.3 The suggestion contained within the PEIR that the cumulative list should be 

frozen four months from submission appears reasonable but HNP should 

always retain an element of flexibility to assess the cumulative effects of 

more recent projects should they have the potential to affect the conclusions 

contained within any of HNPs assessments.  The IACC believes that early 

agreement on the list (subject to change) is essential.  

 

3.1.4 The proposed cumulative assessment recognises advice contained within 

the Planning Inspectorate’s Advice Note 17.  This includes for tiers 1-3 with 

tier 3 projects including projects yet to reach scoping or development plan 

allocations.  HNP proposes to scope out tier 3 projects.  The IACC advises 

that development plan allocations, particularly in and adjoining Amlwch 

should be taken into consideration.  

 

3.1.5 The intra-cumulative effects section brings together some of the individual 

assessments reported within the topic chapters on individual project 

elements to understand the potential for cumulative effects.  The way in 

which the information is presented is easily understandable and the IACC 

recognises that there are still a number of assessments and studies which 

require completing before a full assessment can be undertaken.  The full 

assessment to be reported within the environmental statement should 

include for the consideration of the receptor sensitivity, magnitude of 

cumulative effect and provide a reasoned conclusion on significance.  The 

IACC will expect to see mitigation identified for cumulative significant effects. 

   

3.1.6 Contained within the intra-project cumulative effects is the acknowledgement 

that some receptors may be affected successively by one or more different 

activities.  The Council welcomes this recognition.  Given the number of 

years over which the construction of the power station will take place it is 

important to understand the cumulative impact of potentially recurring effects 

and whether the recurrence will be significant even when individual activities 

in themselves may not.  

Page 192



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

21 

 

3.1.7 The IACC is aware that HNP is looking at the skills required locally with a 

view to increasing training to close any identified skills gaps.  The IACC will 

also expect HNP to support science and skills training in schools in addition 

to post- secondary education to ensure that younger residents are able to 

identify and take advantage of future workplace opportunities.  

 

3.1.8 Support for improved educational attainment and the raising of aspirations 

will also be important in addressing the potential for significant cumulative 

effects from all of the Wylfa Newydd project developments on businesses 

and the supply chain.  The PEIR suggests that such effects are broadly 

considered to be beneficial due to an increase in demand.  However for the 

reason cited by HNP in paragraph 13.2 local businesses may struggle to 

retain and recruit in the face of competition from the project and a 

requirement to support existing businesses through skills development and 

training support will be needed. 

 

3.1.9 Intra-project cumulative effects are also identified upon the tourist industry.  

Mitigation such as marketing and Brand support for the tourism sector on 

Anglesey is identified as a means to reduce effects.  The IACC supports this 

commitment but would also suggest mitigation in the form of potential 

alternative tourism attractions to maintain numbers of visitors during 

construction (e.g. improvements elsewhere to the long distance footpath 

network, cycle network, early introduction of the visitor and media centre).  

Active promotion should commence in advance of the main construction 

period to ensure that visitors are not put off from visiting Anglesey. 

 

3.1.10 The IACC believes that there is limited reference to both an intra and inter 

project context with regard to socio-economics.  There is currently very 

limited assessment of the likely impacts and interaction and given the scale 

of the Wylfa Newydd development including the integral and associated 

development alongside what is a large number of projects drawing on the 

resources of a comparatively sparsely populated area this is a major 

concern.  The key concerns from a socio-economic perspective reflect those 

identified within the socio-economic section above and include the 

cumulative demand on labour, housing, wider social and community 

infrastructure and services, key sectors of the economy including tourism, 

accommodation, construction, service sector and wider issues of 

displacement covering all of the areas above. 

 

3.1.11 The PEIR recognises that there is potential for communities close to the 

Power Station to be affected by a reduction in air quality as a result of the 

Wylfa Newydd project but that all potential effects are associated with 

construction of the Power Station, therefore no intra-project cumulative 

Page 193



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

22 

 

effects have been identified.  Similarly, it states that no potentially significant 

cumulative effects (in addition to the significant effects identified in the 

relevant topic chapter) are anticipated in communities in close proximity to 

the A5025 or A55.  The IACC questions the lack of operational air quality 

assessment for power station alone and hence the conclusions reached with 

regard to cumulative assessment. Furthermore and consistent with other 

topics considered within this section of the PEIR the IACC would require that 

consideration be given to the potential for successive (potentially not-

significant) effects which in succession may become cumulatively significant, 

ie effects upon air quality as a result of the construction of the A5025 works, 

MEEG, AECC and power station on the same receptor. 

 

3.1.12 The consideration of cumulative visual effects will be important.  

Communities likely to experience significant cumulative visual effects are 

Tregele and Cemaes, where the power station and National Grid connection 

may be visible. Some residents in parts of Tregele for example may also 

have views towards the A5025 Highway Improvements, Visitor and Media 

Reception Centre and Magnox AECC/DSL. Cemaes residents may also 

have views towards the construction of the A5025 the power station, the 

decommissioning of Wylfa A and Rhyd y Groes wind farm. For such 

receptors the Council would wish to see the use of cumulative 

photomontages and ZTVs in order to understand the potential for effects 

prior to agreeing with the statement of no significance contained within the 

PEIR. 

   

3.1.13 The IACC agrees that potential significant effects on coastal processes, 

coastal geomorphology and the marine environment receptors are all 

associated with the construction or operation of the Power Station.  It 

recommends that consideration does also need to be given to the potential 

for successive effects leading to significant effects arising from the site 

clearance (SP&C) works followed by the power station construction with 

particular attention given to the length of time over which effects might be 

experienced. 

 

3.1.14 The PEIR states that with the adoption of a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan to manage accidental pollution incidents, no intra-project 

cumulative effects have been identified for surface water receptors.  The 

IACC assumes that the CEMP will therefore cover both the power station 

and all other intra-development projects. 

 

3.1.15 Concerning archaeology and cultural heritage the IACC would wish to see 

the result of all individual EIAs and the finalised cumulative impact 

assessment which should identify the settings of the assets and the extent to 

Page 194



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

23 

 

which various individual developments may or may not intrude upon them 

before agreeing to a conclusion of limited potential for cumulative effects. 

 

3.1.16 The IACC remains concerned over the lack of consideration of the Welsh 

Language as a receptor within the PEIR and potentially the environmental 

statement.  It is considered that cumulative effects upon the Welsh language 

should be considered. Subject to further agreement it may be possible to use 

the findings of the Welsh Language Impact Assessment to inform the 

environmental statement conclusions should it also contain a cumulative 

assessment. 

 

3.1.17 The PEIR recognises that a number of property occupiers are likely to be 

subject to a loss of, or reduction in, amenity from the Wylfa Newydd project 

combined with decommissioning of the Existing Power Station, utilities 

diversions, and the North Wales Connection Project.  The recognition is 

welcomed as the IACC does agree that both construction and operational 

effects arising from the combination of projects could give rise to cumulative 

impacts.  Given the linkage between the power station and the grid 

connection HNP should consider opportunities to consider joint mitigation, or 

the mitigation of effects from one project to reduce   the combined significant 

effects cumulatively with the other.  They need not be treated in isolation.  In 

situations where design changes cannot be made to reduce effects to ‘not 

significant’, or where mitigation is not achievable project promoters should 

consult one another and the IACC on potential compensation measures.  

Similarly compensation for effects upon archaeology and cultural heritage 

should be presented where mitigation is not possible.  

Page 195



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

24 

 

4. Conclusion 

4.1.1 The Preliminary Environmental Report and supporting documentation 

provides a significant amount of information on the potential for likely 

significant effects. The IACC’s review of the documents suggests that the 

range of receptors identified and the causation of effects is appropriate.  The 

IACC has less certainty on the conclusions reached in relation to the 

magnitude and significance of effects.  This is because there is insufficient 

baseline information and assessment contained within the report and its 

appendices. 

 

4.1.2 The previous chapters represent the key issues arising from the IACC’s 

review of the PEIR.  The following recommendations are made:  

 

a)   HNP should discuss with the IACC and PINs the approach to be taken to 

the presentation of information that will comprise the Environmental 

Statement to ensure that it will be easily navigable. 

b)   Confirmation on what level of significance constitutes ‘EIA significance’ 

should be provided, mitigation measures should be accompanied by 

compensation, off-setting and enhancement where appropriate; 

c)    Where changes to the design which is presented within the PEIR are 

made, or where designs have yet to be confirmed, HNP should consider 

additional, focussed consultation in advance of submission; 

d)   Further assessment and mitigation should be undertaken and identified 

to address issues of displacement in the job market; 

e)   Consultation is required with stakeholders to agree the plans and 

strategies which are referenced within the document in advance of 

submission; 

f)    Further assessment should be given to the potential for effects upon 

tourism with a commitment to the monitoring of effects and the 

identification of necessary mitigation; 

g)    Real-time monitoring of effects upon amenity should also form a 

commitment within the environmental statement; 

h)   The ES should include details of all ecological surveys, site 

investigations and modelling to enable the Council to reach its own 

conclusion with regard to baseline conditions and the potential for 

significant effects; 

i)    Further baseline information and assessment is required to enable the 

Council to understand the potential for significant effects upon the Tr’e 

Gof and Cae Gwyn SSSIs; 

j)    Greater clarity on the potential for effects upon the AONB, including its 

individual attributes and cumulative effects is required with a 

commitment to mitigate effects and enhance other parts of the 

Page 196



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

25 

 

designation via the preparation of a comprehensive landscape/seascape 

management strategy; 

k)   Similarly additional, detailed consideration is required on the potential 

direct and indirect effects upon Cestyll Garden whilst consultation is 

required on the contents of the conservation strategy; 

l)    Further assessment of radiological effects arising from the transportation 

of waste, including cumulative effects with the decommissioning of Wylfa 

A should be provided; 

m)  The ES should include for an assessment of the site post-

decommissioning of the main plant and buildings to include for the 

potential for climate change effects arising from the retention of the 

spent fuel store for a period of up to 140 years. 

n)    Consideration should be included within the ES of the potential for 

cumulative environmental effects upon the welsh language. 

 

4.1.3 In view of the above, continued collaboration and information sharing is 

critical.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 197



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

1 

 

Glossary of Terms 

 

AADT Annual Average Daily Traffic 

ASB Anti-Social Behaviour 

AD  Associated Development 

AECC Alternative Emergency Control Centre 

AONB Area of Outstanding National Beauty 

CEMP Construction and Environmental Management Plan 

CNVMP Construction Noise and Vibration Management Plan 

CWAMP Construction Workers Accommodation Management Portal  

CWAS Construction Worker Accommodation Strategy 

DAP Destination Anglesey Partnership 

DCO Development Consent Order 

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment 

EqIA Equality Impact Assessment 

EqIAIR Equality Impact Assessment Interim Report 

ES Environmental Statement 

ESL Environmental Survey Laboratory 

EZ Enterprise Zone 

FID Final Investment Decision 

GAPS Gwynedd Archaeological Planning Service 

GP Guiding Principle 

HEAT Health Economic Assessment Tool 

HGV Heavy Goods Vehicle 

HIA  Health Impact Assessment 

HIAIR Health Impact Assessment Interim Report 

HIAPR Health Impact Assessment Progress Report 

HLW High Level Waste 

HNP  Horizon Nuclear Power 

IACC Isle of Anglesey County Council  

ITTS Integrated Traffic & Transport Strategy 

JLDP Joint Local Development Plan 

KSA Key Study Area 

LDP Local Development Plan 

LEMP Landscape and Environmental Masterplan 

MCD Main Consultation Document 

MEEG Mobile Emergency Equipment Garage 

MMP Materials Management Plan 

MOLF Marine Off-Loading Facility  

MOU Memorandum of Understanding 

NAMRC Nuclear Advanced Manufacturing research Centre  

Page 198



OFFICIAL DRAFT 

2 

 

NEETs Not in Education, Employment or Training 

NMU Non-Motorised User 

NNB New Nuclear Build 

NPS National Policy Statement 

NWEAB North Wales Economic Ambition Board 

ONR Office of Nuclear Regulation 

PAC Pre-Application Consultation 

PEIR Preliminary Environmental Impact Report 

PM Particulate Matter 

PPW  Planning Policy Wales 

PRS Private Rented Sector 

SME Small-Medium Enterprises 

SNH Scottish Natural Heritage 

SPA Specially Protected Area 

SPG Supplementary Planning Guidance 

SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest 

STEM Science Technology Engineering Mathematics 

TAN Technical Advice Note 

TCPA Town & Country Planning Application 

TWA  Temporary Workers Accommodation 

WESP Welsh Education Strategic Plan 

WG Welsh Government 

WHO World Health Organisation 

WLIA Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

ZTV Zone of Theoretical Visibility 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Parliamentary Review
	3. Annual Performance Report 2015/16
	Covering report County Council (English) 2015-16 Annual Perormance Report 10-10-16
	Final Performance Report  Draft  2015-16 (10-10-16)

	4. Exclusion of the Press and Public
	5. The County Council's Response to Horizon's Pre-Application Consultation - Stage 2

